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fter its successful business recognition since 1962, Sino-
AThoi Engineering and Construction Public Company
Limited became the top leading construction company
that serves both civil work and mechanical work, our
services include Infrastructure, Buildings, Energy and
Power Generation Plants, Industrial and Environment.
The company strongly emphasizes on best and high
quality construction where its highest goal is to undertake the
engineering and construction business in every aspect to meet
customers’ stringent requirements regarding quality, on-time
delivery, fair prices, with high health, safety and environmental
standard.
Sino-Thai continues to move forward and became the
leading Engineering and Construction firm in Thailand by
handing over quality projects with all experts and experiences

for more than 48 years of reputation.
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2009 : Bt 12,108 mn
2010 : Bt 9,361 mn
Decrease in Total Revenue

2009 : Bt 584 mn
2010 : Bt 860 mn
Increase in Gross Profit

. . .24 | e
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+ 4 4 /O : - i Propylene Oxde project (PO
. That

................................ : CG Ranking
2009 : Bt 308 mn : by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

2010 : Bt 443 mn : 2010: Very Good

Increase in Net Profit ﬁ g ﬁ ﬁ

Public Sector
(Including State)

Environment

2009 : Bt 3.80
2010 : Bt 3.86 :
Increase in Book Value per Share - Building

Infrastructure

37.9%

2 2 0/ Industrial Private Sector
I 0 Construction Revenue by Construction Revenue by

................................ Type of Work in 2010 Type of Client in 2010
2009 : Bt 17,212 mn

2010 : Bt 21,049 mn

Increase in Backlog Order
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Financial Highlights
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Balance Sheet (Bt mn)
Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Shareholders’ Equity

Income Statement (Bt mn)
Construction Income
Total Revenue

Cost of construction

Selling & Administrative Expense
Interest Expense
Gross Profit

Net Profit

Financial Ratio

Current Ratio (Times)

Total Assets Turnover (Times)
Debt to Equity Ratio (Times)
Gearing fo Equity Ratio (Times)
Gross Profit Margin

Net Profit Margin

Return on Equities

Book Value per Share (Baht)
Earning per Share (Baht)

2549
2006

10,663
15,787
10,802
11,877

3.910

14,664
14,817
16,187

254
104
(1,507)
(1,780)

0.99
1.05
3.04
0.48
(10.25%)
(12.01%)
(44.32%)
3.30
(1.51)

2550
2007

10,007
14,027
9,673
10,134
3.893

17.217
17,458
16,939

359
94
300
18

1.03
1.17
2.60
0.43
1.74%
0.12%
0.56%
3.28
0.02

2551
2008

8,319
12,405
7,646
7.964
4,441

14,537
14,717
14,051

315
108
512
193

1.09
1.11
1.79
0.24
3.51%
1.31%
4.64%
3.74
0.15

2552
2009

5,377
8.784
4,131
4,276
4,509

11,914
12,108
11,359

335

31
584
308

1.30
1.14
0.95
0.05
4.88%
2.55%
6.89%
3.80
0.26

2553
2010

7.291
10,208
5,533
5,629
4,579

9,193
9,361
8.351

403

11
860
443

1.32
0.99
1.23
0.04
9.26%
4.74%
9.76%
3.86
0.37
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Message from the Chairman

ino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited has

been operated as a first class contractor for many years, from an
ordinary company limited to a public company limited. Sino-Thai is well-
known as an expertise in construction business as it can be noticed from
the various types of the construction projects including the mega projects
where the projects’ value cost more than a hundred thousand million
baht and it’s reputation has been noticed not only in the country but
the overseas also. This is also guarantee that the company has extremely
succeeded in construction business. The key of success comes from
many reasons which are the experiences in construction, the critical
and modern fechnology of the equipment, the loyalty and caring
behavior of it's employees that treat their partners with fair and
fransparent; moreover, they also treat the same way towards the
company. The employees are loyal and have high responsible on their
duty so that they can turn an ordinary construction company info a
high-class contractor eventually. These reasons cause an extremely
successful to the company and they made their company to be more
respective and acceptable to other people as well. Another indicator
of its successful is a value added upon the price of a common share
where listed in the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Shareholders, employees,
or even the company are satisfied after all these years, sometimes,
when the country has to face with the economic slowdown, the company
still have strength to carry on it's business because all staff are willing
to help each other in order to successfully pass through tfough fime
together.

As we all aware that our company is a part of the country,
we put much effort on Sino-Thai Payback Program in order to let the
people in the country live well and satisfy. The more development of
the country, the more life improvement. Thus the company keeps on
donating school buildings and libraries to improve educational skill for
the children including to be one of a supportive tool for other people
as well.

Furthermore, when there is a natural disaster, the company
and the employees are gathering funds and useful things in order to
donate to the sufferers promptly.

The company has been operated for 49 years; | expect that
we will hold on together to do our best through our function with all
responsibility to sustain the company’s success especially for shareholders,
for employees and for our country.

With kind regards,

Professor Rawat Chamchalerm
Chairman of the Board

d1s91NUs=s1unssunNs
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The Company continues to move forward and become
the leading Engineering and Construction firm in Thailand
and eventually the region, while delivering projects

that consistently meet international standards.

Annual Report 2910T -




o a a U v v v | a v ﬂl v v v dld
W]Luu‘h;iﬂ’ﬂﬂﬂai"?ﬁﬁﬂLuuﬂ’ﬁﬁi"mﬂ'ﬁ’?ﬂLﬂuLﬂﬁslunﬂG] AU L‘Wﬂmﬂ‘]_lﬁuﬂ\‘lV"I’J’]llﬁ]‘ﬂ\‘iﬂﬂ?“]]ﬂ\‘igﬂﬂ’] 1AENTAT AN UNL

ARUNIN ATILIAN i’]ﬂ’]&qlaﬁi‘ill Tﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁdﬁﬂﬂ?ﬂhﬂﬁﬂﬂﬁﬂ%\‘]@ﬂ

WannsTuIn1sUEIsdnnslidssangnmuazilsz@nua nn9liuilgasans atnanailias uaziussiniung
1 v v [ 3 a 1 nll nll =l
yutiulvesdnaiulnedadunsuazistunaanlyl
N , d o . 4
afngsialuid o MiAedesiu Core Business talfunsnszanagusels uazananudes

To undertake the engineering and construction business with a focus on becoming the cost leadership while building

alyold InQ

excellence in every aspect to meet customers’ stringent requirements regarding quality, on-time delivery, safety and
environmental concerns.

To develop an effective management that stresses productivity, perpetual development of the organization and
instilling work ethics in all personnel.

To build value for the organization in order to become a unique and distinct firm.

To remain focused on controlled organizational growth and recognizing those who contribute to this growth.
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Strategy
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Experience
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| Project Highlights

Purple Line (Bangyai-Bangsue)
Contract 2

Specialty Elastomer Project (SE)
Thai Propylene Oxide Project (TPO)
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Sriracha Clean Fuel




Policy
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Sino-Thal Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited

USEM 107 A 215 971m USEM wUNWas Fnwane 919 LS Atala diu-Tne BuALlese SR
HTR Corporation Limited Metter Supply Co., Ltd. DKK Sino-Thai Engineering Co., Lid.

ANUEUAUS U3telag 1Ustmelae UMW

Relationship: Subsidiary Company Subsidiary Company Affiliate Company

s a o 1
o o . TULVUNAAANIUTEULAE AR
= e S Fusevinluan
szinnasna WARIUNBAINITUNTNE . nspuUNAL
i Manufacture of Machine- B
Type of Business: Real Estate Development Telecommunications and

Tool (Mold)
Transmission Lines

nuaanzideu wan)
Registeres Capital 500,000,000 5,000,000 8,000,000
(Baht):

dndunsiiariu
% Share Holding:

80.90 35.00

41Uy

40,449,995 49,996 27997
No. of Shares:

YAAIRUAY (LN

404,499,950 4,999,600 2,799,700
Cost (Baht):
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Our Business
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Construction : Wide range of services

Infrastructure Mass Transit, Elevated Road, Road, Highway, Bridge

Building Office Building, Convention Center, Exhibition Center, Hospital,
Condominium, Special Building

Power & Energy Power Plant, Refinery

Industrial Petrochemical Plant, Industrial Plant, Steel Structure & Piping,
Pre-Assembly Module

Environment Waste Water Treatment Plant, Water Supply System, Irrigation System

20 Annual Report 2010
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Construction Revenue Structure by Type of Works
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Construction Revenue Structure by Type of Clients
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2007 2008
37.9%
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The early 2010, Construction business expanded
consistently though there is some political instability during
April - May 2010. Fortunately, it was a limited affection and
the private sectors can be recovered rapidly. On the first
half of the year 2010, the investment of both private and
government sectors in construction business was continually
expanded. The government has been motivated by the
Economics Stimulation Package of the year 2012 : SP2
(Thai Kem-Kaeng 2012) where it has consistently urged
and obviously effected to the construction business since
2010, especially in small construction projects for example,
renovation of roads and water supply system. Moreover
there are some projects launched by enterprises such as
the construction projects of The National Housing Authority
and the construction projects of TOT Public Company
Limited. Furthermore, the investment in construction business
of the private sectors has focused on the residences and
they proceed it rapidly before the motivation in real estate
business was end, by the way, the ending period is extended
until June 2010.

For the second half of the year 2010, the expansion of the
investment in construction business became slowdown. The
negative points that affect to the construction business shall
be floods in many provinces in Thailand. Many construction
projects in those provinces had to stop; moreover, the
motivation in real estate business had been already ended.
The construction business had slowdown since the third
quarter of 2010. The expansion of the construction projects
derive from government sectors were slowdown and caused
by the withdrawal of government’s budget, especially, the
investment under the Economics Stimulation Package (SP2).
The construction projects in private sectors were expanded
in the second half of the year. It was the result of the
residential projects derived from the improvement of readl
estate where it had been launched formally, especially
the vertical projects. The industrial projects also expanded
much since there was an increasing of investment in
industrial projects along with the economics that was better
recovered.

The overall investment in construction business in 2010
expands from the previous year because the government
sectors have supported through the investment in mega
projects and small projects under the Economics Stimulation
Package 2012 (SP2). On the other hand, the investment in
construction business from the private sectors have been

motivated by the recovering of the construction projects
also. Therefore, the overall investment in construction business
of the country is increasingly expanded.

The investment in construction business from both
governmental sectors and private sectors is increased but
the competition in construction business sfill bully. However,
the company is able to win the bidding of new projects
gradually. Therefore, the company’s backlog at the end
of 2010 was amounting to Baht 21,000 million. The backlog
consists of projects both in the public and private sectors.
In the public/government sector, projects consisted mainly
from public infrastructure projects and in the private it mostly
consisted of industrial and energy projects, all areas of
expertise for the Company.

Type of Customer

The Company is a well diverse consfruction company
capable of acquiring projects in many different work fields.
For this reason, the Company has a varied customer base,
all depending on the type of project. The company has the
capabilities fo take on projects in the private, government,
or state enterprise sectors.

In 2010, the Company plans to target projects within
the government sector that has an investment framework
for large scale public transportation projects similar to the
current Airport Rail Link Project with the State Railway of
Thailand and Mass Rapid Transit Authority. These large scale
infrastructure projects will create a significant foundation to
support the economic status and recovery of the country.

As for our client base in the private sector for 2010, the
Company is still focusing on three key areas: Energy (small
to large power plants), Industrial (petrochemical plants) and
Pre-Assembly Modules (LNG).

The Target Customer

1. Public Sector (Government and State Enterprise)
consists of the following: The Department of Rural Road,
Department of Irrigation, Department of Highway,
Bangkok Metropolitan Authority, Municipal Governments,
Mass Rapid Transit Authority, State Railway of Thailand,
Expressway Authority of Thailond, Metropolitan Electricity
Authority, Electricity Generating Authority of Thailand,
Metropolitan Waterworks Authority, etc.

2. Private Sector consists of large foreign multi-national
EPC’s in the following areas: Petro Chemical process
plants, Small and Large Power Plants and Pre-Assembly
modules.

.
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Revenue : Infrastructure (Bt mn)

The company is proud to be a part of Thailand’s
economic growth through infrastructure projects such as
Mass Rapid Transit, the elevated roads, highways, roads,
bridges, dams, and marine works.

The infrastructure projects have been carried on
continually last year, especially mega projects that derived
from the government such as the MRT Red line project,
the MRT Purple line project and the MRT Blue line project.
Besides there was another infrastructure projects for example,
roads, bridges, and highways etc. For the company, the
infrastructure projects are the most important source of
construction project. In 2010, the revenue recognized by
the Company in the Infrastructure Sector amounted to
Baht 2,572 million or 28% of total construction revenue. The
Company plans for the coming year to contfinue focusing
on constfruction works in the Infrastructure Sector. Careful
consideration will be necessary for each project in order to
properly analyze the cost and profitability of each project.

In 2010, there were 4 projects that had been handover,
which were: SBIA Rail Link and City Air Terminal project, MEA
Ductbank project where the company jointed with ARL,
Drainage System for SBIA Lot 3 project and Infrastructure
System & Control Building-Government Center project.

At the end of 2010, the remaining Infrastructure Projects
on hand were Ratchapruk Local Road, The MRT Purple
Line Contract no. 2 project, Water Supply System including
with related building project, Highway No.217 Route A.
Piboonmangsaharn - Chongmeg Section 2 project and
Connecting Route to Mega Bangna project.

Trend of infrastructure projects will continuously improve
because these projects are stimulated by government’s
investment through mega projects and new coming projects
such as the building renovation that had been caused by
the floods. Furthermore, the government also stimulates the
infrastructure industrial through the Economics Stimulation
Package 2012 (SP2). However, the competition amongst
contractors still high, it is therefore, contractors must focus on
cost confrol management thus they can compete with the
others more efficiently.



MRT Purple Line
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Revenue : Building (Bt mn)

The company has various services of buildings, which
are office buildings, condominiums, aircraft maintenance
centers, sport centers, school buildings, hospitals, museum,
convention, cargo, air tferminals etfc.

In 2010, trend of building construction market seems to
be improved gradually since 2009. Investment in residents and
commercial sectors especially condominiums where located
near the BTS were increased rapidly. The government invested
in buildings construction market by proclaiming the new
projects, so the tfrend is going up eventually. The company
still has building projects consistently in both private and
government sectors. In 2010, the Company had ifs revenue
of construction in the Building Sector was amounted to Baht
1,705 million, or 19% of the total construction revenue.

The company had delivered many building projects
for example, The Administrative Office Building Il on
Dindaeng road - BMA, Building A, Car Parking A & Land
Scape-Government Center, School Building at Prasarnmit
Demonstration School, Sport City Building and Land Fill Mega
Bangna Shopping Center Project.

At the end of 2010, the remaining Building projects on
hand are as followed: The Renovation of Supreme Court, The
Roof Structure for Maharatana Cloister, The Internal System
of Sports Training & Competition Center, The Commander
Building of Royal Thai Navy and Car Park Building, The
Renovation of the Hall convention of the Commander
Building Il and School Building at Prasarnmit Demonstration
School Phase |l.

The frend in Building construction in 2011 shall increase
consistently but shall not increase as same ratio as the previous
year where it was stimulated by the government. However,
the buildings construction might expand in accordance with
the economics cycle that has been recovered.




Navy Building & Car Park

h TR "'w

o
".'.'gu

|

T e e ¥

7]

1"'|'.l-,-

;s 1 i
I'..'-"i"."---q-l

ssauishg InQ

| gﬁfﬁjir{g';'éT+iPrasarﬁfwwit
g S Q

The Roof Structure for
Maharatana Cloister Annual Report 2010 27



Power & Energy
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Revenue : Power & Energy (Bt mn)

The power and energy projects are one of the main
construction projects of the company. The company has
played in a major role in power and energy sector especially
power plants. There was an expansion of using power
generation in the country so there will be lot of power plants
construction plans like power plant project of Electricity
Generating Authority of Thailand, Power plants of private sector
including IPP, SPP and VSPP. In 2010, the Company had its
revenue of construction in the Power and Energy Sector was
amounted to Banht 1,411 million, or 15% of the total construction
revenue.

At the end of 2010, the remaining Energy Projects on
hand are as followed; the Glow Phase 5 Combined Cycle/
Cogeneration Project, Saraburi B Cogeneration Project
(SBC), Industrial Cogeneration Project (ICC), Saraburi A
Cogeneration Project (SAC), Chachoengsao Cogeneration
(CCQO), RIL Cogeneration (RIL), Pathum Cogeneration (PCC)
and Combined Heat and Power Cogeneration (CHP).

According to the PDP 2010 plan, construction in energy
still presenting a good tfrend since it said that in 2010 - 2030,
where it will launch more power plant projects approximately
totaling 54,625 MW consistently; moreover, the government
plans to support the energy and power construction projects
through the alternative energy and the renewable energy

projects in the future as well.
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Industrial Plant
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PUI-General
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Gas Pipeline in DOW .
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Sriracha Clean Fuels, W82 Mechanical Work 1,2 for Sriracha
Clean Fuels
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Revenue : Industrial Plant (Bt mn)

Industrial projects are one of the company’s best
constructions and expertise. Sino-Thai as a leader in construction
of industrial plants such as refineries, petrochemicals, chemical
plants, steel mill, steel fabrication, and erection piping.

The situation of Map Ta Phut has affected to the industrial
projects, it is therefore, trend in its construction is slowdown
for a while. Meanwhile, the company has the industrial
projects consistently, in 2010 the Company had its revenue
of construction in industrial projects was amounted to Baht
3.505 million, or 38% of the total construction revenue.

The company had delivered many building projects in
2010 for example, Pluto LNG Project, SPE Il Project / General
Mechanical Work, Piping for Cracking Furnace (8 Units),
Specialty Elastomer Project, S-1401 Substation #25 Building,
S$1404 Warehouse Building, Fire Water Retention Ponds for
HPPO2 HP Project. TPO-Structure Steel, PUI-General Mechanical,
Structure Steel and Insulation, New Recovery Boiler No.1 Turbine
& Generator Building, EPC for Natural Gas Pipeline in DOW.

At the end of 2010, the remaining Industrial Projects
were as followed: General Mechanical Work for Specialty
Elastomer Train Il Project, Civil Works for HPPO2 HP Project,
TPO Civil & Building Work, Tower Drum Furnace and Reactor
Maintenance, New Recovery Boiler No.1 Installation Project,
General Mechanical for TPO Project, Design & Construction for
New Melts Installation Project, Machine Installation for Green
Mills Project, TPG Skill Assessment, Sriracha Clean Fuel Project,
Civil Work 2 for Sriracha Clean Fuels, and Mechanical Work
1.2 for Sriracha Clean Fuels.

In 2010, the industrial projects might be improved more
than the year of 2009 in accordance with the good cycle
of economics. The problem in Map Ta Phut had been solved
and many projects that had been affected can start again.
There shall be many new coming up of industrial projects

waiting in the year of 2011.
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The company becomes a part of environmental
concerns by committing to construct environmental
projects such as waste water treatment project, water
supply project and piping installation.

In 2010, the Environmental projects were slowdown,
The Company does not recognize revenue from the
construction environment.

Trend of environmental construction projects in 2011
is going to gradually improve compare to the year of
2010 due fo the increasing of investments.
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Revenue : Environment (Bt mn)




Nakorn Ratchasima Water
System Improvement
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Industry and Competition
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Industry Competition in 2010

The early 2010, Construction business expanded
consistently though there is some political instability during
April - May 2010. Fortunately, it was a limited affection and
the private sectors can be recovered rapidly. On the first
half of the year 2010, the investment of both private and
government sectors in construction business was confinually
expanded. The government has been motivated by the
Economics Stimulation Package of the year 2012 : SP2 (Thai
Kem-Kaeng 2012) where it has consistently urged and obviously
effected to the construction business since 2010, especially in
smalll construction projects for example, renovation of roads
and water supply system. Moreover there are some projects
launched by enterprises such as the construction projects of
The National Housing Authority and the construction projects
of TOT Public Company Limited. Furthermore, the investment
in construction business of the private sectors has focused
on the residences and they proceed it rapidly before the
motivation in real estate business was end, by the way, the
ending period is extended until June 2010.

For the second half of the year 2010, the expansion of
the investment in construction business became slowdown.
The negative points that affect to the construction business
shall be floods in many provinces in Thailand.

The company intends to bid the construction projects
derived from the government sector especially the mass
fransit rapid projects from the Mass Transit Rapid Authority
of Thailand. Such projects are important and supportive the

country’s economics growth. For the private sectors, the

\\RI!‘
1Y\11
company emphasize on power and energy projects like the

mega and small power plants, and the industrial projects like

petrochemical including the Pre-Assembly Modules.

Competitiveness and Market Share

The growth of construction business expanded well
in 2010. There were a lot of new projects that had been
launched for bidding from the previous year. The company
won many mega projects and it did increased a large number
of projects on hand, so the company also gained its revenue
of construction consistently.

The company had its market share in the third rank.
Compare to the total revenue of listed companies totaling

13 companies at the end of the 3rd quarter of 2010

Trends of the Industry and Competitions in the Future

In 2010, the overall economic expanded continually
where there were an obviously seen from the support in
investment of the government sector whatever through mega
projects under the Thai Kem-Kaeng (SP2) and other investment
under the expenses budget of the year 2011. The government
set the investment budget at the approximately Baht 3.44
Hundred Million, and many projects had much progress.
There might be some projects would be commmenced at the
same period, for example, MRT Red Line Project (Bangsue-
Talingchan), and MRT Purple Line Project (Bangyai-Bangsue)
which has been constructed since 2010. The construction
of BTS Silom route extension Project (Taksin-Bangwa) was in
processed as it passed through the bidding stage and The
Company has awarded the project, it might be constructed at
the beginning of the year 2011. On the other hand, the MRT
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Blue Line Project (Bangsue-Tha Pra and Hua Lam Phong-Bang
Khae) is waiting for sign a contfract where the company had
won the bidding of contract no. 4. MRT the Red Line Project
(Bangsue-Rangsit) passed the bidding stage and waited for
the evaluation of the State Railway of Thailand. Though the
delay is out off our plan, we think that we can start this project
in the year of 2011.

Moreover, there will be a double frack project, the track
rehab phase 5 and phase 6 these projects are a part of the
investment plan derived from the State Railway of Thailond
(SRT). The SRT plans to process all track projects in 2010 — 2014,
it is ready to commence the projects as soon as possible with
the budget of Baht 8.75 Ten Thousand Million. Furthermore,
there are some other projects prepared for the budget in
2011 like the construction of road rehab of Department of
Highways and Department of Rural Roads which has the
totaling budget Bath 6.5 Ten Thousand Million; besides, there
are some projects related to the water management for more
Baht 3.2 Ten Thousand Million, etc. It can be assumed that
the government sector shall have plan for preventing flood
projects as same as the projects of state enterprises in Map
Ta Phut where it had been ceased recently, and it might be
constructed soon.

There are many mega projects from the government
sector that have been researched but it had a progress

accordingly such as MRT the Green Lines Project - both

two lines, the construction of the New Parliament Project,
Suvarnabhumi Internatfional Airport Phase 2 Project, Phuket
Airport Project, Monorail including another 5 double track
Project, Power Plant Project, the Fast Track Project etc. This is
the good sign for the number of construction projects that are
going to construct in the future. It is also stimulate and rise up
the construction business fo become more alive eventually.
According to the economic gradually recovering, the
construction business in private sector can expand, especially
the construction in industrial projects cause by the investment
of the many sectors in the country. After the flood situation has
been over, there would be some budget that is prepared for
the renovation and the damages, however, the construction
business sfill confronts with mainly risks are as follow;

1. The political instability where has a critical offected
not only to the construction projects derived from the
government but the efficiency of the withdrawal of
budget also.

2. The political gatherings and the disturbance of the
protestors might occur in anytime at the moment and
it affects to the belief of consumers, investors, and
economics stability.

3. The price of construction equipment and fuel price
are fluctuated and increased according to the world’s

economics and Thai’s economics recovery.
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Board of Directors

ACUZNSSUNISUSEN

ANART1ANTENLAMETA Sl
1l2289UN99UNE/NTTUNNTDATE
a1g 66 1
szAnnsAneN
« Boygilnsndngnsniaigsaueniu
() ui 1 Inendetlaaiusy
20NN
TAransuvnTudin 9naensl
UNINENAR
WATUTA e
ARAansTuTn uninenduassurans
Wyailing Inendeilasiusrenandns
fuil 29
lseiRnsvineu
iaqiiu ‘
o Uszaunssune A, ulng Budidles
uauA AauARSATU
AAns1aediAY. AnzlAanT
AINTiuvINed

ea o "
AAnsIAediLAe driinausufnm
NYVINEWILATUA AN
AansIanediniae AuslAmans
UNMINENABNTARG
Aans1aediiae Auslimans
uanendausdiinan
384919281UNTTUNNT LLA. NNENTLL
paiias

04LIFEEINTTUNT LN, UpSTAN AT
ulalmaia

NITUNIENTIAUA NTENTWANEITUAY
NITUNFEMTIALA ANTNTTUNS
1M dINNUAAMNAIUANAUAY
uneiaL

N9IUNTLIMNT &iinanuiaiun
neemaniuazmaluladuiens
Bnn aunaunmuralszinalne
NITUNNINOHHNIANZ LA A1l
ANIZNITUNNINO BTN
nIsuNeENsIAnnAl fungrungly
2.0, NTTNININBATUAZANNTAL

2hn

o fann9gegn nsudtnig dineudenis
sa9dEN19geAn nsudenis drinau
feng

pauAdENsthed NI nsudanig
dntinaudenis

pauRdEnNns  dheaundnganistle
funis dntineudanis

2 v P
a mmumma‘iqu“luumw

AuduRUIATaLATIS TN INELEVINS

Professor Rawat Chamchalerm
Chairman of the Board of Directors /
Independent Director

Age 66 years

Education

¢ The National Defence Course for
Joint-State-Private College Class No.
1, National Defence College (Wor.Por.
Ror.Or.)

LL.M., Chulalongkorn University (First
place in the written test)

Thai Barrister at Law

LL.B., Thammasart University
Certificate of The National Defence
College Class No. 29

Experiences

Current

Chairman of the Board of Directors,
Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction
Public Company Limited

Adjunct Professor, Faculty of Law,
Chulalongkorn University

Adjunct Professor, Institute of Legal

Education of the Thai Barrister

Adjunct Professor, Faculty of Law,
Mahidol University

Adjunct Professor, Faculty of Law, Mae
Fah Luang University

Vice President, Don Muang Tollway

Public Company Limited

Vice President, Nakhon Luang Leasing -

Factoring Company Limited

Distinguished Director, Ministry of Foreign

Affairs

Distinguished Director, Small and Medium

Enterprises

Executive Director, National Science and

Technology Development Agency

Advisor, Athletic Association of Thailand

Director, Office of the Council of State

Distinguished Director in Law, Office of

the Civil Service Commission - Ministry of

Agriculture and Cooperatives

Past

e Attorney General, Office of The Attorney
General

e Deputy Attorney General, Office of The
Attorney General

¢ Director-General, Technical Affairs Division

e Director-General, Training and
Development Division of the Attorney
General

Company Stock holding in percentage

Family relationship
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Police General Sanong
Wattanavrangkul

Director

Age 73 years

Education

e B. Public Administration, Police Academy 13" Class
 Certificate, The National Defence College 29" Class
Experiences

Current

Director, Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Plc.
Chairman of the Directors, The Southeast
Insurance (2000) Co., Ltd.

Chairman of the Director, Southeast Life

Insurance Co., Ltd.

Chairman of the Director, Southeast Capital
Co., Ltd.

Company Stock holding in percentage

Family relationship
e Sanongnuch’s Father
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Dr.Chumphon Pornprapa

Independent Director

Age 67 years

Education

e Honorary Doctoral Degree in Quality
Management

Experiences

Current

e Independent Director,Sino-Thai
Engineering and Construction Plc.

¢ Chairman of the Board,SP
International and Groups Co. Ltd.

¢ Executive Director, Chamber of
Commerce

Past

* Executive Director,The Federation of
Thai Industry

* Director,Office of the Civil Service
Commission

e Chairman of the Subcommittee

of Civil Service Commission in
Supporting Ethics to Government

Officer

Chairman of the Subcommittee of
Civil Service Commission in Privileges
and Remuneration for Government

Officer

Chairman of the Subcommittee

of Civil Service Commission in
Extraordinary Governmental
Human Resource Management for

Manpower

Chairman of Rajabhat Karnchanaburi

University Chamber

Honorary Director,Commission on

Higher Education

Director,Provincial Integration System

Support

Company Stock holding in percentage

Mr. Chamni Janchai

Independent Director

Chairman of the Audit Committee

Age 54 years

Education

MBA, Thammasat University

Graduate Diploma in Management

of Public Economy, King Prajadhipok’s
Institute

B.Account, Thamasat University
Experiences

Current

e Independent Director and Chairman
of the Audit Committee, Sino-Thai
Engineering and Construction Pic.
Director and Member of the Audit
Committee, STP & | Plc.

Director and Member of the Audit
Committee, Thai Theparos Food Products Pic.
Chairman of the Director, Max Metal
Corporation Plc.

¢ President, CJ Morgan Co., Ltd.
¢ President, CJIM Consult Co., Ltd

Past

The Advisory of Committee, National
Housing Authority

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Thai
Capital Corporation Plc.

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Burapa
Steel Industries Co., Ltd.

Chairman of the Advisory Board, Iron and
Steel Institute of Thailand

Chairman of the Advisory Communications
and Transportation Commission

The Advisory of Subcommittee in Solutions
for Communications and Information
Technology

Qualified Director and Executive Director,
Iron and Steel Institute of Thailand

Director and Vice President, NTS Steel
Group Plc.

Company Stock holding in percentage
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Police Lieutenant General Jate

Mongkolhutthi

Independent Director

Member of the Audit Committee

Age 58 years

Education

¢ LL.M., Chulalongkorn University

e LL.B., Ramkhamhaeng University

Experiences

Current

e Independent Director and Member
of the Audit Committee, Sino-Thai
Engineering and Construction Plc.

Commissioner of the Law and

Investigation Office, Royal Thai Police

Independent Director and Member of
the Audit Committee, STP & | Plc.
Director and Member of the Audit

Committee, Capital Corporation Plc.

Director, Government Savings Bank
(Excise Department)

Company Stock holding in percentage
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Mr.Suchai Poopichayapongs

Independent Director

Member of the Audit Committee

Age 62 years

Education

¢ MBA Economics, East Texas State
University, Texas, USA

e B.SC. Marketing, Woody College, Los
Angeles, California, USA

Experiences

Current

¢ Independent Director and Member
of the Audit Committee, Sino-Thai

Engineering and Construction Plc.

Past

* Director, Inspection and Evaluation
Bureau (Level 9), Office of the
Permanent Secretary, Ministry of

Finance

Director, Inspection and Evaluation
Bureau (Level 8), Office of the
Permanent Secretary, Ministry of
Finance

Director, Finance Division, Office of

the Permanent Secretary, Ministry of
Finance

Company Stock holding in percentage



unesunsl Inez@Iun Mr. Thanathip Vidhayasirinun

N9UNNTRATE Independent Director
81g 44 1 Age 44 years
szAnnsAneN Education

o Uimegsiaumiudin Comell
University, USA
- P
o AenasuAaniuvIugia @l
Cornell University, USA
lsziRnsvineu
iaqifu
- . I
o N99UNITBATT LUA. Tlu-lne (EuAitiess
uaud PauARSATL
ve -
o NIIUNTFANNNT VAN, LranAinea
<
AR
- . -
* NITUNMILETMNT BIANNTAMAMNTTULNL
o NITUNNTLEMS LAN MANVEWERTUT
o N99UNN9LEME van. WiTudh
o NITUNNTTANTTUNTEAANT
e e e
vananning ausdunlilnaa

i 4 P
mmummﬂwu'l.umw

e MBA Finance, Cornell University - USA
e M.S. Electrical Engineering, Cornell

University - USA

Experiences

Current

¢ Independent Director, Sino-Thai

Engineering and Construction Plc.

* Managing Director, Sage Capital Co., Ltd.
Past

e Executive Director, Forest Industry
Organization

¢ Executive Director, Finansa Securities
Co., Ltd.

¢ Executive Director, Finansa Co., Ltd.

e Senior Executive Vice President, Cathay

Capital Co., Ltd.

Company Stock holding in percentage
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Mr. Masthawin Charnvirakul

Director

Age 39 years

Education

e MBA. International Business, University
of Southern California - USA

e B. Business Administration,
Chulalongkorn University

Experiences

Current

* Director, Sino-Thai Engineering and
Construction Plc.

* Director and Managing Director, STP & |
Plc.

* Director and Managing Director, STIT

Co., Ltd.

Past

* Marketing Manager, Siam Cement -

Dow Chemical Joint Venture

Company Stock holding in percentage

o 1.67 %

Family relationship

* Anilrat’” s Brother
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Mrs. Sanongnuch Charnvirakul

Director

Age 43 years

Education

* B. Political Science, Thammasat
University

Experience

Current

« Director, Sino-Thai Engineering and
Construction Plc.

e Director, HTR Corporation Ltd.

* Managing Director, Stacey
International Co., Ltd.

Company Stock holding in percentage

e 1604 %

Family relationship

e Sanong’s Daughter
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Mrs. Anilrat Nitisaroj
Director
Age 35 years

Education

e MBA. Finance & Strategy Sloan School

of Management Massachusetts
Institute of Technology USA

¢ B. Business Administration,
Chulalongkorn University

Experiences

Current

e Director Sino-Thai Engineering and
Construction Plc.

e Commercial Manager STP & | Plc.

Past
e Commercial Manager Clough Sino-Thai

Co., Lid.

Associate Manage AlG Investment
Corporation (Asia) Ltd, and AIGIC
(Thailand) Ltd.

Analyst - Direct Investment AIG
Investment Corporation (Asia) Ltd, and

AIGIC (Thailand) Ltd.

Business Development Officer Sino-Thai

Engineering and Construction Pic.

Assistant Auditor Emst & Young Bangkok
Office Limited

Company Stock holding in percentage

e 1.67 %

Family relationship

¢ Masthawin’ s Sister
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Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien

Director

President

Chairman of the Executive Committee

Age 59 years

Education

* SPP Certificate, National Defence College of
Thailands

* Executive MBA Chulalongkom University

e Graduate Diploma in Management of Government
and Private Sectors King Prajadhipok’s Institute

¢ B.S Engineering,Chiang Mai University

Experiences

Current

« Director,President and Chairman of the Executive
Committee Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction

« N9TUNNT NITUNSEIANIE.UTZEILNSTUNNTLEMS
una. dlu-ne 15UALTeR waus PauanFAdu

o nesuNTg an.dilain dlu-ne Sudideds weud Plc.
ADUANTATL « Director, DKK Sino-Thai Engineering Co., Ltd.

« N93UNNS AunALgRAMNsTUNaadingly « Director,Thai Contractors Association Under H.M.The
Wi:uiui’\“gﬂﬁuﬁ King's Patronage

bl Past

o WEnauAl ThAnsINANEAMNTTUANART e Director and Chairman,Chiang Mai University Alumni
U Anendedall Association,Chiang Mai University

¢ Director, PP Coral Co., Ltd.
« Director, STP & | Plc.
* Senior Executive Vice President Operation Division,

n93uNs Uan.i.W.Aa%a Taain

N99UN"S LA.LoATN uaud la

nesuNesaNiansaEuLfIRne LA dlu-lng
BuAiilede uoud rauaniadu

Andrunsfiariuluudem

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Plc.
Company Stock holding in percentage
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UNEITWUS ARUNDY UszAAnnsvineu Mr. Woraphant Chontong Experiences
N97UNNT 1aqifu Ditecion Current
N9UNTLBMNT « N9TUNNT, NITUNITLEMNS, NIIUNNGTD o « Ditector, Execufive Committes, SEVP.

Financial and Administrative Division,

HiANsaneUNIIRULAZLES LA,

nﬁumﬁaqQﬁ"ﬂmsmﬂmumiﬁuuaz SEVP. Financial and Administration

N Fu-lne Buditlee woud reuansadu o
UITNIT Division

N97UNNT LAN. 18 7 8% Plc.
Age 56 years

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction

a7¢ 56 11

N97UNNT LAN. AALA Thu-Tne EuALTeds Director, HTR Corporation Ltd.

sziRnnsAnn Education

Director, DKK Sino-Thai Engineering Co.,
Ltd.

N93uNg Uan. Az @Wsznelne)

o Usznetlenmsduge nisuSvsiAsgna * Certificate in Management of Public

97N LN, nuilFeaiaainnd

angrudmILTinEvITsalge q‘uﬁ 5 Economy for High-Level Management,

o v 3 o T Director, Chiyoda (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
annifunszinindn o N93UN"5 WAN. Hadlszanenl King Prajadhipok’s Institute eea@ b

| o v a o
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Director, Patumwan Real Estate Co.,

Ltd.

e MPA. Public Policy & Project

Fysrnauenansuvniigia aoniu

TudniaLmsmans Management, NIDA

» Director, Kijprachatanee Co., Ltd.

Bynnvndisemanitiugin @annieidu « BBA. (Finance & Banking), Thammasat

NIAUNANT) WVTINENSEIRTTUATART University Company Stock holding in percentage
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Executive Committee
ACUZNSSIUNISUSKAS

Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien President
n wetaan fafadnaies NFIUNTEIANTT
Mr. Woraphant Chontong Senior Executive Vice President Financial & Administration Division
u UIEIFTRUS  Faunas miumiimQ%’mmimamumiﬁuLLa:u??Wﬁ
Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni Senior Executive Vice President Operation Division
B wEnAgil AT ﬁémﬂiimmafé'%’mmimamuﬂﬁiﬁma?
Mr. Varait Kusolmanomai Senior Vice President Operation Division 1
wiendy nAaulul éﬂhﬁﬂﬁm’ﬁ%ﬁmmiﬁqmmﬂﬁaﬁﬂWa? 1
Mr. Chanchai Thanrukprasert Senior Vice President Operation Division 2
u ueanoyde a195nissiasy éﬂi’aﬂﬂiimﬂﬂi%’?\fﬂﬂﬂid’lud’]uﬂﬁ‘]ﬁﬂ’]i 2
Mr. Prasert Kongkauroptham Senior Vice President Marketing Division
n uelsziasy ALANTNESTY éﬂhmﬁumié%’mmidauqﬁumimmm
Mr. Teeraphong Wichiranon Senior Vice President Administration Division and Acting for Senior Vice
UIEFINIA  FTFIUUR President Technical & Development
HIENITUNIEIANTAILNULENIS UazFNENISEIEnNsTUNIEIANTT
| = >
ATUNUNAUALAZWERIUN
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Assistant to President
ACUZAUENWN

Mr. Robert L. De Sonier
Special Assistant to President
Mr. John Skinner

Assistant fo President

Mr. Robin Mullin

Assistant fo President
Dr.Yoshihiko Hisamatsu
Assistant fo President

Company Secretary
l[@ayyNI1susyn

Mr. Chaiyaporn Imcharoenkul
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Management Team
ACUZWUSKIS

n Mr. Somchai Wattanaweerachai Senior Executive Vice President Special Division
WeduIne TRz de $0INITUNITHIANTIMUAINI AL
n Mr. Worachat Suwasin Vice President Operation Department 1
WEsdnT oAU Hannsuefiimnas 1
B Mr. Pheera Nakwimol Vice President Operation Department 2
ey A Hannnsuefiimnas 2
Mr. Thepnikorn Junkhun Vice President Operation Department 3
n wewning Judu Hannsrhefi@ng 3
Mr. Somkid  Siriapinun Vice President Operation Department 4
B UNBANAN AFRATUN Hannnsuefimnas 4
Mr. Rakesh Kalia Vice President Operation Department Special Project
n WEsUNT NLAE HannnsuefiAntsiasenisiuaw
Mr. ViTo?n Salilampai !ice Prelsidin’r Engineering
wenad aqadnln HANNTHNEIAINT T
n Mr. Charkphan Leelaporn Vice President Construction Service Department
UEANTWUE  Aanng HAPNNIRNELTNNTUNEAT
n Mr. Somjade U-Snit Vice President Estimation Department
weauant agatin Hannnsetlszunusian
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Mr. Pairat  Sushatawat
welndy guinzimil

Mr. Somsog Thongsorngleeb
WEAuAA nastaunay

Mrs. Patcharee Suchewaboripont
TN R D TN

Mr. Pong-Aik Tanphanich
UEWaEan  AuwtY

Mrs. Chatra Punnarujawong
UNERT Yeunuganed

Mrs. Jaikoew Tejapijaya
uelauia iy

Mr. Surachart  Owcharoenporn
UILATINA 1DNATYNS

Vice President yProcuremenT Department
HAnN9RedaTe

Vice President Business Development Department
HAnNsReiAILNgsTia

Vice President Human Resources Department
HARNNTHNEMTNENTY ARG

Vice President Administration Department
HAnnsEegenas

Vice President Financial & Investment Department
HAPNNTHNENTRULAZNNTAY

Vice President Accounting Department
HAnnsue oy

Vice President Information Technology Department
Hannnsihemnaluladansaume
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Shareholders’ Structure

lhsyasngfioru

SO

As of the latest registration book closing on October 7™, 2010, the 10 largest shareholders are:

nauifarunfieiugean 10 91e o iydseTagteru Tui 7 nainu 2553

No.

Tagnaviu
UWAUDIYY ‘]ﬂﬂﬁ‘iqa (Mrs.Sanongnuch Charnvirakul)
U3t Inendudnens 910m (Thai NVDR Company Limited)
UBS AG SINGAPORE BRANCH-PB SECURITIES CLIENT CUSTODY
WIEAUAL ANAATNA (Mr. Anutin Chamvirakul)

VNI A95M1IADA (Mrs. Patchara Jiraratsatit)

v
a aa

U5H AR WAR 311A (Equity Plus Company Limited)
UNALID BLUATE (Mrs. Nitsanart Anantachai)
UELIANIY 1103808 (Mr.Masthawin Chamviraku)

¢ aa

yvatiadmil fRanleatl (Mrs. Anilrat Nitisaroj

AMERICAN INTERNATIONAL ASSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED-APEX

»Soe

uaniny

189,845,280
88,941,180
57,529,500
55,650,100
47,551,590
35,702,210
23,047,300
19,800,000
19,800,000

17,000,000

%

16.004

7.498

4.850

4.691

4.009

3.010

1.943

1.669

1.669

1.433
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Management Structure
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The company’s management structure can be divided as
follows:

1. The Board of Directors

2. The Audit Committee

3. The Executive Committee

4. The President

1. The Board of Directors

There are 10 directors in the Board of Directors:
First - Last Name Title

1. Professor Rawat Chamchalerm Chairman of The

Board of Directors*

2. Police General Sanong Wattanavrangkul Director
3. Dr. Chumpol Phornprapa Independent Director
4. Mr. Chamni Janchai Independent Director
5. Police Lieutenant General Jate Mongkulhutthi Independent Director
6. Mr.Suchai Poopichayapongs Independent Director
7. Mr. Thanathip Vidhayasirinun Independent Director
8. Mr. Masthawin Charnvirakul Director
9. Mrs. Sanongnuch Charnvirakul Director
10. Mrs. Anilrat  Nitisaroj Director
11. Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien Director
12. Mr. Woraphant Chontong Director

* Note: According to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
No. 16/2010 resolved that Professor Rawat Chamchalerm had
been appointed to be the new Company Director effective
April 23°, 2010. In addition, the Board of Directors Meeting No.
2/2010 resolved that Professor Rawat Chamchalerm had been
appointed to be the new Chairman of the Board of Directors
effective June 3", 2010 onwards.

Authorized Directors

Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien, the President, has been
authorized to sign and stamp, with the company’s seal,
or Mr. Masthawin Charnvirakul, Mr. Woraphant Chontong,
Mrs. Sanongnuch Charnvirakul 2 of 3 Directors have been
authorized to sign and stamp, with the company’s seal.

The Authorities and Duties of the Board of Directors
e To perform their duties by utfilizing their knowledge, skills,
and experiences in order to benefit the company’s
business operation. Their duties must be in compliance
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General Meeting of shareholders. Furthermore, the Board
of Directors shall manage the company’s business in the
best inferest of the company and its shareholders;

e To consider and approve the company’s policies, operation
strategy. operation plans, and working capital of its business
proposed by the management;

e To supervise the management fo effectively conduct the
business under the company’s policies and request the
management fo report the issues that has significant affects
to the company’s operation. The Board of Directors shall
assure that all related parties” fransactions are conducted
in accordance with the regulations of the Office of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock
Exchange of Thailand. In case of necessity, the Board
of Directors will require the management o hire advisors
in order tfo give opinions for the management’s decision
in specialized issues which have significant affect on the
company’s operation;

e To supervise the company and to set up effective internal
control, and Infernal Audit system. Infernal Audit manager
shall report directly to the Audit Committee; and

e Independent Directors shall independently consider
company’s matters related to strategies, management,
appointing directors, and issues that have significant affects
tfo the Company for the benefit of the shareholders and
shall have an access to adequate financial and business
information to perform their duties.

Composition and Appointment of the Board of Directors

According to the Company’s Article of Association, the
Board of Directors shall consist of not less than five directors
and the number of directors shall not be less than a half of
the total number of such directors who must have residency
in Thailand. The Annual General Meeting of shareholders shall
approve the number of Directors.

The company has no Nomination Committee to appoint
the Directors. Meanwhile, the nomination of Directors shall be
made by selecting a person who has proper qualifications
to perform the duties of the Board of Directors. The Board of
Directors shall nominate such qualified person(s) and propose
them to the Annual General Meeting of shareholders to consider
for appointment by a resolution. To vote for an individual
Director, the company does not use the cumulatfive voting
method but using one share one vote for each proposal. The
nominees whose votes are chronological order ranging from
the top to the last shall be elected as a Director.

In the Annual General Meeting of shareholders, one-third
of the directors shall retire from their positions. If their number is
not a multiple of three, then use the nearest number to one-

directors besides retirement, the Board of Directors shall select
a person to replace such vacancy and he/she shall retain
his/her position as long as the vacating Director would have
retained the same lawfully had no vacancy occurred.

The number of Directors” attendance shall constitute the
quorum for every meeting of the Board of Directors, which
more than a half of the total number of Directors at that time.

If there is an agenda considering the Directors’ election,
all votes will be individual for each Director.

The proportion of the Board of Directors can be classified
as follows:

1. Directors from Charnvirakul Family 4

2. Independent Directors 6
3. Executive Directors 2
Total 12

Pursuant to the resolution of the Board of Directors’
meeting No. 4/2008, the Board of Directors resolved the
acknowledgement of the resignation of Mrs. Tassanee
Charnvirakul from the position of Chairman of the Board and
Director of the Company. A resolution was passed to make
changes for the names and numbers of authorized Directors
on behalf of the company in compliance with such resignation
as follows: "Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien, the President, has
been authorized to sign and stamp with the company’s seal,
or Mr. Masthawin Charnvirakul, Mr. Woraphant Chontong, Mrs.
Sanongnuch Charnvirakul 2 of 3 Directors have been authorized
to sign and stamp with the company’s seal.” The company had
changed the name of authorized Directors at the Commercial
Department, Ministry of Commerce on December 4™, 2008.

2. The Audit Committee

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 6/1999
resolved the appointment of Audit Committee and three
Independent Directors who are qualified under the rules and
regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, fo perform as
a member of the Audit Committee as the followings:

First - Last Name Title
1. Mr. Chamni Janchai Chairman
2. Pol. L. Gen. Jate Mongkulhutthi Member
3. Mr. Suchai Poopichayapongs Member

Authorities and Duties of The Audit Committee

According to the resolution of the Board of Directors’
Meeting No0.3/2008 on September 3, 2008, the meeting
approved the change of scope of duties and responsibilities of
the Audit Committee. This was completed in order to comply
with the Stock Exchange of Thailand’s Nofification on the revision
of scope of work for the Audit Committee. The changes are
as follows;
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. Review the accuracy and sufficiency of the Company’s
financial report.

. Review the appropriateness and efficiency of the internal
control and the internal audit system; consider the
independence of the Internal Audit Section including
appointment, rotation, termination for the head of the Internal
Audit Section, and any other works related to the internal
audit.

. Review the Company’s operatfion to comply with the
Securities and Exchange Acts, Regulations of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, and any relevant laws.

. Consider, select, and nominate an independent person
to act as the Company’s Independent Auditor, including
remuneration recommendation and arrange a meeting for
the Audit Committee to meet with the Independent Auditor
without the presence of executive management atf least

once a year.

. Consider connected transactions, and the tfransactions

involving conflict of inferest, to ensure that they are in

compliance with the related laws and Regulations of the

Stock Exchange of Thailand, reasonably, to maximize the

Company’s benefits.

. Prepare and disclose the “Reports of Audit Committee”

approved by the Chairman of the Audit Committee in the

annual report as follows:

e Comments on the accuracy, completeness, and
credibility of the Company’s financial report.

o Comments on the sufficiency of the Company’s internal
confrol system.

e Comments on the Company’s business operatfions
in compliance with the Securifies and Exchange
Commission Act, Regulations of the Stock Exchange of
Thailand, and other laws relevant to the Company’s
business.

o Comments on the suitability of the Independent Auditor.

e Comments of the fransactions involving conflicts of
interest.

e The disclosure of the number of Audit Committee
meetings and the individual meetfing atfendance of
the Audit Committee.

e Comments or notices that have arisen as the Audit
Committee performed its duties as defined in its charter.

e Other comments or transactions that shareholders and
investors should be informed under the duties and
responsibiliies of the Audit Committee commissioned
by the Board of Directors.

e Other concermns that should be made available to
shareholders and the investors within the scope of duties
and responsibilities assigned by the Board of Directors.

7. To undertake other assignments for the Board of Direc-

tors, with the approval of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is directly responsible to the Board
of Directors according to the Authorities and Duties of the
Audit Committee assigned by the Board of Directors, while the
responsibilities for the Company’s operations toward third parties
are still be vested in the Board of Directors. The term in being a
member of the Audit Committee shall have the same status of

being on the Board of Directors.
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Details on the meeting attendance of each Directors of the Board of Directors

The Board
' The Audit
The Annual of Directors )
. ) ) ) Committee
Directors Title General Meeting of Meeting Meetin
Shareholders (2010) (Total of & g
) (Total of 5 times)
fimes)
Professor Rawat Chamchalerm Chairman of the Board Absent 4/5 -
of Directors
Police General Sanong Director Absent 4/5 -
Wattanavrangkul
Dr. Chumpol Phornprapa Independent Director Attend 4/5 -
Mr. Chamni Janchai Independent Director and Attend 5/5 5/5
Chairman of the Audit Committee
Police Lieutenant General Jate Independent Director Attend 4/5 5/5
Mongkulhutthi and Member of the Audit
Committee
Mr. Suchai Poopichayapongs Independent Director Attend 5/5 5/5
and Member of the Audit
Committee
Mr. Thanathip Vidhayasirinun Independent Director Attend 5/5 -
Mr. Masthawin Charnvirakul Director Attend 5/5 -
Mrs. Sanongnuch Charnvirakul Director Absent 2/5 -
Mrs. Anilrat  Nitisaroj Director Attend 5/5 -
Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien Director and Chairman Attend 5/5 - (@)
of Executive Committee E
Mr. Woraphant Chontong Director and Chairman Attend 5/5 5/5 9
of Executive Committee %2'
S,
, ) ) N
Details on shares holding of each Director gi'_
-
) >
: ) Number of Proportion of
Directors Title Q
Shares Shares (%) =
(o
Professor Rawat Chamchalerm Chairman of the Board of Directors - - g)
<
Police General Sanong Wattanavrangkul Director - - Q
>
Dr. Chumpol Phornprapa Independent Director - - %
Mr. Chamni Janchai Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee - - 8
Police Lieutenant General Jate Mongkulhutthi  Independent Director and Member of the Audit Committee 10,000 0.0017%
Mr. Suchai Poopichayapongs Independent Director and Member of the Audit Committee - -
Mr. Thanathip Vidhayasirinun Independent Director 10,000 0.001%
Mr. Masthawin Charnvirakul Director 19,800,000 1.667%
Mrs. Sanongnuch Charnvirakul Director 189,845,280 16.047%
Mrs. Anilrat  Nitisaroj Director 19,800,000 1.667%
Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien Director and Chairman of Executive Committee - -
Mr. Woraphant Chontong Director and Chairman of Executive Committee - -
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3. The Executive Committee

According to the company’s notification No. Sor. Tor.-Kor.
Sor. 20/2007 dated on November 29, 2007, It was found that
expediting fo newly improve the organization chart in order that the
company management actions can be carried out in an orderly
and suitable way while coping with the growth of the company,
resulted in the appointment of the Executive Committee regarding
to the Announcement No. Sor. Tor.-Kor. Sor. 22/2007 dated on
December 3%, 2007. Therefore the Executive Commiftee consists

of 7 people as the followings:

First - Last Name Title
1. Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien Chairman of Executive
Committee
Mr. Woraphant Chontong Executive Committee
Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni Executive Committee
. Varatt Kusolmanomai Executive Committee
Mr. Chanchai Thanrakprasert  Executive Committee

Mr. Prasert Kongkaoroptham  Executive Committee

SUNCACIRS R COS
<
=

Mr. Teerapong Vichiranon Executive Committee
Authorities and Duties of The Executive Committee
e To plan, set up regulations, and manage the company
according to the Board of Directors’ policies;
e To operate the company’s business according o the policies
approved by the Board of Directors; and
e To monitor the performance of all company’s departments
by arranging the Executive Committee meeting at least 1-2
times a month, setfing the executive committee secretary
to record the minute of meeting, and proposing the minute
of meeting to the Board of Directors meeting.

4. The President

Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien is the President.
Authorities and Duties of the President

The authorities and duties of the President were defined
in Board of Directors meeting No. 3/2002 on May 10, 2002,
which resolved that the President shall be responsible for
conducting and supervising the company’s business operations
in accordance with the policy approved by the Board of
Directors. Furthermore, the President shall fulfill when such actions
are required by the laws, rules and regulations of the governing
agencies to get approval from Board of Directors” meeting and/
or Shareholders’ meetings. The President shall have a power
tfo appoint other person(s) as a proxy to act on his behalf to
manage and conduct company’s business. President and his
proxy have no right fo approve any business activities with any
persons who have conflicts of interests with the company and

its subsidiary.

5. The Executives
The lists are shown as stated in the item “The Executive
Committee”.

6. The Company Secretary
Mr. Chaiyaporn Imcharoenkul
Authorities and Duties of the Company Secretary
1. Preparing and keeping the following documents:

e A register of directors;

e A noftice calling director’s meetings, minutes of meeting
for the Board of Directors and the annual report of the
Company;

e A notice calling shareholder’s meeting and the minutes
of shareholders” meetings;

2. Keeping a report on inferest filed by a director(s) or an
executive(s);

3. Performing any other acts as specified in the notification
of the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

7. The Auditor
Ernst & Young Office Limited
e  Other relationship towards the company: None
e Number of years of being the Auditor for the company:
10 years

8. Independent Director

The list of Independent Directors is as follows:
. Professor Rawat Chamchalerm Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

Independent Director

. Mr. Chamni Janchai
. Pol. Lt. Gen. Jate Mongkulhutthi
. Mr.Suchai Poopichayapongs

. Dr. Chumpol Phornprapa Independent Director

o O N LW N —

. Mr. Thanathip Vidhayasirinun Independent Director
The Definition of Independent Director

“Independent director” of the Company is a person
whose qudlifications meet the requirements of the Securities
and Exchange Commission No.SEC.Gor.(Vor.) 32/2008 on the
improvement of Qualification, Duties, and Responsibilities on

Independent Directors and members of the Audit Committee,

as follows:

1. Holding shares no more than 1% of the total voting shares
of the Company, its parent company, its subsidiaries, its
associated companies, or a related juristic entity with
potential conflicts, including of shares held by related
persons'.

2. Not being an executive director’, an employee, or a
company consultant who receives a regular salary or a

1

2

“Related Person” means a person dened under the Section 258 of Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535.
“Executive director” means any director who holds an executive position, or any dir ector who is in charge of any actions deemed to be taken by executives,

and shall include any authorized director except where it can be demonstrated that such authorized director, jointly with other directors, signs on tfransactions

which have already passed board’s approval.
3

“same-level subsidiary” means any two or more subsidiaries under the same parent company.
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.

controling person of the Company, its parent company,
its subsidiaries, its associated companies, its same-level
subsidiaries’, or a related juristic entity with potential
conflicts (at present or 2 years before the appointment).
Not being a person who has a blood or a legal relationship
of a parent, spouse, sibling, and child including a
child” spouse, to any execufive management, major
shareholder, a controlling person, or a person whom has

6. Not having any 6Ther characteristics that may potentially

prevent from giving independent opinions.

. An independent director, with qualification under

Clauses 1- 6, may be assigned by the Board of Directors
to make the collective decisions on the operatfion of
the Company, its parent company, its subsidiaries, its
associated companies, its same-level subsidiaries3, or a
related juristic entity with potential conflicts

been proposed to be an executive management or a
The remuneration of the Directors and the Executives
Money Remuneration;

controlling person of the Company or ifs subsidiaries.

4. Not having a business relationship and not being a
professional service provider according to the requirements
of the Office of Securities and Exchange Commission e The amount of Baht 4,320,000 was the meeting
No.SEC.Gor.(Vor.) 32/2008 on the improvement of
Qualification, Duties, and Responsibilities on Independent

Aggregated remuneration for 12 directors in 2010

allowance and remuneration
Aggregated remuneration for 7 executive directors and

Directors and members of the Audit Committee. executive managers in 2010

5. Not being a director who has been appointed as
the representative of the Company’s director, major
shareholder, or shareholder who is related to a major

e The amount of Baht 28,951,000 was the salary and
bonus

Other Remuneration;
shareholder of the Company.

e None
Details on Money remuneration for each Director in 2010
Unit : Baht
Meeting Meeting
Directors Title AIIowoncle for Allf)wonce Tor Ernoluments Aggrego’reld
Board of Directors Audit Committee Remuneration
Meeting Meeting
Professor Rawat Chamchalerm  Chairman of the Board of 140,000 - 400,000 540,000 (@)
Directors =
Police General Sanong Director 40,000 - 200,000 240,000 (@)
=
Wattanavrangkul %t;.
Dr. Chumpol Phornprapa Independent Director 100,000 - 200,000 300,000 '%
Mr. Chamni Janchai Independent Director and 100,000 200,000 400,000 700,000 ,9_’,.
Chairman of the Audit g
Committee 0
Police Lieutenant General Jate Independent Director 80,000 100,000 200,000 380,000 g_
Mongkulhutthi and Member of the Audit o
Committee C<>
Mr. Suchai Poopichayapongs Independent Director 100,000 100,000 200,000 400,000 ‘.2
and Member of the 8
Audit Committee CS)
Mr. Thanathip Vidhayasirinun Independent Director 100,000 - 200,000 300,000 o
Mr. Masthawin Charnvirakul Director 100,000 - 200,000 300,000
Mrs. Sanongnuch Charnvirakul Director 40,000 - 200,000 240,000
Mrs. Anilrat  Nitisaroj Director 100,000 200,000 300,000
Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien Director and Chairman 100,000 - 200,000 300,000
of Executive Committee
Mr. Woraphant Chontong Director and Chairman 100,000 - 200,000 300,000
of Executive Committee
Total 1,120,000 400,000 2,800,000 4,320,000
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Money Remuneration of Subsidiary;

Aggregated remuneration for 1 Directors of the company’s subsidiary in 2010

e The amount of Baht 5,000 was the meeting allowance

Details on Money Remuneration for Directors of the Company’s Subsidiary in 2010

Unit:Baht
Directors Title Meeting Allowance for Subsidiary
Mr. Woraphant Chontong Director 5,000
Total 5,000

Notice: the subsidiary is HTR Company Limited where the company holds 80.90% of its shares.

Employee
Employee Structure

The company has 1,027 employee as of December 317,
2010 and it can be divided into 2 groups, which are the
operation division 784 people and the administration division
243 people.

The company concerns about human resources
management, therefore, it has its plans to manage human
resources in case of the adequate manpower in compliance
with workload and project that added up every year.

Employee Benefits

The tfotaling amount of Salaries and Bonuses of the
employee in 2010 is 480,766,447 Baht and the provident fund
is amounting to 15,080,205 Baht.

N

¥

-- || LIR]

A change in the number of employees with significant
implication or labor dispute (during the past 3 years)

During the past 3 years there was neither a change
in the number of the company employees with significant
implicatfion nor labor dispute.

Human Resources Management Policy

Human Resources Management Policy of the company
is obviously stated that the company shall take good care
of its employee including employee benefits such as salaries
and welfare facilities in accordance with Labor Market and
other competitors. The company shall freat its employee with
justice and equality under the Company of Association, Labor
Act and Social Morality. In addition, the company shall not
only take responsibility for its employee safety and harmonic
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working atmosphere but also create teamwork amongst them.
Besides, it has the fraining roadmap for supporting its employee
both by individual and by type of career paths in order to
improve their working efficiency and working proficiency thus
the company can be added up info another level of learning

organization eventually.

Personnel Planning

Each year, the company shall estimate the required
quantity of employees for supporting current projects and other
projects that might occur in the future. The main purpose of
this is to obtain potential qualified personnel in the appropriate

time.

Personnel Recruitment and Selection

Recruiting knowledgeable, capable, and qualified people
to join with the Company is the goal of personnel recruitment.
The company has various channels of recruiting, such as
newspapers, Internet, and government organization like the
Department of Employment, Department of Manpower and
Human Resources, and job opportunities’ booths arranged
by Universities. The Company recruits people by conducting
examinations and having Competency Board interview
candidates in order to have a qudlified people whom have
the positive personality traits that we require. Traits that include
vision, feamwork, and creative thinking.

Performance Evaluation and Remuneration Management.
The company creates the performance evaluation
system by combining the individual performance along with
team working performance to be in accordance with the
company performance, and it is also the combination of
the company performance and the appropriate and fair
salary. This management shall always be developed since the
Labor Market and other competitive companies are usually
change by the time goes by. The company use evaluation

tools for example competency and KPI for Human Resources
Development,

Employees Welfare
The Company has many beneficial welfare programs for
its employees as follows;

o Welfare programs complying with Labor Law such as
Social Security Fund, Workmen’s Compensation Fund.

e Voluntary Welfare programs such as Provident Fund,
Life, and Accident Insurance, Loyalty Reward, Sino-Thai
Scholarship, Annual Health Check-Up, Uniforms, Funeral
Assistance Fund, Leaves i.e.; holiday leave and personal
leave, and Performance bonus. Additionally, the Company
provides free drinking water, Fitness Center, restrooms,
and basic over the counter medication.

Learning and Personnel Development Policy
The company has always concerned about training

roadmap and supported the employee in every level on
providing the fraining course in which they are inferest or
the most useful for their career. Therefore, the employee will
have skill, knowledge and expertise to perform their potential
as the aim of the company business plan. With learning and
personnel development policy, it will perform us well in both
at the present and lasting in the future. The development
emphasized on 3 categories as followed;

e Individual and Group Training & Development

e Career Path

e Organizational Development

Individual and Group Training & Development

The company is truly concerning upon the individual
fraining and development by using competency, personal
skill, and fechnical knowledge & technology. The company
defined the Training Road Map to each position for being their
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fraining and development frame. This method is cooperated
by Human Resources Development and the first part of
the depariment and the employee to evaluate skill and
knowledge that the employee should have. There are in
house training and outsource fraining where arranged by top
fraining center including the expertise in variety careers, i.e.
fraining with the Council of Engineers, taking training course
of The Engineering Institute of Thailand: Technical of Mega
Construction, Geotechnical Engineering and other courses
such as Green Construction.

The company arranges In-House fraining especially for
the group of similar positions both in operatfion division and
administration division every year. Such training courses will
improve working potfential for the employee, for example,
Construction Management program, English for Engineers
program, Presentation Skill program, Safety Workshop program,
Leadership program and How to perform as a Teamwork
program. In addition, the company also set up a short
tferm course like Mini-MBA for employee in level of Junior
Management feam to develop their management skill by
cooperating with Thammasat University.

The company has not only developed employee of
operation division and administrative division but it also has
a skill development for labors and construction workers by
sending them to take a course and have a standardize test
of skill development.

Skill labors in lay bricks, plaster cement, and welders
need more skill both in theory and in performing for their
neat working performance. The company contacted with
the Department of Skill Development for providing theory
of skill development through many classes arranged by the
company of each year. With all efforts that the company

tried to consistently develop their employee by aware of
Skill Development Act, the company can win a prize as an
Excellent Business in Supportive Skill Development of the Year
2008 from Department of Labor

Career Path

The company has made a career plan for each type of
work as a guideline in personnel development. Employees shall
be advanced by proper skills and knowledge in accordance
with their job fitles and duties.

Organizational Development

In order to keep steady growth, abilities in long-term
competition, and increasing of the capabilities of overall
execution, the company has ifs policy on organization
development in both operations and administration.

The Company aims on improving the organization into
a constant learning organization to create the excellence in
operations, and to build up core values of understanding,
acquiring, and sharing knowledge. The company supports
these ideas by making available to the employees a library,
the Internet, o search out valuable and pertinent information,
and seminars. Hopefully, information gained from these
venues can be passed on to the job sites. In addition, the
Company has developed the Company’s Infranet and has
encouraged employees to use the Intranet as a channel for
exchanging knowledge between internal departments and
job sites. Suggestions and feedbacks are also encouraged
and welcomed by the administrators. and we will strive for it
consistently.
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Health, Safety and Environmental Concerns

The company always holds to policy for work achievements go along with the
safety of the employees and the surrounding communities. Our safety awareness is
about virtue and humanity, not just followed by law and regulation and all workers
have equally right in safety policy. Therefore, safety is continuously one of the
company’s values. Management and employees have mission to be responsible
for the safety of their subordinates level, which is not the adding work but safety

is the first priority work to be accomplished and always concern.
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Safety Policy:

1.

The company will promote and
create safety and environmental
awareness at work.

The company recognizes that all
workers are valuable resources of
the company. Thus safety for worker
is one of our most important policies.
The company will support the
creation of safety at work by
providing safe tools and a safe work
environment, by promoting safety
knowledge among workers and
motivating them to practice safety
at work.

The company has appointed the
committee for safety, occupational
health, and surrounding condition in
work performance to create plans
and projects about safety, as well
as administer and develop these
projects in order to bring about
efficient results.

The company requires all supervisors
to be responsible for the safety
of their subordinates at work,
ensuring that they strictly follow
the procedures and rules of safety
established by the company.

The company requires all workers
to be responsible for creating
safety for themselves and their
colleagues; and to follow all safety
rules established by the company.
The company requires all employees
to be responsible for preventing
damage and protection for the
environment. In addition, all
employees must stay alert and
identify any hazardous acts that
could possibly effect the environment
as stated in the relative laws. The
company will be responsible for
creatfing environmental awareness
in accordance with the National

Environmental Policy.

Key elements of safety plan

Safety, health and Environmental

Standard (Company HSE manual)

and

Safety training programs for all staff
position

New employee orientation and
fraining program

Safety promotion and incentive
program

Job safety analysis (JSA) program
for all major and high risk work
Accident investigation and reporting
system with follow up corrective
measures

Accident statistic and analysis
Preparing work method statement
and accident prevention method
Safety audit and inspection

The company has many solutions

regulations on safety and

environmental concerns besides the

safety management can be divided into

2 groups as followed:

1.

Safety Plan represents how Sino-Thai
manages safety. It is consisting of
safety orientation for the new safety
officers, tfraining course for chief
officers / foreman, appointment
of Safety Committee, fools and
equipments verification, machinery
verification, indicate hazardous
and risk evaluation, make a safety
regulations manual, safety talk/
toolbox talk, operating area
verification, emergency plan and
firefighting plan, and safety activities
efc.

Safety Procedure controls safety
operating system fo perform
as defined by the company. It
consisting of making the construction
area, making the warning board
and signal alarm, wearing individual

safety suif, working in the high
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areaq, falling down prevention, working with scaffolding, working
with excavating / a deep hole, working with machinery, working
in an unventilated area, operating with electrical, working with
the hard tools, traffic management, work permission system,
and house keeping etc.
However, the company has always verified and evaluated safety
procedures in order to develop such results and the safety procedures
to become more potential and safe, so the company can deliver
all projects with care and safety that meet the customers’ needs.

In 2010, the company celebrated successful of safety at work
for job sites as following:

e 7 million man-hours without lost fime accidents that cause
absence of employees at TPO project

e 6 million man-hours without lost time accidents that cause
absence of employees at construction job site named SE project.

e 5 million man-hours without lost time accidents that cause
absence of employees at construction job site named SPE-II
project and HP project where it is located at Asia Industrial
Estate, Rayong province.

e 2 million man-hours without lost fime accidents that cause
absence of employees at GLOW power plant project where it
is located at Map Ta Phut Industrial Estate, Rayong province.

e 500,000 man-hours without lost fime accidents that cause
absence of employees at construction job site named PUI
project where it is located at Asia Industrial Estate, Rayong
province.

Mainly purposes of these celebrations are encouraging the
fundamental of safety, health, and environment to the employees
and creating the sense of safety awareness and performance in
order to achieve a positive reputation for its job sites and the
company. Furthermore, the company has set 1 class training
program for safety staff in management level, 6 classes training
programs for safety staff in chief officer level and 10 classes safety
seminars and frainings for engineer, supervisor and foreman.
Moreover, the company initiated a campaign of protesting drug
towards employees by random urine testing to find amphetamines
in accordance with government policy. In addition, some job sites
have arranged the alcohol screening for the workers before they
move to work in job site area and also arranged activity to support
safety, health and work environment for the year 2010 by arranging
the safety contest for job site to urge all workers o partficipate in

safety activity.
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The company has a policy called “Sino-Thai Payback
Program” which aims for returning benefits fo  society and
focuses on youth education and development. The Company
believes and considers these principles as important factors in
the development of the country. The company has commenced
this program since 2002 in commemoration of the company’s
40 year anniversary. The Company has assisted by donating
school buildings, libraries, multi-purpose buildings, scholarships,
and school supplies to various schools and communities nearby
each job site as a continuous practice every year.

In 2010, the company followed this policy by construct-
ing school buildings, libraries, multi-purpose buildings, computer
centfer, and donatfed scholarships and sports supplies to the
following 1 schools:

e Baan Hin Lat School, Buriram Province - Charnvirakuls

Building 31th was dedicated as a Library.
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1. Risk associated with Mega Projects

and Impact of company’s performance

The company may submit the
bidding document to mega projects
and the contract has to be signed with
the related organization including the
government sectors or even the private
sectors who has been received the
concession from the government. Many
people are interested in such projects
and it can be easily verified by the
public and other related organizations
of the government. These projects
may cause delay and changes, which
affect to the company’s performance.
Hence, the company ftries to reduce
these risks by revenue managing —
balancing the governmental and

private projects.

2. Risk associated with Construction
Materials Prices

The changes of material prices may
affect to the cost of construction. The
company also aware to this subject,
therefore it keeps closely inspecting

the material prices. In addition, the

company has good relationship with the suppliers, which makes the negotiation
go well.
3. Risk associated with Unbilled Receivables

Although the company completes many projects or delivers work progress on
schedule, in some cases it cannot issue invoice or collect money as stated in the
contract due to the delayed work certification from the client. In addition, the
Company, sometimes, has to operate its projects with variation/change orders
from the client without confirmation or approval of the cost estimation of the
variation. The client shall eventually accept all new costs and conditions that were
caused by the variation order but the company has to face some delay payment
until such order will finally be approved. Therefore, the company will always be
prudent in closely monitoring and to keep in close contact with the client or their

representatives.

4. Risk associated with Workforce Shortage

The Company has experienced and specialized workforce who are a significant
important resources to the Company. Personnel such as project managers, project
engineers, supervisors, and foremen’s. All are integral parts of the management of
a construction project from its beginning to its completion. Therefore, the Company
has risks regarding the shortage of the said workforce. Particularly important are
the expert, experienced engineers that the Company has employed and well
frained to be its permanent employees. The Company, therefore, has its measures
to reduce the risk of workforce shortage by motivating these personnel to work
for the Company on a long-term basis, promoting their career advancement, and

giving all employees with proper remuneration and welfare.

5. Risk associated with the deficient Labour

Labor becomes the important factor of the company. The company has an
appropriate labor management by concerning through the salary, safety and
harmonic working atmosphere. On the other hand, refer to the labor market
and manpower ratio might be unstable because of the agricultural season, then
sometimes it causes the deficient labor. In order to decrease such risk, the company
has to look for a labor substitution and also expand hiring sub-contractors ratio

gradually.

6. Risk associated with Financial Liquidity

In the construction business, adequate working capital is required for the purposes
of procurement of raw materials and wage payments. For example, if the liquidity
management is not efficient, the Company may not be able to handle new
construction projects or carry out the existing construction project to completion.
However, the Company has realized this risk and has therefore created its policy for
careful management of liquidity. Before the Company will handle any construction
project, an advance payment must be received. Despite critical situations that
has affected the construction industry, the Company sfill has financial resources

to support its business operations, with proper cost.
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7. Risk associated with Fluctuation of risk is mitigated by not relying on one

Exchange Rates project, but bidding on multiple projects,

In some consfruction projects, thus spreading the risk. Therefore, the

the Company may have to import Company’s revenue is depend upon

construction materials and equipment in - the fimeframe of new order book and

foreign currencies; and the fluctuation of  backlog order.

exchange rates may affect the cost of

the Company. Therefore, the Company 9. Risk associated with Joint Venture

has reduced the risk of fluctuation of Liabilities

exchange rates by means of financial To increase the potential of winning

management such as purchasing high value projects, the company may

through domestic suppliers or hedging enter into joint venture agreements with

with financial instruments, as may be appropriate and qualified partner(s).
necessary. With this strategy, the company will be

able to reduce its financial and project

8. Risk associated with the Timeframe of execution risks. However, the concern will

new coniract be whether these partners can actually

Future order book are hard to predict deliver what is promised and stipulated

if the bidding never materializes. Risk under the confract. To weaken this risk,

may occur because the confractor has the company will effectively analyze each

tfo carefully plan its workload in order partners’ business profile including their

to effectively plan its resources. The reliability before making any decision to

join together.
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Rights of Shareholders and Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

The company has foreseen the importance of rights and
equal freatments for all shareholders and to comply with the
Principle of Good Corporate Governance. It has henceforward
specified various guidelines rely on the rights and equitable

treatment for shareholders and stakeholders as follows:

1. Shareholders’ Meeting

The notice of shareholders” meeting had been sent to all
of shareholders. Details of the notice of shareholders” meeting
are as follows:

e Date and time, place of holding the meeting, and map is
clearly stated. The place of meeting should be convenient
for shareholders.

e All needed documents for the meetings are stated.

e Agendas are clearly stated. The company shall prepare
accurately and adequately all data, document, and
details of each agenda. Fact, reason and the Board'’s
opinion are stated in every agenda in order to clearly

inform details of each agenda to shareholders.

Annual Report 2010 81

o
C
-~
o
~
0o,
[«})
=
N
Q
=
o
=)
Q
=
(o
o
Q
<
(1)
=
=
o
>
(2]
(7




angrasdiaviuuaznisfinsagfaiuatainiieuiu
wsEniAnudiAtyetnasedunednsuesgdferuuaznig
UpiRnegferustraniisuiu Inisdvuauuimiuaznig
ANTUNN9AN Lﬁmﬂumﬁ'ﬂmaw%mm%ﬁaﬁu LLa:Lﬁl’aﬁlﬁéa’a
vunaelisunisufifesnadusssunazimifisuiunnee o

1. maszaugariu
lunsuszgugteru vsEmlasuiiunisinawmilsdeiin
Uszaugnaviulliahonu T,mﬂiuwﬁfﬁaﬁmﬂa:yu&uﬂixﬂauiﬂ
Kopsneazidndil
o UASDTU AN LLa:anﬁuﬁiunWi%’mﬂi:ﬂ;mﬁﬁj’mL@)u Inaanau
ﬁﬁlumﬁmﬂi:‘gua’]mimLﬁ?wﬁqiﬁazmn
. LLf:SqﬁqLaﬂmiﬁéaaﬁuﬁaﬂ%uamﬁuLﬁaﬁwmiﬂi:w
o udstianszmstlszgu lnedin Ansseudeya enansuas
seaziBentsznaunisdszyulunssane g egvasutiou
WiEaNe WERLTBITIATUAZINANG LAZANLTILUBINGIUNNT
13t lunsaznsznisdszyu Lﬁﬂiﬁéaaﬁumww’ﬁagaua:
seaziBenluuAazNszNsLsTueteinia
o uiEmitlnlanalvigteduuaninnuaniuwazdnonu Tael
miizqaﬂ"mﬁfmwusl,uma:miﬂi:‘gu
o vilideuauduns snaziuAlEN TNaLAUN LAz INTIAUS
Winssunisdaszetatios 1 vinwdugfuuaugiuna it
Li“]umia"’]mﬂmma:mﬂﬁun'Qaaﬁumﬂmmmﬁﬁ'w
Uszaulnsiemiad
o nikdaintszyuuazdeyadsznaunistlszayn Induilunis
Fovininilu 2 nen ﬁv’\immiwaLLﬁ:mmé'Qﬂqwﬁw%'uQaa
VUANNIA
o mikdeindszguuazdeyalsznaunistlszay neLTEm a2
Atiunsindsluiagfeuatmihneuiudszqustnaias
21 U uszgfarudsaiunsn Download wildAetintszay
LLa:53]@Haﬂi:ﬂaumaﬂi:ﬂ;mﬁv’ammiwﬂLLa:mMa"aﬂqH151'
AINNT Website 18IS 71 www.stecon.co.th 1880
Maviadae
o sl lianudiAgdudfeulunisiunsudeyanis
Uszuitoiu %ﬂéaaﬁuﬁafﬂnaLLazéaaﬁuvﬁwﬁ U3
AdlFEntunisudainuannansy seazBeaiientunis
Uszop LLaZ“IIIE]HE‘]Ji‘zﬂ’a‘l_l’ﬂ?L’ﬂ’]iﬂit‘]ﬁm%\m’]‘lﬂﬂ\lﬂﬂLLﬁZﬂW‘]:ﬂ
a1 Website 109330 7| www.stecon.coth et

82  Annual Report 2010

nstszguunndn 30 Ju Lﬁmﬂm‘[amalﬁéﬁaﬁu Han

Lmqi‘ﬂmﬁ’lLLﬁZiﬁ%ﬂﬁﬂHaaﬁi’]ﬂﬁL’)ﬁ\‘l

lunsszaugfoniu vsEndaliinisamzideuawmiin
NBUNITLIZYUINNNT 1 T, dIUTBINTaNAT LA s 28U
ﬁﬂi:ﬂ;mzLL%ﬁﬁmﬁ'ﬁ"lumﬂum:uuuuaﬁﬁ‘l‘i”jﬁ'mmmLLuusLﬁEd'
fevunsuneuataziuy wazliasAzuLAsSevdALAUINST
miﬂim;uﬁ'ﬁ’mum Tmﬂﬂi:ﬁﬁuﬁﬂixﬂ;uﬁmﬁmaﬁnmaf;hqLﬁm
wauazinzay wardnasulvgteruilonalaawiniieuiuly
miu,am\immﬁmLﬁuLLa:%’nmuﬁaﬁﬂizﬂ;ummnﬁﬂmﬁzmi
ﬂi:ﬂ;mazﬁmﬁmua uaﬂwwnﬁuLLé'aTuﬂﬁiﬂi:ﬂ;mQaaﬁunnm%v’q
U928UN9TUNNT US2E1UNTTUNTATIAABL NTTUNT NTTUNNTY
TANTT L%J”]i'wﬂiz‘gunﬂm%v’q Lﬁﬂ%’LL’NLLaZm’auﬁﬂﬂﬁm‘ﬁﬂﬁ‘:‘lw an
Fati3em hiLﬁmw:ﬂ’]iﬂi:ﬂ;uimﬂiﬂLL%'ﬂﬁtgaaﬁumméwmﬁw
LAZNNTINEZNNIUAFINgTUNNSL3E 13Nz ivuAlHiTinng
aqu?\Lwhr?]v’\mﬁmmﬂumﬂqmma

lusnenunistlsryugtenu WEndnvisnenunisLlss g
fovuiisgndanszddmasutiou Tuinanduy Fntiuaafitfuansz
gty Aow TeAnuiu FatuaziuL AxuuuRiude / Ty
e vivasmeanides TnaLatnAniiunnsdnyinesaunisszeu
Wiasaauysol ldifiu 7 Tu wdsnnisdszau uazazings
AanAvANTSNELssTnAlng uanantiuES Ay
ﬂﬁiﬂi:ﬂ;ué’méw,l,amﬁﬁ Website UBINNLEN UTHNLINN930R
Lﬁummwumiﬂi:‘qmQaaﬁuﬁﬁmmmmwaauua:ﬁw%ﬂﬁ

2. me’lwamunNnawu‘l,umﬂauaLsauwammtﬂumi N9
Uszguiflunisarmth uaz mﬂwawﬁu,nunawutaummmﬂaw
flipmantiRmunzandifssiuvinssunis
uimintiensufinestovunneeetnauniiientu uaz
LﬁlaLﬂumﬁ?lﬂmTamaiﬁﬁﬁaﬁunmwiﬁﬁiamaLauaﬁla\uﬁa‘lﬁ
AuznIsUNsRansanussiusznis sy LLa:Laua%mﬂa
ﬁﬁ@mauﬁ'ﬁmmmmmﬁﬁﬁm IivunlBiitednAns s
N9TUNSLEEN LEEMAeIfivusmdninaustlumsvigteruaue
mizmiﬂiz‘gumﬁméaaﬁuéawﬁma:Lﬂua%qmmalﬁaﬁmmi
ummaﬁ'ﬁﬂmamﬁmm“ﬁumﬁhiqrﬁhl,mﬁmﬁun’wu?ﬁw%uTmﬂ
NANINUNAINEa1 s ﬂaummmamummamaawum L@ua
tes n9use ‘nummmmmmmaLauamammmwammaﬁmma
vm@mauummm:aummammmumsaumamw fupaunns
l@ua119NsLlsTL mmsﬁn’]iﬂa’wmwﬁlaaﬁiﬂmaf«gLi“]umi:



e The company shall freely take all questions and opinions
from shareholders along with answering their questions.

e The company shall prepare sufficient proxy forms for
shareholders who cannot join the meeting by themselves.
Such proxies shall state 1 Member of Audit Committee to
attend and vote on behalf of the absent shareholders and
it should also state how fto give a vote to each agenda
in details.

e The Notice of the shareholders’ meeting will be prepared
in both Thai and English language for Thai and Foreigner
shareholders.

e The Notice of shareholders’ meeting and related
documents will be sent to shareholders at least 21
days in advance, furthermore, it can be downloaded
via company’s website www.stecon.co.th to comfort
shareholders.

e The company is concerned to inform shareholders about
the information for shareholders” meeting. To the rights
and equitable freatment, the company posted the notice
of shareholders’ meeting in details, facts and reasons of
each agenda, and the beneficial information according
to the meeting on the company’s website www.stecon.
co.th over 30 days before the meeting date. Thus, both
local shareholders and foreign shareholders can equally

reach the information and be prepared for the meeting.

Shareholders are able to register at the registration more
than 1 hour in advance before the start of the meeting. The
Chairperson shall state the procedures of voting and votes
counting prior to the casting of such votes. Votes will require
a simple majority approval vote of the shareholders preasent.
The Chairperson shall allocate adequate and proper time
for this purpose and enhance the expressing of opinions,
making inquiries about the meeting agendas and matters
in motion by shareholders on an equal basis. In addition,
the Chairman of the Board, the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, Directors, and the President shall always attend

the meeting to give explanations and answer questions within

the meeting, However, the company shall not add further
agenda without announcing to shareholders in advance. |If
there is a consideration of the appointment of Directors, the
company shall set all votes into individual for each Director.

The company prepares the minute of meeting by entfering
all the material details in such meeting whether they will
be material explanations, questions, opinions vote counting
procedures, approved/disapproved votes or voting abstention.
The minute of shareholders” meeting shall be completed within
7 days after the meeting has concluded. Upon completion,
the company shall send it to Stock Exchange of Thailand and
post it in the company’s website. The Company shall have a
proper filing system of the minutes of shareholders” meeting
where at times the minutes can be verified and used as

reference.
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2. Agenda proposition and nomination of directors

In order to comply with the good corporate governance
principles and to indicate the fair and equitable treatment
to all shareholders, the Company has prescribed the criteria
of agenda proposal and directors nomination. The details
of the following procedures; qualifications of shareholders to
propose agenda in advance or to nominate the directors,
agenda proposal, consideration procedures, the matters not
to be included as an agenda, qualifications of the company’s
directors, and the company notification, are available on the

company’s website www.stecon.co.th.

3. Internal Information Disclosure and Usage Policy

The company has its obvious policy in accordance with
the infernal information disclosure and usage policy. To prevent
the conflict of interests by pirating information that had been
disclosed or brought for disclosure or used for own benefit,
the company has come up with the rules to prevent the
usage of internal data for personal benefits of the Board of
Directors, Executives and employees. Whereas the regulations
of the company had clearly stated and defined that “Internal
Information” shall cover the information on finance, investment,
marketing, operations, and any other information related
within the Company and according to the Regulations and/
or as prescribed by law, thus, fo protect the investment of
shareholders, and assets of the Company. In any case, the
Executives, or any staff / employee who is in breach of these
Regulations, he/she shall be punished in accordance with the
Rules and Regulations of the Company and shall receive the
punishment as prescribed by the related law, in all respects.
The principles are as follows:

e The Company has acknowledged the Board of Directors
and the Executives as well as their spouses and child
or children under legal age fo be aware of their dufies
that they have the obligafion to submit reports on the
securities holding of the Company in accordance with
the Securities and Exchange Commission Nofification No.
Sor. Jor. 14/2540, Re: Preparation and Disclosure of Reports
on Securities Holding of directors, Executives and auditor
of the company which shall be strictly complied with.

e Restricting the number of Company Employees to know
the financial information specifically related to Executives.

e The Executives or employees who know of infernal

information shall not be allowed to disclose such internal

information to the third person or unrelated individuals
nor shall they sell securities of the company within one
month prior to the dissemination of financial statements
to the public.

e The company has a regulation on inflicting punishment
against any Executives and/or employees bringing forth
internal information for dissemination for use for their own
interests.

e The company has adapted information technology
system fo prevent access to company’s information
and stipulated the rights of access to the company’s
information in various levels suitably in accordance with
the responsibilities of each Executives and/or employee.
The company had an information fechnology policy that
has been used since 2006. It was created to clearly define
rules in using of computers, information technology within
the company, emphasize more secured utilities, misuse of
information technology, information technology control

systems, regulations and punishments for hackers etc.

4. Disclosure the beneficial information of Directors, Executives,
and related people to the Board of Directors

According to the Listed Company Act B.C. 2535 and the
announcement of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and the
Securities and Exchange Commission, the Board of Directors
defined best practices for Directors and Executives to disclose
their own beneficial information and so do related people to
the Board of Directors in order to operate or make the best

decision of the company.

5. Conflict of interest policy

To prevent conflict of interests of interests and to
operate business with transparency, The Board of Directors
shall not support Directors, the Executives, and employees
of the Company to make any connected transaction,
which may lead to any conflict of interests; however, in
case, any connected fransaction does occur, they must be
duly considered by the Board of Directors; and the criteria,
conditions, and procedures set forth under the Stock Exchange
of Thailand Nofification, RE: Disclosure and Other Acts of Listed
Companies Concerning the Connected Transactions, 2003

shall be strictly complied.
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Role of Stakeholders

1. Stakeholders: Best Practices for Stakeholders Policy

The Company has its clear policy on rights of stakeholders;

and has clearly established best practices for stakeholders,

whether they will be clients, dffiliates, government organizations,

employees, society, business partners, and creditors. The

Company prescribed that it shall be duty and responsibility

of all Directors, the Execufives, and employees to know and

adhere to the guidelines strictly.

Best Practices to provide for Clients:

Shall sell goods and services at fair price.

Shall sell goods and services properly in accordance with
the quantity, quality, and price as agreed upon and to
be responsible for its own commitment.

Shall take good care and provide services to all clients
equally.

Shall omit to perform any acts to control the decisions of
the clients.

Shall omit to perform any acts of attempt to increase
goods price unreasonably.

Shall treat clients and provide them with generous services,

friendliness and good spirit to one another.

Best Practices for Affiliates:

Shall omit an act of persecution to cause rivals to lose
opportunity unfairly.

Shall provide coordination in competitiveness.

Best Practices for Government Organizations:

Shall fransact business with government organizations
straightforwardly, honestly and righteously.

Shall abide by the rules of laws in business fransactions.
Shall refrain fromm making a bribe.

Shall omit to provide cooperation and support to an
official who act’s not in bad faith in any respect.

Shall refrain from giving gifts or presents to officials.
Shall provide cooperation to official organizations by
performing the duty of a good citizen.

Shall have a positive attifude and trust in government

organizations.

Best Practices for Employees:

Shall give the employees proper wages and returns.
Shall pay attention for their welfare.

Shall maintain the development to increase their
knowledge, skills and experiences; such as fraining.

Shall maintain equity on them.
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e Shall learn and understand them.
e Shall respect their rights of privacy.
e Shall have confidence and frust in them.
e Shall provide them with proper guidance
e Shall provide them with support on their conduct and in
becoming a good citizen.
Best Practices toward Society:
e Shall refrain from undertaking business detrimental fo the
society.
e Shall refrain from undertaking business, which shall harm
to natural resources and environment.
e Shall pay affention on its own business undertaking not to
cause pollufion to the surrounding area and to society.
e Shall respect the intellectual rights of other
e Shall provide cooperation to all parties in the community
for a constructive development of society.
e Shall pay attention while developing the works to see its
compatibility within such community.
Best Practices for Partners
e Shall comply with the clauses of contract between the
Company and trading partners
e Shall freat to partners not only the highest benefit for the
company but treat them with fairness also and comply
with the defined regulations.
e Shall process the procurement methods with equivalent,
fair, fransparent, and comply with the defined regulations.
o Shall keep the information of the partners in secret and do
not disseminate to other people for your own beneficiary.
Best Practices for Creditors:
e Shall treat creditors with fair
e Shall declare the accurate and adequate for creditors.
e Shall comply with the clauses of contracts between the

Company and creditors.

2. Safety, Health, and Environment Policy
The Company has realized and considered that safety,
health, and environment has become a part of the business.
All employees and operational staff shall be provided with
safety, health, and good working environment. Since human
resources are considered as the most valuable resources of
the organization, the Company has thus prescribed its policy
to provide safety, health, and environment to its employees.
All employees shall be aware and comply with the following
policies:
e The Company will promote and create safety and

environmental awareness at work.

e The company recognizes that all workers are valuable
resources of the company. Thus safety for worker is one
of our most important polices.

e The company will support the creation of safety at work
by providing safe tools and a safe work environment,
by promoting safety knowledge among workers and
motivating them to practice safety at work.

e The company will appoint the committee for safety,
occupational health, and surrounding condition in work
performance to create plans and projects about safety,
as well as administer and develop these projects in order
to bring about efficient results.

e The company will require all supervisors to be responsible
for the safety of their subordinates at work, ensuring that
they strictly follow the procedures and rules of safety
established by the company.

e The company will require all workers to be responsible for
creating safety for themselves and their colleagues; and
to follow all safety rules established by the company.

e The company will require all employees to be responsible
for preventing damage to and protection for the
environment. In addition, all employees must stay alert and
identify any hazardous acts that could possibly effect the
environment as stated in the relative laws. The company
will be responsible for creating environmental awareness

in accordance with the National Environmental Policy.

3. Social Responsibility

The company has a policy called ™ Sino-Thai Payback
Program” which aims for returning benefits to the society
and focuses on youth education and development, which
are considered the principle factors in the development of
the country. The company has commenced this program
since 2002 in commemorative celebration of the company’s
40th years anniversary by donating school building, libraries,
multipurpose building, scholarship and school supplies to
various schools indeed and communities near by job sites as
continuous practice in every year.

In 2010, the company followed this policy by constructing
school buildings, libraries, multi-purpose buildings, computer
center, and donated scholarships and sports supplies to the
following 1 schools

e Baan Hin Lat School, Burram Province - Charnvirakuls’

Building 31th was dedicated as a Library.
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Disclosure and Transparency
1. Transparency and Disclosure of Information Policy

The Board of Directors has defined the policy regarding
transparency and disclosure of information The company’s
performance shall be disclosed in both Financial Information
and Non-Financial Information, correctly, adequately,
appropriately, on timely basis and with transparency to the
general public, investors and stakeholders of the company.
Transparency and Disclosure Policy has complied with Listed
Company Act, Act and Enactment of the Stock Exchange
of Thailand, Regulations and Notifications of Securities and
Exchange Commission, and other related authorities

Furthermore, the company has disseminated beneficial
information and company’s performance both Financial
Information and Non-Financial Information such as good
corporate governance policy, code of conduct, management
structure, mission and vision, annual report, financial statements,
and press release from the company etfc., through the
company'’s website: www.stecon.co.th in both Thai and English
language. This is another way of communications between

the company and related parties

2. Investor Relations
The Board of Directors has a policy of the disclosure

of newsletters, in connection with the business and the

company’s performance both financial information and non-
financial information, the Company must correctly, adequately,
appropriately, on timely basis and with transparency provide
the general public, investors and interested persons of the
Company to know of such information. The policy on disclosure
of the Company has complied with the Public Company
Limited Act B.E.2535, Act and Royal Enactment and Related
Regulations and Notifications of Securities and Exchange
Commission and Stock Exchange of Thailand and other related
organizations.

The Company has established Investor Relations Office
to perform the duty in communicating with the investors,
shareholders, analysts, related government sector and general
public on the basis of properness and equity. In 2010, the

company arranged the Investor Relations activities as followed:;

o Company visits 48 fimes
e Roadshow 2 fimes
e Analyst Meeting 1 time
e Press Release 1 fime

The Investor Relation Office can be contacted at
Telephone No. 0-2260-1321 ext. 305, Fax No. 0-259-4427, or

E-mail: ir@stecon.co.th. In 2009, the company had 52 company
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visits and 2 analyst meetings.

In addition, the Company has provided data and
information in connection with the business performance of
the Company both financial information and non-financial
information through the Company website both in Thai and
English languages This is another example on how we can

keep the channel of communication with related parties open.

3. Directors’ Reporting

The Company concentrates on the preparation of
financial reports in compliance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles. The company has chosen proper
accounting policy and diligently practiced the disclosure of
financial information correctly, completely and appropriately.
Henceforward, the policy on the responsibilities of the Board
of Directors to financial reports are included in the Annual
Report The Board of Directors and Audit Committee have
expressed their opinions on financial statements shown in the
Annual Reports and verify that they are correct, fully detailed
and frue In addition, all financial statements are completed
in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles and adhering fo the accounting policy

The Board of Directors, the Auditor and the Audit
Committee have jointly considered the properness of the
accounting standard presently used, as an internal control, at
least once a year. In 2010, on 19th of November, the Audit
Committee and auditor jointly held a meeting concerning
the point of view of the auditor towards the financial
statements, opinions on infernal control, accounting policy
of the Company, International Financial Reporting Standards

(IFRS), and risks management.

Board Responsibilities
1. Balance of Power for Non-Executive Directors

There are a fotal of 12 directors on the Board of Directors
consisting of 10 non-executive directors, which is equivalent
fo 83.33% and 6 independent directors, which is equivalent
fo 50%. The Company is aware of the proper balancing on
the Board of Directors so that they can perform their duties

independently in the capacity of the Board directors.

2. Aggregation or Segregation of Positions:
To carry out operation management in accordance
with the principle of corporate governance, the company

has clearly separated the powers and duties between the

Chairman of the Board and the President whereby the
Chairman of the Board is a non-executive director and not

the same person holding the title of the President.

3. Remuneration for Directors and the Management:

Board of Directors has discretely and properly considered
the remuneration for each Director by considering the
accountability and expected advantages fromm each Director.
the Board of Directors shall compare the remuneration to the
general practice in the industry and set the remuneration for
Directors to be approved at the shareholders’ meeting.

The Executives shall receive the remuneration that is
linked to the performance of the company and that of each
Executive. The Board of Directors has to rely on the generally
accepted practice in the industry. Therefore the Board of
Directors shall set the remuneration, which shall encourage
the Executives to remain with the Company.

In this regard, the remuneration details for the Board of
Directors and the Executives have been disclosed in details
individually in the Annual Reports and Annual Information

Declaration Form (Form 56-1).

4. Leadership and Vision:

The Board of Directors, in accordance with good
corporate governance, has taken the responsibility to provide
a steady and sustainable growth for the Company in order
to create added value to the shareholders. The roles and
accountability of the Board of Director have been clearly
stipulated including the separation of the accountability
among the Board of Directors. Audit Committee, Executfive
Board of Directors and the President.. These are shown in the
Company infranet and Annual Reports to inform all employees
and other public.

The Board of Directors and the Executive Committee shalll
jointly cooperate and function closely with each other. To
consider and approve the creation of the Company’ s vision,
mission, strategy, goal, policy, business plan and budget in
order to ensure that the Company’ s business execution can
be carried out in an efficient and effective manner. The Board
of Directors shall consistently be updated of the Executive” s
operations regarding internal control and good corporate

governance.

5. Board of Directors Meetings:

The Company is active and constantly concerned of the
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Board of Directors Meetings because all directors understand
the importance of being aware in respect of the controls
in place and providing proper supervision of the Company’
s business Therefore, the procedures relating to directors
meetings have been made with following details:

e The Board of Directors Meetings shall be held on a regular
basis, i. e. once every quarter or a total of 4 fimes per
year. All directors shall aftend such meetings except in the
case of necessity and the number of meeting aftended
by each director shall be disclosed in the Annual Reports.

e Supported documents for a meeting shall be fully and
completely prepared. It will then be forwarded to the
Board of Directors at least 7 days prior to the scheduled
meeting date in order for the Board to be clearly informed
of the information and details of each meeting agenda.

e There must be a clear agendas for the meeting. Directors
shall be able to make motion in submitting the meeting
agenda, including any expression of their opinions, fo the
Chairman of the Board

e The minutes of meeting shall be prepared in writing and
the draft of such minutes shall be ready for submission to
the Board of Directors for consideration and scrutfiny on
the correctness of the minutes. The Board shall certify the
minutes within 14 days affer the meeting has convened
before such minutes of meeting can be acknowledged
in the next meeting.

In 2010, Board of Directors Meeting was held 5 times, The

Board of Directors concerns regarding policy, were discussed
and reviewed. The Directors ensured that all policies were
being followed and were appropriate for each circumstance
and that the laws, rules and regulations stated by Securities and
Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand.
Were followed Furthermore, the company’s performance was

revised in each quarter.

6. Committees:

The company has appointed an Audit Committee
in order to provide the company with a good corporate
governance policy . The Audit Committee gives versatility
to the management, vision and straightforward opinion on
financial reports. The company has also appointed Internal
Audit Department in order to facilitate the Management and
consult over the risks management and fo have financial
reports The company has also appointed an Internal Audit
Section in order to facilitate the Management” s policies and
to consult over risk management. In addition, it ensures that
financial reports are fully and correctly disclosed in accordance
with the related Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.
It is therefore that such financial reports shall be reliable, of
good quality and added value to the organization.

The Company has clearly described the components,
qualifications, authorization and duty of the Audit Committee
by adhering to the Best Practices Guidelines for Audit

Committee.
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In 2010, the Audit Committee held a fotal of 5 meetings
and 1 extraordinary meeting with all of Audit Committee

members attending

7. Board of Directors and Executives Training & Development

The development on Board of Directors has been made
on the aspect of knowledge, skill, and experience, in order
to increase the point of views of the directors Thus enabling
and leading the organization fowards its objectives. Directors
who completed the course from the Institute of Directors (IOD)

are as follows:

Course
Directors Completed from
10D
L Professor Rawat Chamchalerm - DAP
2. Police General Sanong - DAP
Wattanavrangkul

8 Dr. Chumpol Phornprapa - RCP
4, Mr. Chamni Janchai - DAP
5, Police Lieutenant General Jate - DAP
Mongkolhutthi - ACP

- FND

6. Mr. Suchai Poopichayapongs - DAP
- ACP

7. Mr. Thanathip Vidhayasirinun - DCP
8. Mr. Masthawin Charnvirakul - DAP
9. Mrs. Sanongnuch Charnvirakul - DAP
- FND

10.  Mrs. Anilrat  Nitisaroj - DCP
11.  Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien - DAP
12.  Mr. Woraphant Chontong - DCP

- DCP Refreshment

According to the human resources development policy,
the company has clearly stated such policy to employees
and up to the level of Executives. The company supported
employees and Executives in increasing their knowledge by
providing in-house training., seminars, and short - ferm courses
Training where they can apply their acquired knowledge to

assist manage and develop the company.

8.Good Corporate Governance Policy

The Company is aware of the importance of good
corporate governance with a strong confidence that a good
corporate governance policy will enhance excellence in areas
such as work and management operations. This will assist both
the company’ s performance and management procedures.
In doing so, investors and analysts will gain confidence in the
company In addition. Good Corporate Governance shall uplift
the shareholders’ value The .Good Corporate Governance
policy had been formed by adhering to the Principle of Good
Corporate Governance in accordance with the best practice
of listed company as stated in the guidelines of Stock Exchange

of Thailand.

The Company’s Good Corporate Governance Policies rely
on 4 items:

1. Transparency is obviously shown as a foundation for frust
amongst stakeholders and the company. Moreover,
transparency creates the company’s effectiveness and
capital market procedures. With transparency, both
shareholders and stakeholders or any other related people
shall have a fair chance in auditing the company’s
performance.

2. Integrity is a way of undertaking business with
straightforwardness honesty and with good ethics.
Financial statements and other newsletters that have
been disseminated to public and to investors should
fairly be accurate and prepared in compliance with the
company’s policies.

3. Accountability is essential for the Board of Directors and
shareholders. The Board of Directors shall be responsible
and accountable for preparing and submitting accurate
reports of the company’ s performance to the shareholders

4. Competitiveness aims for creating progress and increasing
shareholders’ value. Corporate governance shall enhance
the initiation without hinder, efficiency and the ability
of leadership and vision. Therefore this will cause the
company to have an competitive advantages amongst
others.

The company adheres to this principle of corporate
governance in operating its business. The company’s good
corporate governance policies are one of its execution
strategies to sustain business and to keep good records on
steady growth. In addition, to be frusted and believed in

operating the business, the company is always operates
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its business in compliance with rules and regulations of the
principles of good corporate governance.

According to the policy of the company, good
corporate governance becomes a main role of company’s
strategic operation strategy. The follow-up of good corporate
governance policies are appropriate and of major concern
of the Board of Directors. And are discussed in each of the
board of Director’ s Meetings. the meeting resolved that every
department/section must make a strategic plan of each own

to support the strategic plans of the company.

9. Business Ethics and Code of Conducts for Directors,
Executives, and Employees

The Company had prepared guidelines for business ethics
to be adhered to by the Directors, Executive Committee and
Employees in carrying on their missions with honestly, good
faith and equity upon the entire group of employees, clients,

partners, creditors, affiliates and stakeholders including the

general public and society. Details on the Principle of Business
Ethics are as follows:

1. Integrity: which is an act to perform duties righteously
with adherence to the principle of good morals

2. Law Abiding: which is an act to abide by laws, rules and
requirements in connection with all business fransactions.

3. Commitment to Excellence: which is a commitment to
perform duties in excellence, increase knowledge, be
actively prepared and be enthusiastic in order to better
your performance in areas of your responsibility.

4. Reputation and Morale: which is an act to build up a
good reputation and Morale of the Company This is
created by not performing any acts which may lead to
the destruction of such inter-relafionship The goal is to
perform acts that are necessarily to solve problems or
prevent any acts of improper conducts of the others.

5. Accountability: which is the responsibility to fulfill its
obligations by taking intfo consideratfion the principle of

ethics in making decision.
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. Transparency: Business transactions shall be accompanied
by adequate disclosure of information in accordance
with the laws, rules and regulations of the organizations
connected with the control and supervision of any and
all business fransactions.

. Equitable Treatment: Treatments rendered to interested
persons whether they are employees, shareholders, trading
partners, creditors and debtors, etc., shall be in a manner
of justice and equity. There shall be the disclosure to
related persons appropriately

. Responsibilities to Environment: In performing duties, there
shall be responsibilities to the environment. The principle,
rules and regulations relating to the conservation of
environment, community and society shall be complied
with.

. Safety and Occupational Health: Proceeding in accordance
with the laws and various related regulations so that
industrial standard in connection with work safety including
occupational health of the employees can be complied

with.

Avoiding Conflict of Inferest: By establishing various
controlling mechanisms. It will ensure that Directors and
Executives shall carefully and honestly perform their duties.
It will also ensure the preservation of the Company’s interest
and to provide a proper structure and balance of the Board
of Directors, which will assist in minimizing conflict” s of inferest
between the Company and the directors. In addition, the
Company has prepared the rules of Practice towards inferested
persons of the Company The Company has announced and
informed the Principle. Business Ethics and Rules of Best Practice
towards the company’ s stakeholders, the Board of Directors,
Executives and Employees The Company informed through
the Board of Directors Meeting Annual Employee Meeting
and the intranet, to enable use of these guidelines for strict
observance in performing their duties therefore, the all shall
better perform in order to betfter achieve good corporate

governance

10. Controlling System and Internal Audit
The company has stated the explanation of controlling

system, the Internal Audit, and risks management in “Infernal

Control” section.
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The Company has a policy on internal control and audit. Measures
that are in place to control and supervise all aspects of work operations.
The Audit Committee shall oversee the suitability and efficiency of these
internal controls provided by the Management. Internal controls that
include, but not limited to, certain aspects of finance, work operations,
supervising duty performances, and checking complionce controls of the
company in accordance with The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations

of Treadway Commission (COSO).

Such internal control policy covers compliance with various rules,
policies, and reliable accounting procedures. To gain complionce, we
must adhere to the following principles:

o All items must be approved by Executives and/or persons with specific
authority.

o Allitems entered into the accounts are correctly done in accordance
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

e To access various assets and data from our information technology
database which is excluded from the regulations, it must be approved
by an Executives and/or person having specific authority.

e Enfries made are done so based on actual property’s relevant

appraisal, and made on the actual conditions.

There were 3 audit committee members who accompanied the
company’s Auditor to the Audit Committee Meeting No.5/2010 dated
on November 19, 2010. The meeting has considered and evaluated the
adequate of Internal Control System of the company in accordance
with the Securities and Exchange Commission evaluation and stated it is
sufficient and appropriate. In addition, the auditors also gave its opinion
on the Internal Control System of the company that the system was

adequate, accurate and efficient.

Dividend Payment Policy:
Company dividend payment policy;
The Company has a dividend payment policy of not less than forty
percents (40%) of net profit.
Dividend payment policy of subsidiary companies paid to the Company;
Board of Directors of subsidiary companies will consider the payment
of dividend in accordance with the performance of the respective

subsidiary companies in each year.
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Report of Independent Auditor Summary

The financial statements of Sino-Thai Engineering and
Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries and
of Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company
Limited as af 31 December 2010, the results of their operations,
and cash flows for the year then ended, present fairly, in all
material respects in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles.

Management Discussion and Analysis on financial status and
operating results

In part of management Discussion and Analysis, the
investors should learn supplemented documents such as
consolidated financial statements, financial performance
in the past and updated with the notes to consolidated
financial statements and information which is presented in

this document.,

Performance Overview

In 2009, the company and its subsidiaries had net profit
of Baht 308 million and compared to the year of 2010, the
company and ifs subsidiaries had net profit of Baht 443 million
which was Baht 135 million, or 44% increased.

The total revenues of the company and its subsidiaries
decreased Baht 2,747 million, or 23% from the year of 2009,
therefore the total revenues in 2010 was Baht 9,361 million. The
main revenues came from construction and service income
revenues Baht 9,291 million and others revenues Baht 70 million.

In 2010, total expenses of the company and its
subsidiaries were Baht 8,871 million, which was Baht 2,893
million, or 25% decreased. The main fotal expenses came
from cost of construction and services Baht 8,431 million, or
95%, the administrative expenses Baht 403 million, or 5%, and
Management benefit expenses Baht 38 million, or 0.4%

Total assets as at 31 December 2010 of the company
and its subsidiaries was Baht 10,208 million, which was Baht
1,424 million or 16% increased from the previous year. Total
assefs consisted of current assets Baht 7,291 milion that had
Baht 1,913 million or 36% increased form the year of 2009 and
non-current assefs Baht 2,917 million that had Baht 489 million
or 14% decreased form the year of 2009

The company and its subsidiaries had total liabilities of
Baht 5,629 million as af 31 December 2010, which was Baht
1,354 million or 32% increased from the end of 2009. Total
liabilities were consisting of current liabilities Baht 5,533 million

and it was Baht 1,402 million or 34% increased from the year

Annual Report 2010 107

=
5
)
S
o,
QL
A
Q
-+
(1]
3
(1]
5
—+
o




Bl ﬂl = Al dJ a v 1 v
1 viseanad 22% Waeuiull 2552 Fedsnelhaineunaasna
UAZLTNITIIUIL 11,981 AU LiasanniSunnuanunaadiatine
as dnsuieduninusimnaudnege uazdEniulauneiunund
fnlsvinlsiselaannisneadeanas AednlutintingdFunnuany
neafeariunIwiienInuInennInsTAuLATHeiareInIAlg
HAZMNIAIUAINNIABNTUTLALLINTY
dmiudnarusalin1Agnen AN IUUBILEEVLATLSEN
1 ) |d| dl = Q‘Q [ 1
eine/lutl 2553 Bel 38% : 2% Lulanunasnl 2552 NdRAIL

Taseadrenelaannnisnaaing wivanuszinngnan

v s | |q| S o YV %
selANIATRaNIALNTUREN 49% @ 51% Hnn95uisaliuad
Tasannsnia3y lutl 2553 NdAgylaun Tasanissaluihane@uag
1u9ng - 19T TATeN19NaasaAIaN 1NN UNNUNIUAT
2 Auuas wazlasensneadessuuadainndauaastlsznay
@ 3 nauralsznu dnlaseniInease e AN TUNdNAY
QIU £% k% S - U %
nsugeelalull 2553 Aa TA74N19N2ATI LNG Plant Modules
Tnsennsneadtamasmipquitud 2 eansumiinuimsan n
wazassune usiu

U2 ALY

a X
PANAU (ARAN)

2553 2552
anAN
AUV % AU % AU %

NAFILNE

L 3,488 38% 5,820 49% (2.332) (40%)
@0593amNA)
AALENAU 5,705 62% 6,094 51% (389) (6%)
394 9,193 100% 11914 100% (2,721 (23%)
{Asead193e laannnisnaadne ulimuLlssinnau

(AUDE: UL
.o
o 2553 2552 LU (AAAY)
1evinneunaasig
UL % ANULN % AULN %

Auanssoling 2,572 28% 3,181 27% (609) (19%)
AURAAINITU 3,505 38% 4,856 41% (1,305) (28%)
AUAANT 1,705 19% 3,577 30% (1,.872) (52%)
ATUNEITU 1411 15% 259 2% 1,152 445%
ATURIIAABY 0 0% 41 0.3% Z3)) (100%)
394 9,193 100% 11914 100% (2.721) (23%)

dl ° v s aw o Y Vv
Waduunaalanulszinnaulull 2553 1FEniudsela
nuneasemuansisalina $1uan 2,572 Aunm visa An
Ty 28% waesalaannisnaaing Tnedafulasenisaunalng
s % U U s Y a
18901735 1Aun megau a.samgni Tasantssnlniliansd
U39 &Yyt 2 MIVANVINEAY 217 ane 8. Wyailianas - Ted
Wn @i 2) drwusue1ansdanglfdiuiu 1,705 auum
o a | s U % QI ° s -~ U %

vizanaiflu 19% Inadilasan1snaadnand Aty Ae TAsan1snaaing
ANANTINTNVINUVIUAT 2 AULAY UaTATINNINEAT N Buiding
A, Car Parking A & Land Scape-Government Center dquanu

108 Annual Report 2010

AugravnesulsnelAd1uau 3,505 Srunm vseanitu 38% An
Lﬂuﬁmﬁaumu?{mﬂﬁqmmﬂ 2553 Imﬂﬁ‘lﬁmiqmiﬁaa%wﬁﬁﬁm
\lﬁLLﬂ' SPE Il Project / General Mechanical Work ,General Mech.
Work for Specialty Elastomer Train lll Project la2 Mechanical
Work 1,2 for Sriracha Clean Fuels Avuanumundsanudsnels
sy 1411 &wum viseAmu 15% laeillasannsneatied
dAry A TasenianaainalssIviin Glow Phase 5 Combined
Cycle/Cogeneration wazlAT9Nng Saraburi AB Cogeneration



of 2009, and non-current liabilities Baht 96 million where it was
Baht 48 million or 33% decreased form the previous year.
Total Shareholders” Equity as at 31 December 2010 was
Baht 4,579 million, which was Baht 70 million or 2% increased
from the end of 2009. The increasing of shareholders’ equity
caused by unappropriated retained earnings that had been

increased.

Construction and Service Income and Others Revenues

In 2010, the company and ifs subsidiaries had the
revenues of construction equaled to Baht 9,291 million but in
2009, the company and its subsidiaries had the revenues of
construction equaled to Baht 11,981 million The comparison
between 2 years show that there was Baht 2,690 million or
22% decreased. The purposes of decreasing came from less
constfruction projects, high confract price competitive, cost

of construction fluctuated, and the company has its policy

Structure of construction income classified by types of clients

on faking construction projects that have reasonable profit
but it caused the decreasing of revenues of construction.
The company also wishes that there would be more
constfruction projects proclaimed as the stimulus package of
the government in 2011

Revenue ratio of government sector to private sector of
the company and its subsidiaries in 2010 show 38% to 62%
and it was different from the year of 2009 where it had the
revenues ratio of government sector to private sector af
49% to 51%. In 2010, the construction revenues mainly came
from government sector like The MRT purple Line Contract
No.2 project , The Administrative office building 2 and Water
Supply system including with related building project. The
construction revenues that came from private sector were
LNG Plant Modules project, Roof Structure for Maharatana

Cloister, Thammakai temple.

Unit : Bath Million

2010 2009 Increase(Decrease)
Clients
Baht Million % Baht Million % Baht Million %
Public Sector (including State Enterprises) 3,488 38% 5,820 49% (2,332) (40)%
Private Sector 5,705 62% 6,094 51% (389 ©)%
Total 9,193 100% 11,914 100% (2,721) 23)%

Structure of construction income classified by types of clients

Unit : Bath Million

2010 2009 Increase(Decrease)
Type of Work
Baht Million % Baht Million % Baht Million %

Infrastructure 2,672 28% 3,181 27% (609) 9%
Industrial 3,505 38% 4,856 41% (1,305) (28)%
Building 1,705 19% 3,577 30% (1,872) 562)%
Energy 1411 15% 259 2% 1,152 445%
Environment 0 0% 41 0.3% “n (100)%
Total 9.193 100% 11.914 100% (2,721) (22.84)%

In 2010, when classified by types of work, the Company
had the percentage of revenue recognition in Infrastructure
work, equal to 28%, consisting of mega projects of the public
sector, including Ratchapruk Local Road, The MRT Purple
Line Contract no. 2 project and Highway No.217 Route A.
Piboonmangsaharn - Chongmeg Section 2 project , The

percentage of 19% was in the building work, which included

the Office Building A & Related Works, The Administrative
Office Building Il and Building A, Car Parking A & Land
Scape-Government Center, The percentage of 38% was in
the Industrial work, which included, SPE Il Project / General
Mechanical Work ,General Mech. Work for Specialty Elastomer
Train lll Project and Mechanical Work 1,2 for Sriracha Clean

Fuels, The percentage of 15% was in the Power and Energy
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work, which included the Glow Phase 5 Combined Cycle/

Cogeneration project and Saraburi A,B Cogeneration

Cost and Expenses

The Company and its subsidiaries had the cost of the
construction works and services amounted to Baht 8,431 million
or 26% decrease in the amount of construction work decreased
and had the gross profits amounted to Baht 860 million or equal
to the gross profit margin of 9%, which has improved from
the previous year (equal to 5%), the administrative expenses
were amounted to Baht 403 million, Increased from Baht 335
million of the year 2009. The Company and its subsidiaries
had the policy to emphasize profit-making works together with
the control of operating cost strictly and contfinuously and
resulted in a decrease of costs and expenses.

In 2010, the Company’s interest expense was amounted
to Baht 11 million, or decreased from Baht 31 milion in the
previous year; the inferest expense has decreased because

of the decreased in loans

Profitability

In 2010, the Company’s profitability fended to increase
when compared to those of the previous year; and the profit
margin have also increased both in terms of gross profit and
net income. In the private sector, since there was limited new
construction projects, which generated better profits, and also
the construction cost was relatively fluctuated; as a result,
the Company participated less bidding activity in this sector.
On the other hand, the Company’s new awarded project in
2010 was mostly in the public sector, which was rather few
because the issued bidding project was rather limited similar
to the previous year.

The Company and its subsidiaries had the gross profit of
Baht 860 million, or equal to 9% gross profit margin; and the
earning before interest expense and corporate income tax
were amountfed to Baht 490 million, or equal to 5% of the
total revenues; and the net income for the year of Baht 443
million, or equal fo 5% net profit margin

In 2010, the company and its subsidiaries had return on
assets at 5%, compared with 3% in 2009 and it can be implied
that the company and its subsidiaries show strength in return
on assets more than the previous year.

Furthermore, the company and its subsidiaries continually
show improvement in return on equity with 10%, compared

with 7% in 2009

Consolidated Financial Status

As of December 31st, 2010, the Company and ifs
subsidiaries had the total assets of Baht 10,208 million; and the
total liabilities of Baht 5,629 million; and the total shareholders’

equity of Baht 4,579 million.

Assets
The total assets of the company and ifs subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2010 was Baht 10,208 million, increased
Baht 1,424 million, or 16% from 2009 mostly came from the
repayment of debtors. The significant changing assets are as
followed;
1,196 Million Baht
381 Million Baht
821 Milion Baht

e Cash and Cash equivalents increased
e Unbiled receivables increased
e Construction in progress increased

e Property , Plant and Equipment decreased 422 Million Baht

The increasing of total assets amounted to Baht 1,424
million caused by the increasing of liabilities amounted to Baht
1,354 milion and the increasing of the shareholders’” equity
amounted fo Baht 70 million
Liabilities

The total liabilities of the company and its subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2010 was Baht 5,629 milion, which was
Baht 1,354 million or 32% increased from the year of 2009.
It was increased by Baht 1,402 million of current liabilities
and decreased Baht 48 milion of non-current liabilities. The
significant changing of liabilities is as followed;

The significant changing of Current liabilities is as the followings;
463 Million Baht
484 Million Baht

e Accounfs payable decreased
e Unbiled payable increased
e Advances received from construction 1,452 Million Baht
contracts increased
The significant changing of Non-Current liabilities is as the followings;
e Hire purchase creditors and financial 48 Million Baht
lease payable decreased
Shareholders’ Equity
The total shareholders’ equity as at 31 December 2010 was
amounting to Baht 4,579 million, which was Baht 70 million or
2% increased from the end of 2009. The significant changing
of shareholders’ equity is as followed;

e Revaluation surplus decreased 176 Milion Baht

e Refained eomings (Unappropriated) increased 264 Million Baht

Annual Report 2010 111

-
>
Q
=]
o,
o
<
Q
—+
(9}
3
o
=]
=
(7))




- A L
o RHUAALAZTIENIIWVLLWNRUAAALAY 1,196 AL
yq‘u M va o QI z v
o alangslulaizandissivnay 381 @WLMN

1 I s QI g
o UTTMINNBAT AU Y ALAU 821 &1ULn
o AU 81A19 uazaUnIal anad 422 AL

N " Y - L X
AUNSWETIWNALAY 1,424 &runn unnsiiuauaesmil
QI g a 1
1,354 SMULMUATNISRLAILRUYUAINAIWIBENENY 70 AU
1

wilau

Q1 U7 31 Sunney 2553 13EMLAzL R INeReiiniiAus it
AU 5620 &L uAuAnauTl 2562 (Tuduay 1,364 F1u
A vidaRuAL 32% ‘EmﬂLﬂumﬂﬁﬁu‘mmﬁaumuﬁﬂu 1,402
AULMN LLa:ma‘amaqsLuMﬁEu“LaJmuﬁﬂu 48 ANULW 918NN9

v
a

a 4‘4 4' 1 N o o s Vv U
nuauninslaaunlasaensiiteddny Taun

aa a aa a 1 Ao o w 2|
wildunyuidsuninisuldeunlasednilifuddny Toun

o IAMLNNIANAARY 463 AULM
v Alq/ o o QI é/ Vv

o sunundeldFandiszivuau 484 AULMN

o RUALAWUTNAUAYYINOATIUNLAU 1,452 AU

4"4 I 4‘ 4‘4 4' I A o o s Vv U

wildulivyuisuninisulfeunladnsiifaddny Toun

o WmmudynTanar Sy IanMINnITRUanaT 48 au
Tl
1 Yy Vv
dauansgtiariu
s QI s ] v Y A o
AU 31 furnAu 2563 daurasgtariuldnuiusin 4,579

v QI dq/ Qy | o v o QI dy

ATUL INNAUANAUL] 2552 37U 70 AIULN ViTALNLAU 2 %
1 Y v dld dl 1 e o a Vv U

i"ﬁEIﬂ’]‘iﬂ’Ju‘]Jﬂ\‘lEdﬂﬂvziu‘ﬂllﬂ’]iLﬂﬂﬂuLLﬂﬁQﬂﬂ’NNuﬂﬂ’]ﬂiy 1aun

|!§;_'£_L gt -

fif

Annual Report 2010

176 &uum

264

- euwAuuIINNIeRTAAUNTERmaY

o 1 dla/ M Yo Q‘ g v
- mlsazaugnumdslulaanassiiuan UL

Taseaineraadunu

W AU 31 $unay 2553 Tnseadranisamuluduning I
EndusTnine@uninEvy R uRdUNINEN 1S WL 71% : 29%
waeuutlagann Aul 2552 ﬁﬁﬁméummiw%uw%’wémguﬁmum'a
AUNTNEN1T AL 61% : 39%

AUl 31 Sunau 2553 Tn9eainen1sdnmiunuazun
mn%@maﬁwim:mﬂﬂ'qummQﬁaﬁu é’mé’mmmmﬁ%uﬁianu
Wil 55% : 45% 1Watuutlasanauil 2562 RTdndLa
AUADYU N 49% : 51% P st AuTe LS EMLAY
Ustinelan Sexauiinauantionannt 2562

AN TWAUNTWE

yaAnduninduasFEnuazuFimdanuiuna laazviau
zﬂamﬁ‘lﬂﬁlﬁmﬁ’ugamﬂﬁﬁﬁu [ inuastisimdesidan
Wilinsszilugamaunsduningnna LLa:niiﬁﬁmmhgadwm
aunindlanzdonas 13EMuA B teoeR s Tinn9Aadnsas e ik
YaMUBNAUNTNEANINLNITRUlLUANANAINYAAERESTUREN
TilednAty

LﬁuamumaqﬁﬁwLLa:u?ﬁm'aﬂvl,ﬁﬁnwéy’aﬁﬂimNammnu
udn slumtﬁﬁu?ﬁwLLazu??ﬁmiaﬂLﬁudwﬁuamuﬁumiﬁuﬁ%
KoAn TabLsIMILas BEdosTindnsaaiianisosAnaedFu
amuﬁﬁuﬁﬂi’ilﬂmwaLLa:Ham'ﬁﬁuaw;ummumaﬁu‘l,né'lﬁm
fUyaAEAgTTY




Financial Structure

The financial structure of assets as at 31 December 2010
show that the ratfio of current assets to non-current assets
was 71% to 29%, which was different form the year of 2009,
the ratio of current assets to non-current assets show at 61%
to 39%. There was a significant decreasing of current assets
then effected to the number as the aforesaid.

The financial structure of source of fund as at 31 December
2010 came from both liabilities and shareholders” equity. Debt
to Equity rafio equaled to 55% to 45% meanwhile, Debt to
Equity ratio in 2009 show at 49% to 51%. This can be indicated
that debts of the company and its subsidiaries had significantly

increased from the year of 2009.

Quality of Assets

The value of assets of the Company and its subsidiaries
according to the balance sheets has reflected to the fair
value thereof because the Company and its subsidiaries have
provided the valuation of assets and in case, it is expected
that any asset may be devaluated, the Company and ifs
subsidiaries shall provide a reserve so that the value of assets
under the financial statements shall have no significant

difference from the fair value thereof.

Investments of the Company and its subsidiaries have
already been provided with reserves for losses, in case, the
Company and its subsidiaries agree that the investments
tfend to be impaired; provided that the Company and ifs
subsidiaries have believed that the recorded provision for
loss of investments are enough and the value of investments
according fo the financial statements are equivalent fo the

fair value thereof.

Accounts Receivable

As of December 31st, 2010, the Company and its
subsidiaries had the net accounts receivable amounted to
Baht 959 million, including accounts receivable of related
parties amounted to Baht 2.3 million, or equal to 0.2% of the
total accounts receivable; and the accounts receivable of
unrelated parties amounted to Baht 957 million, or equal to
99.7% of the total accounts receivable.

In 2010, the accounts receivable have increased by Baht
28 million from the previous year; and the average collection
period was 37 days as same as the previous year; accounts
receivable are divided into accounts receivable from
unrelated parties, increased by Baht 86 million; and accounts

receivable from related parties, decreased by Baht 58 million.
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Liquidity 861 million; and the cash and cash equivalents at the end
In 2010, the cash and cash equivalents have in- of year amounted to Baht 2,066 million; whereas, details of
creased by Baht 1,195 million, with the beginning cash and  cash flow from each activity are as follows:

cash equivalents at beginning of year amounted to Baht

Unit : Baht Million

Cash Flow 2010 2009 2007
Cash flows from operating activities 1,364 1,027 662
Cash flows from investing activities 67 (273) 73)
Cash flows from financing activities (236) (836) (685)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,195 (82) (96)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 861 943 1,070
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 2,056 861 974
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Capital Expenditure

In consideration of investments in fixed assets of the
Company and ifs subsidiaries, annual investment plans will
be provided and submitted fo the management feam; and
the investment decision shall be made after the calculation
of investment returns in comparison with the financial cost.

The Company and ifs subsidiaries believed that the
capital expenditure, additional investment, and replacement
investment to maintain the competitiveness of the Company
and its subsidiaries both at present and in the future; and
assets with additional investment have been fully ufilized as

there was a compliance unit.

Source of Funds

Debt to Equity ratio of the company and its subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2010 was 1.23, it came from total liabilities
Baht 5,629 million and shareholders’ equity Baht 4,579 million,
which different from the year of 2009. In 2009, Debt to Equity
ratio was 0.95, it came from total liabilities Baht 4,276 million
and shareholders’ equity Baht 4,509 million The significant items
of Liabilities and shareholders’ equity are as followed;
Liabilities
463 Million Baht
484 Million Baht

e Accounts payable decreased
e Unbilled payable Increased
e Advances received from construction 1,452 Million Baht
confracts increased
Shareholders” equity
e Revaluation surplus decreased 176 Million Baht
e Retfained eamings Unappropriated increased 264 Million Baht
Time Interest Earned ratio of the company and its
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2010 was 79.40 and it was
increased from the previous year. In 2009, Time Interest Earned
ratio was 28.44 This increasing numbers represented that the
company and ifs subsidiaries using profit for paying the high

interest more than the year of 2009

Financial Risk Management
Financial risks consist of credit risks, risks from interest rates,

and risks from exchange rates.

e Credit risk: The Company and ifs subsidiaries are exposed
to credit risk primarily with respect to construction
receivables and loans. However, due to their prudent
credit policy, most of their customers being government
agencies, and their close follow up of debt, analysing
financial position on an ongoing basis, the Company and
subsidiaries do not anticipate material losses from their
debt collection in excess of those for which provision has

already been set aside.

o Interest rate risk: The Company and its subsidiaries’
exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its cash
at banks, loans fo, short-term and long-term loans, hire
purchase creditor and financial lease payable which are
subject fo inferest. However, since most of the Company
and ifts subsidiaries” financial assets and liabilities bear
floating interest rates which fluctuate in line with market
interest rafes or fixed interest rates which will be due
within a short period, the interest rate risk is expected to
be minimal.
Factors which may have influences on the Company’s business
operations in the future

The main Factors that may influence on the Company
and its subsidiaries’ performance would be came from world
economic conditions and investment in the construction
sectors. The Company and its subsidiaries believed that
the economic conditions next year would be recovered
in accordance with the world economy; investment in
construction of the private sector will present as a good
frend; however, with the economic stimulus packages of the
public sector, the quantity of construction work may not much

decrease, particularly in the government construction work

-

T
=
)
=]
O,
o
®
Q
-+
(]
3
(¢)
S
=
7]



Connected Transaction
S1YNISSKININU

mmmﬁ:wiwﬁuﬁuqmmaﬁm@ﬁmmﬁmﬁq

1. ensszminiiuiuyaraiaaiianudaudanilafianissauan

YAPSI (L)

YRR (L)

e ANy mmmauﬂ dmFusauil y o . 4,
AIaLEEM L K AnEnzANUEIRUE WANANYINTIENNS
FIENTTENINTY auamuw augn |
31 5.0 53 Ui 31 8.A. 52
. o e Y v fe L& 4

1. U5t a1 7 @15 9m  1.1 selaennnnsliiian 9,331,716 8,464,185 TN Taviu 80.90% Wuniginiuienans ey

gofaimwedmiuning  e1asdiiineu 14 van.iey 7 815 dilneuresssn aasaniu
1.2 ¥ ulin1sAnnanish 17,869 749 Tn33uUnN13ILU 2 YNy TUmusanann
Wnendaaiuy 1. Unensus daunas
1.3 Jufjiiuanusimi - - 2. UNAURIYY T039a
Wnendaaiuy

X o e
1.4 ponianeRugEy - 123,178
Auda 1.3
1.5 Nuimnﬂmuiumm 195,500,000 223,000,000
mmmmnu
1.6 manmﬂiuﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁm 10,489,437 8,864,549
Auda 1.5
fe o - v fe 4w
2. Ut & 1A A Flu-lne s1el@einan 1,309,058 6029127 UFEW Doy 35.00% lu dWundEmsauyuszniuEm
BuAtese 91dn LATENULNEINTT AN 1905 1A 1A Tlu-lne wan 1aken 91im ﬂiwmﬁmﬂu

9717 BONULLFIUTINUAL
Trseaseungiandaans
wazlnsAuunAL N1sSUER
Taseafrandndaansuay
MsANUIAL N19NBATNY
LaTAAKILANAaANTUA Y
msauunAy ules nng
TauuTULAzLingeinELan
aammaﬂmmmmu LAz
NREIZERE LTSI
L3 UANULTIUTIIRILEN
daansuazinsauunay

118 Annual Report 2010

GUCIONER
An93UN19970AU 2 YNy

1. wedaan §afaasiaies
2. Ue9us daunes

LAZLTEN Lwaﬂimaumﬂ'wam
Lmaams‘l‘,mﬁumﬂmmumu
1997 Taanistimalulagnig
AudAINssulunisuanuaznig
neas1uddeasuaringauunAu
e . o
7nlasunisanenanmalulagun
9N W3 1aan 1ARen 97m 1n
FufiuANudungluunaaing
LAZAMUNFRUUBIYAAINTUDY
Y fe yuia A .
L3 TnguFem Thdeiuianeg
L‘]JEJ’J‘]I’]DN”IUG\’WUWWTT@H?’NLLfﬁw
Rpduanu09sEn daunilel
Wunwilnauas Ui‘ﬂ:WI A A 1
#ulng Fuddleds 4da e
WHAAALTIAN HAUTeY
fe o - .
158 A 1A 1@ Tlu-lng 18Ul
ol .. Y J
Wese 41fin azlaumsgudun
HaUFIIBNGNAN AAaAIUIIENTE
LA eNURILTEN

f. X .
drusenisMiAnduszuaneiu
Wlusnalaannnisiusem 1ildde
“Flu-lne” a3t lueves
ae N .
158 A 1A A Tlu-lng 18Ul
LHe3e 90A lngAnludngn 1.25%
Jp99ne lARatluadL3tm A 1A 1A
Flu-lne 1BuAdleds 511



Outstanding transactions with related parties

1.

Related transactions with other than joint ventures

Gross Value Gross Value
(Baht) (Baht)
Company Name Related Transactions As of As of Relationship Reason for Transactions
December December
31st, 2010 31st, 2009

1. HTIR Co., Ltd. 1.1 Rental Incomes from 9,331,716 8,464,185 The Company holds The building space is leased as the
Business: office building lease 80.90% of shares in HTR ~ Company’s office at the market
Property Development 1.2 Trade accounts and 17,869 749 Co., Ltd. price.

notes payable-related There are 2 co-directors,

parties including:

1.3 Loans from related - - 1. Mr. Woraphant

party Chonthong

1.4 Interest expenses, - 123,178 2. Mrs. Sanongnuch

under Sub-clause 1.3; Charnvirakul

1.6 Loans to related 195,500,000 223,000,000

parties

1.6 Interest receipt from 10,489,437 8,864,549

loans under Sub-Clauses

1.5
2. DKK Sino-Thai Incomes from 1,309,058 6,029,127 The Company holds The Company is a joint venture

Engineering Co., Ltd.
Business: Design the
foundation and structure
of telecommunication
towers, production of
telecommunication steel
structure, construction
and installation of
telecommunication
towers, civil works, repairs
and maintenance of
telecommunication
towers, inspection,
improvement, and
strengthening of
telecommunication

towers

trademark
usage fee

35.00% of shares in

DKK Sino-Thai

Engineering Co., Ltd.

There are 2 co-directors,

including:

1. Mr. Vallop
Rungkijvorasathien

2. Mr. Woraphant
Chonthong

Annual Report 2010

between Denki Kyoei Co., Ltd.,
and the Company to operate the
business of integrated production
of telecommunication towers by
infroducing engineering technology
to the production and construction
of telecommunication towers
through the fransfer of technology
from Denki Kyoei Co., Ltd., in
combination with the expertise in
construction work and preparedness
of personnel of the Company;
whereas, the Company has sent
a feam of engineers specialized
in consfruction and installation of
telecommunication towers of the
Company fo work at DKK Sino-Thai
Engineering Co., Ltd., to assure that
the performance of DKK Sino-Thai
Engineering Co., Ltd., shall meet the
standard acceptable to customers
and to maintain the Company’
reputations.

Meanwhile, related tfransactions
shall be recognized as incomes for
the use of “Sino-Thai” within the
name of DKK Sino-Thai Engineering
Co., lid.  The trademark usage
fee shall be calculated at the rate
of 1.256% of the annual income of
DKK Sino-Thai Engineering Co., Ltd.
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Gross Value  Gross Value

(Baht) (Baht)
Company Name Related Transactions As of As of Relationship Reason for Transactions
December December
31st, 2010 31st, 2009
3. STIT Co., Ltd. 3.1 Trade accounts and 991,817 8,074,803 There is a co-director, i.e., Purchase of machinery and
Business: Distributor notes payable spare parts; and repairs of
and service provider 3.2 Service Income 3,444,000 4,698,000 Mr. Masthawin the Company’s machinery
of machinery and 3.3 Cost of machinery Charnvirakul at the market price;
equipment used in and 13,112,189 36,096,378
the construction and spare parts under
manufacturing industry  Sub-clause 3.1
4. STP&I (Public) Co., Ltd. 4.1 Trade accounts and - 20,041,095 The Company holds 1.01% - Purchase of machinery
Business: Processing of notes receivable-related of shares in STP&I spare parts; and repairs of
steel structure, piping parties (Public) Co., Ltd. the Company’s machinery
and welding, pressured 4.2 Unbilled - 71,711,104 There are 3 co-directors, at the market price;
containers, heat- 4.3 Service Income 838,693,628 3.464,449,441 including:
exchange equipment, 4.4 Cash received under 1. Mr. Masthawin - The Company operates
boilers and process Sub-clause 4.1,4.2,4.3 856,110,336 3,183,998,705 Charnvirakul the business of module
model; 4.5 Trade accounts and - - 2.PolLt.Gen. Jate assembling under Pluto LNG
Distributor and service notes payable-related Mongkolhutthi Project for STP&I (Public) Co.,
provider of machinery parties 3. Mr. Chamni Janchai Ltd. at the market price;
and equipment used 4.6 Cost of machinery 147,420 6,986,239
in the construction and and spare parts under
manufacturing industry;  Sub-clause 4.5
4.7 Advances received - 105,236,663
from construction
contracts
5. Kitpracha Thani Co., 5.1 Trade accounts and - - As the Company holds  The Company has
Ltd. notes receivable-related 80.90% of shares in HTR operated the construction
Business: Property Trading parties Co., Ltd.; therefore, the  work of 7-storeyed
Company also holds residential condominium,
5.2 Cash Received - 5,946,263 80.90% of shares in with 2 basement floors
under Kitpracha Thani Co., Ltd. of car park for Kitpracha
Sub-clause 5.1 There are 2 co-directors, Thani Co., Ltd. at the
including: market price.
1. Mr. Woraphant
Chonthong
2. Mrs. Sanongnuch
Charnvirakul
6. Stacey International 6.1 Flower 1,472,290 1,197,241 There is a co-directors i.e, The company has

Corp. Ltd.

Business: Retail sale of
Souvenirs, Gifts and
Flower Arrangements

Service

Arrangement Service
Fee and Gift Basket for

Greeting Season

Mrs. Sanongnuch
Charnvirakul

purchased premium gifts
and flower arrangement
services from Stacey
International Corp., Ltd.
Limited, at the market

price.
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2. Related transactions with joint ventures

Gross Value  Gross Value
(Baht) (Baht)
Company Name Related Transactions As of As of Relationship Reason for Transactions
December December
31st, 2010 31st, 2009
1. TNNS Joint Venture 1.1 Trade accounts - - Joint Venture; whereas, The Company has carried
Business: Construction and notes receivable the Company is a out the construction of the
Work 1.2 Unbilled receivables - - stakeholder of TNNS Joint Chao Phraya River Bridge
1.3 Service income - - Venture near Rama 3-Poo Jao
1.4 Cash received - 25,290,828 In 2005, the Company Samrong Road, crossing to
under held 10% of stakes; Bang Kajao, at the market
Sub-clauses 1.1, 1.2, In 2006, the Company price;
and 1.3 held 10% of stakes;
Taisei Corporation held
40% of the stakes;
Nishimatsu Construction
held 30% of the stakes;
NKK Corp. held 20% of
the stakes;
2. Sino-Thai AS Joint 2.1 Trade accounts 4,492,422 96,297,883 Joint Venture; whereas,  The Company has carried
Venture and notes receivable the Company is a out the construction of
Business: Construction 2.2 Unbilled receivables - - stakeholder of Sino-Thai BMA Mass Transit System
Work 2.3 Service income - 48,000 AS Joint Venture Project, extension of
2.4 Cash received 84,112,497 - In 2005, the Company Sukhumvit Line and Silom
under held 58% of stakes:; Line, under subcontract at
Sub-clauses 2.1, 2.2, In 2006, the Company the market price;
and 2.3 held 58% of stakes:;
2.5 Retention h 9,414,053 Associate Engineering
receivables (1964) Limited held 42%

of the stakes;
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General Policy on Related transactions of the Company

Policy on Pricing

The value of related transactions shall be in
accordance with the market price or competitive prices of
non-related parties, as per opinions of the Board of Directors.

Reasonability of Transactions

Related fransactions shall be made on the basis of
necessity and reasonability and for the maximum benefits
of the Company, as per opinions of the Board of Directors;
whereas, the Audit Committee has given its comments that
such related transactions shall be in accordance with the
characteristics of general businesses; and the said transactions
existed because the Company has operated its businesses
with subsidiaries, affiliated companies, and related companies
in the normal course of businesses.  Transactions include
constfruction service provision, purchase of equipment and
other services; conditions of related transactions shall be
prescribed in accordance with the general commercial
condifions and with the market prices or competitive prices
of non-related parties, and shall be considered according to
the proper procedures of approval and in accordance with
the Company’s Rules and Regulations in all respects.

Procedures of Related Transaction Approval
According to the Company’s policy, the procedures
of related transactions made with parties in conflict shall be

submitted to the Board of Directors” meeting for consideration;
whereas, the Audit Committee shall attend the meeting to
consider and approve the related transactions, which shall
be in accordance with the law governing securities and
stock market, and regulations, announcements, orders, or
requirements of the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET); whereby,
parties in conflict or stakeholders shall have no voting right to
pass the resolution on such related transactions.

Policy or Trends on Related Transactions

The Company shall have its related transactions with
particular companies involved, as may be necessary and only
in accordance with the normal course of business operations
such as sale/purchase of construction materials, construction
work, office building lease, efc., and such related transactions
may exist in the future, according to normal course of business
operations of the Company. The Company has its policy to
make related transactions with parties in conflict by comparing
prices and quality of operations for the maximum benefits of
the Company, and at the most proper price. The Company
shall freat the parties in conflict similarly fo other entrepreneurs.
The Company shall prescribe the terms and conditions of such
related fransactions in accordance with the normal course of
business operations; and prices shall be compared with prices
of the third parties; moreover, it shall be considered according
to the proper procedures of approval and in accordance

with the Company’s Rules and Regulations in all respects.
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The Audit Committee of Sino-Thai Engineering & Constfruction
Public Co., Ltd., consists of 3 Independent Directors as the
following;

1. Mr. Chamni Janchai,
Chairman of the Audit Committee

2. Police Lieutenant General Jate Mongkolhutthi,
Member of the Audit Committee

3. Mr. Suchai Poopichayapongs,
Member of the Audit Committee

In 2010, the Audit Committee has performed according
to the duties and responsibilities commissioned by the Board
of Directors to review the Company’s financial reports for
accuracy and reliability, to provide adequate and suitable
internal control in compliance with the law, to ensure
Company’s operation complied with the principle of good
corporate governance, and to comply with the Nofification
of the Stock Exchange of Thailond on Qualifications and
Rules and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee and Best
Practice Guidelines for the Audit Committee issued by the
Listed Companies Division of the Stock Exchange of Thailand;
provided that the Audit Committee has convened 6 meetings,
of which main activities can be summarized, as follows:

1. Review of the Quarterly Financial Statements and the Annual
Financial Statement

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Quarterly Financial
Statements and the Annual Financial Statements 2010; and
has inquired and received the clear explanation from the
management and the Independent Auditor relating to the
accuracy and the completeness of the financial statements,
and the adequacy of information disclosure. Therefore, the
Audit Committee has agreed that the aforesaid financial
statements have reasonable correctness in their essential
contents in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles; and the information disclosure in those
financial statements is punctually, correctly and completely.

2. Review of the Internal Control System

The Audit Committee has reviewed the internal control in
cooperation with the Independent Auditor on a regular basis
and has considered all reports of infernal audit according
to the approved work plans, covering the significant work
systems of the Company, including the information security
management system. The Audit Committee has agreed that
the Company has its adequate and suitable internal control

and has its improvements in accordance with the changing
business activities, therefore, the operations of the Company
and its subsidiaries shall achieve the prescribed objectives as
stated in the COSO framework. Moreover, the Audit Committee
has also urged the management to improve the internal
control system for continuous effectiveness.

3. Monitoring of the Internal Audit

The Audit Committee has considered the work plans,
scope of work, independence, manpower, and budgets of
the Internal Audit Department to be proper and in conformity
with the professional standard of intfernal audit practices of the
Institute of Internal Auditors of Thailand (IIAT), the Information
Systems Audit and Control Association (ISACA) in Bangkok;
and the internal audit guidelines of the Stock Exchange of
Thailond (SET). The Audit Committee has agreed that the
Company’s internal audit has been carried out continuously on
a timely and effective basis. Moreover, the Audit Committee
has realized the significance of the internal audit and has
therefore given its regular support to the internal audit both
in tferms of personnel development and guidelines of audit
tfo be in accordance with the prescribed standard.

4. Compliance with the Law and the Government Regulations

The Audit Committee has reviewed the compliance
with Rules and Regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission, regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand,
the law relating to the Company’s business operations; and
has agreed that there is no significant issue relating fo non-
compliance with the law, regulations, and other related laws.

5. Risk Management Review

The Company has utilized the internal audit system,
the recommendations of the intfernal audit report, the work
procedures, and the prescribed regulations to supervise ifs
business operations in order fo manage risks associated with
the internal operations of the Company. The Audit Committee
has agreed that the Company has effective and efficient risk
management, which will be developed to its enterprise risk
management.

6. Review and Comments on Related Transactions or those
with Potential Conflict of Interest

The Audit Committee has given ifs similar comments
to those of the Independent Auditor thaf, according to
the Regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the
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Securities and Exchange Commission, no significant related
transactions and/or those with potential conflict of interest
was found.
7. Self Performance Appraisal

To comply with the best practices guidelines for the Audit
Committee, the Audit Committee should conduct the self-
performance appraisal annually. In 2010, the self-performance
appraisal result of the Audit Committee can be summarized
that the Audit Committee has performed its duties fully
according fo its Charter and complied with the best practice
guidelines for the Audit Committee, which will result in effective
implementation of the rules of good corporate governance.

8. Selection, Nomination, and Remuneration of the Independent
Auditor

The selection, nomination, and remuneration of the
Independent Auditor of 2009 shall be proposed for the Board
of Directors’ approval in the Annual General Meeting (AGM)
2009, whereas, the Audit Committee has considered work
performance, independence, and appropriateness of the
remuneration, which shall not be contrary to the Notification
of the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission and
the Stock Exchange of Thailand governing the circulatfion of
auditors. Therefore, it is deemed expedient to appoint Mr.
Khitsada Lerdwana, the certified public accountant No.4958;
or Miss Thippawan Nananuwat, the certified public accountant
No.3459; or Miss Siraporn Ouaanunkun, the certified public
accountant No.3844 of Emnst & Young Office Co., Lid., as
the Company’s Independent Auditor of 2010 , Company’ s
auditing fee in 2010 is Bt. 1,490,000.00

9. In 2010, the company arranged Audit Committee Meeting
with the Independent Auditor totaling 1 time. The meeting is
held for revising the appropriation of the provision of loss that
the company had been setftled including the importance of the
International Financial Reporting Standards, IFRS. Independent

Auditor clearly clarified that the accounting policy and other
provisions of the company were accurate and appropriate
in accordance with generally accepted standards. Normally,
if the company is using the IFRS as the first time, there will be
some part of it that might effect fo the company.

10. Reporting of the Resolution of the Board of Directors

Minutes of the Audit Committee’s meetings and the
infernal audit appraisal result shall always be reported to the
Board of Directors, thus, in accordance with the guidelines
of best practices of the Audit Committee.

The aforesaid best practices of the Audit Committee
presented a notification and a suggestion of financial, infernal
audit, risk management, company performance, and safety,
health and environment at job sites, in case the Management
can perform and follow up all those suggestions as well. Internal
Audit has to follow and correct things to be developed and
then report it to the Board of Directors every quarter.

In summary, the Audit Committee has performed its duties
fully in accordance with its Charters approved by the Board of
Directors. The Audit Committee has given the comments that
the Company has implemented its good corporate governance
practice, prepared its financial statements in accordance with
the generally-accepted accounting principles, disclosed the
correct, complete, and adequate information in the financial
report, provided its appropriate internal control, adhered to
the business ethics, and complied with the rules, regulations,
and related laws, thus, in conformity with the Notification of
the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
and the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET).

e
Mr. Chamni Janchai,

Chairman of the Audit Committee
17 February 2010

Annual Report 2010 129

Tl
=
()
=
)
Q
g
Q
-+
(9]
=
(¢)
S
=
»




Report on the Responsibilities of the Board of
Directors on Financial Reports
S1YINUANUSUBDABIUYBIANUZNSSUNISCISIEIIUNNINSIIU

ingklA

-- — =ty a e

i VL AR

% f ..'“..L:..; =

!

)
i |

-
\
Y

|

1"
' Lo i jg Ul
| 5 a@es LT pe=l—
- | a
.= 1A : - ke, II!-' Ml ] =
A L e — e Ny e
f !‘ 1 | : Tt |
| Sy - Wi,
& .Y 4 Y e—— S |
& = e L T T —— I b 1 e _,'E-_-
it s = Tm"“
“ i L g -
| N 2
| A F o ————
s - 1 _—— [} f_'_-:i!'.-.-
| e S =
S | : /I |
cend TASES [ |
] L
SRR i INTHERN| a8 rEL.
L1 ’ ! | | p I'.l‘_fr Pl 1-\\‘:"‘.-0.-:““
_— fyr—p—— Y =-
:"'. TP o - ' ‘? -
x == R
K Ty




'
Y

ANIZNTTUNNTLTEMTIU-Ine BUALLETY LaUA ARLARSATL

=

10 @) lesntunnsaudeiAuLEEnlunnsinauatiyl
wnauaziyarinlsnanu ?;u'qm o HUTl 31 Funnan 2553
iﬁthumimwaammEjaauﬁ'\:ﬁlﬂuﬁL?ﬂu%'aml,é’wiaﬁﬁaﬁu
mufmuAaInNTaLaLaadAny ma‘lm:mmméuqmm
saUThTTUesUTEm AnznssuNTUTENUe 1A LTR9IN TENU
ynansBumui fuana ¥lusecnutszdnt 2563 arfuiifiuly
muanuidultauazauvnug ﬁ‘ﬁagamﬁm%ﬁgn%mﬂmgﬂﬁ
ATLIEILTENTE TannNIUNsLEIN AT URANs LAY LAy

< ° ! vy v v
LAURUAITUILAUD maaaanuim

a o A < 1 a as v % a
ANZN9IUNNTLEEMAANUITALINLTEN LA T uTeun e arToy
a = a wa N v a =<
nuzauuazfelfinlagadaue naanaulainisiansunng
mmammrﬁ;waaﬂ'wiaumau‘tumﬁmﬁwumﬂ?u a9y
Asall Tmmuqa o YUR 31 fUNAL 2553 aurinlsAYL SUULARAS
dl 1 vy vV a o s QQV
msifaeuudasludimaesgneiu uazunszuatiuan dmiutlau
an o Ui 31 FUNAL 2553 NIUDIUFEMUAZILNTIRUITILUDS
o oo ; o L X .
U EuazLsseas ﬁmmgﬂ%aqmmﬁmiLLa:f«mmmumwaﬂ
o ade oy Ay v jaem ;
nstiyansusedlaealy aelatedfinlasadiaue

AnznssuNIsLFEnlAuiulanlanseaeudayandAty
wouFEMnlszn1suazlvinnnuenlalalunisiansunseu
NNNTRULELDREN ALY

TULNUIBIANIZNITUNTUTEN

st i

wedaan gaiasaies)
NITUNNT AT NITUNNIHIANTS

The Board of Directors of Sino-Thai Engineering and
Construction Public Company Limited has carried out actions
in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Associafion on
the presentation of Balance Sheets and Income Statement
ending December 31, 2010, which has already been audited
by the Auditor. These actions are in accordance with the
prescribed period of twelve months cycle which was within
the period of fime before the ending of the Company’s
accounting period. The Company Board of Directors hereby
warrants that the financial reports expressed in the 2010 Annual
Reports are frue and reasonable, having correct, complete,
and adequate accounting data. The Company’s Board of
Directors has already reviewed and deemed the reports to be
presentable and requested it should be submitted expeditiously

to the shareholders.

The Company’s Board of Directors is of the view
that the Company has duly exercised proper accounting
procedures, kept constant practice, and has taken reasonable
care in completing the Company’s financial statfements on
fime. The Balance Sheets ending December 31, 2010, Income
Statement, Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity, and
Cash Flow Statements ending December 31, 2010, of both
the Company’s and Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company'’s Subsidiaries are reasonably correct and completed

in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.
The Company’s Board of Directors is confident that
it has verified the Company’s important data and information

in all respects and has paid close attention to all details

regarding the financial reporting of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Company:

£ Vellap

(Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien)

Director and President
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Remuneration for Auditor
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Office of the Auditor of the Company and
subsidiaries,
Ernst and Young Office Limited,
33" Floor, Lake Ratchada Building,
193/136-137, New Ratchada Pisek Road,
Bangkok 10110.

Remuneration on the account audits of the
Company and subsidiaries.
e Company’s auditing fee in 2010 is Bf.
1,490,000
e The Company’s subsidiaries’ auditing
fee in 2010 is Bf. 400,000
e The affiiated companies of the
subsidiaries” auditing fee in 2010 is Bt.
230,000
Other expenses:

-None-
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JuQa (cla)
U Suf 31 SunAu 2553 ua: 2552
(Kuog: un)

JUNFRUSIY JUNTRULANIZAANNT

2553 2552 2553 2552
1,400,528,681| | 1,856,597,627 | | 1,398,908,555| |1,817,457,925
991,817 8,074,803 1,009,686 8,075,552
1,401,520,498  1,864,672,430 1399918241  1,825533,477

1,770,932,422

1.286,749.,426

1,525,274,521

1,186,003,125

77,134,686 76,500,365 77,134,686 76,500,365
2,104,582,090 652,242,617  2,006,452,358 559,453,923
44,698,328 58,133,682 46,198,441 65,525,200
134,088,587 192,657,721 122,893,811 164,991,749
5,632,956,611  4,130,856,241  5,177,872,058  3,868,007,839
23,028,638 70,766,063 23,028,638 70,766,063
68,139,709 67,256,569 . -
5,297,804 6,749,067 § -
96,466,151 144,771,699 23,028,638 70,766,063
5,629,422,762  4,275,627,940  5,200,900,696  3,938,773,902




usun 3lu-ne 1BUFITE3) Loud AaUaasAsU 91Ma (UKIBY) La=ustngay

Juqa (cia)
tu 3uf 31 sunAy 2553 ta: 2552
(Kudg: un)
JUNN9RUTIN JUNNTRULANIZNANNG
VLR 2553 2552 2553 2552
duvnagtievu
NuFaUU
nuaanzieu
viuaniiy 1,186,208,619 Yiu yaA1viuaz 1 Um 1186208619  1,186208619  1,186,208,619  1,186,208,619
NusENIMUNEIaT IS ZIANYAALEY
vuaiiny 1,186,208,619 iU yaAiuaz 1 UM 1,186,208,619  1,186,208619  1,186,208,619  1,186,208,619
auiuyaanviuaniy 2097,085812 2097055812  2,097.085812  2,097.055812
nafnlsdeldiAmtuass
AMUAUNUINNITATIANAUNTIE 17
AMUAUNUINNNITATIANAUNTNEURILTEN 445631620 | 445631,620| | 445631620 | 445631620
duudURWUININsAsIAN AU UD LS Enga 41 175,738,998 : -
445631620 621370618 445631620 445,631,620
a'auo’]:ﬂﬂimmmmﬂﬂgﬁuuﬂaqgaﬂ'ﬁ
Guamuslumé’nm"wéﬁa‘mﬂ (202,250) (809,000 - -
HAMN9RINNTLUAIANILNTIR Y 83,779 261,444 : -
finlsazau
IRATIUAT - ENFRIINUNVINE 18 41,471,893 16,097,745 41,471,893 16,097,745
flalulfdnass 711515856 447,323,148 633,772,667 305,857,158
duesgnavuIeILTIn 4481765329 4367508386 4,404,140,611  4,050,850,954
druvesgtievudiutisnunestingos 96,944,365 141,134,176 - -
ERHGETLRAG R T 4578,709,694 4508642562  4,404,140,611  4,050,850,954
sumiAuazdesfiodu 10,208,132,456 ~ 8,784270502  9,605041,307  7.989.624,856

a @ | =] a &
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&KSUUAugadun 31 surAu 2553 ua: 2552
(Kuoe: un)
JUNFRUIIY JUNNTRUEANIZAANNT
VUELVIR) 2553 2552 2553 2552

9,192,694,019  11914,139,041 9,029,815,164  11,808,390,821
97,935,356 66,803,853 . -
15,826,427 11,990,740 22,762,582 14,968,498
- 8,626,140 34,996,250 44,595,507
= 42,469,327 . 42,469,327
54,579,681 64,364,434 49,715,981 53,977,440
9,361,035483  12,108,393,535 9,137,289.977  11,964,401,593
8,350,874,987  11,358,620,534 8,192,001,621  11,261,693,445
79,831,487 38,007,194 . -
402,985,995 335,431,008 394,587,278 322,531,461
37,766,000 32,692,500 33,271,000 28,285,000
8,871,458,469  11,764.751236 8,619,859.899  11,612,509,906
489,577,014 343642299 517,430,078 351,891,687
(32,772.969) 4,227,742 . -
456,804,045 347,870,041 517,430,078 351,891,687
(10,945,716) (30,961,377 (9.947,120) (29,936,785)
445,858,329 316,908,664 507,482,958 321,954,902
20 (2,508,501) (8.492,811) . -
443,349,828 308,415,853 507,482,958 321,954,902
443,760,157 304,824,998 507,482,958 321,954,902

(410,329) 3,590,855

443,349,828 308,415,853

21

0.37 0.26 0.43 0.27
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v 1wl o ] v v
91818 @ldane AFufludanansgfaru
dauusrndindmusdiunu
NNN9RsIAAUNINETRLEENEne 17
Quasulundnnindilas
uarilafisugludauaeienu
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dwfifufifuinlaieninnsne
naAIINNsuasANIUNNg R
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sauswld @ldane Afufludiumesdiieiu
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swsels @ldane) HauiFugdmiull
Tourlsazauiidelilidnasndudrsasmnungvune 18
AinnauaAyuasauiud1saInung e 222
vinnauananuAzauiudmiRuyaavu 222
va v v P a X
dauvasffiaudrutionvesFinteniiviu

gaAAdVAD o Juil 31 §unau 2552

winamaszneuunsiududrumiaraswnsuil

ugdn 3lu-ng 18UAITES) teud ABUAaSABU 910 (UKIBU) lauSENgaY
JulEIMsWAuIadUDRIeRU
&KSuUAugaduR 31 sunAu 2553 a: 2552

(Kuog: un)
JUN9RUT I
duvasffievuusisnlvg
duifiu
Ay @iy
dufug  dufugu uenns WA lsazau bR dues
NuFeuU Ao anmsiem dhsules s dssud dmang fiaviu
Tleonuas dnufiu Aunindans  Aunimdang yamiiu wlasen - dsesen fldlAdnass fiariu dutios w09
drgzuda yamvumily  USiY 1igEneinn AU whsy g (NAYUAZA) 15l 5nelne Eet]

1,186,208,619 3.319,652,695 445,631,620 362,182,774 10,079.467 - 103,038,015 (1,166,939,003)  4,259,754,187 181,274,695  4,441,028,882
- - - (186,443,776 - - - - (186,443,776) (44018274)  (230,462,050)
- - - - 1,213,500 - - - 1,213,500 286,500 1,500,000
- - - - (12,101.967) - - - (12,101.967) - (12,101.967)
- - - - - 261,444 - - 261,444 - 261,444
- - - (186,443,776)  (10,888.467) 261,444 - - (197,070,799)  (43,731,774)  (240,802,573)
- - - - - - - 304,824,998 304,824,998 3,690,855 308,415,853
- - - (186443776) (10888,467) 261444 - 304,824998 107,754,199  (40,140919) 67,613,280
- - - - - - 16097745 (16,097.745) - - -
- - - - - - (103038015 103038015 - - -
- (1.222.496,883) - - - - - 1222496883 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 400 400
1,186208619  2,097.085812 445631620 175,738,998 (809.000) 261,444 16,097,745 447,323,148 4367508386 141,134,176 4,508,642,562
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HaAAIAD U TURl 31 FuAw 2553

S ) « A &
MmamvpjimaummiuuLﬂumuwuwauummuu

usun 3lu-ne 15UdIGe3) 1BuUd ABUEaSABU $1Ma (UKIBU) La:USEngas
Jutaadnswaguiaraiugaduwioru (ca)
aKSuUAUgadun 31 sunAu 2553 a: 2552

(KU2e: un)
JUN9RUTIY
drnsgitofuusining
duuia

awfugu  dwifugu dawiind wasne daes

N AN NUANME  AInN78 filaazay 39 fitaiu

NuEauiy mMafsA medsia wlasuwlas  wilaean druadl] dautlat

fleanuaz duiiiu Aundnd  Aundwdues  yaAdu wns Anasuda - favfu YDILFEN

dszudn yaAjuandy  vesivy uSindes amu Ru dsawmy  falilddnass  1dEnlug tlae 970

1186208619  2,097.055812 445631,620 175,738,998 (809.000) 261,444 16,097,745 44732348 4367508386 141,134,176 4,508,642,562
- - - (175,738,998) - - - - (175,738,998)  (43.921,752)  (219.660,750)
- - - - 606,750 - - - 606,750 143,250 750,000
- - - - - (177,665 - - (177.665) - (177.665)
- - - (175.738.998) 606,750  (177,665) - - (175309913) (43778502  (219.088,415)
- - - - - - - 443,760,157 443,760,157 (410,329) 443,349,828
- - - (175.738.998) 606,750  (177,665) - 443,760,157 268450244 (44,188.831) 224,261,413
- - - - - - - (154,193,301) (154,193,301) - (154,193,301
- - - - - - 25,374,148 (25,374,148) - - -
- - - - - - - - - (980) (980)
1,186208,619  2,097,055.812 445,631,620 - (202250) 83779 41,471,893 711515856 4481,765329 96,944,365 _ 4,578,709.694
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&KSuldugadui 31 sumAu 2553 ua: 2552

(Kudg: un)
JUNM9RUANIZAANNT
‘ ey fnlsazan
drufunu {7NNg
NuEaulu {7n Wasuulas  Anassudn -
fisenuay duifu nNTAINAN yaridy dn209AL flalallidnass
49U yamduandy  Aunind AU s @nANUATAL) 971
1186208619 3319552695 445631620  12,101.967 103,038,015  (1,325,534,897)  3,740,998,019
- - - (12,101,967 - - (12,101967)
- - - (12,101,967) - - (12,101967)
- - - - - 321954902 321,954,902
- - - (12,101,967) - 321,954,902 309,852,935
- - - - 16,097,745 (16,097,745) -
- - - - (103,038.015) 103,038,015 -
- (1,222,496,883) - - - 1.222,496,883 -
1,186,208619  2,097,055812 445,631,620 - 16,097,745 305,857,158  4,050,850,954
1,186,208,619  2,097,055812 445,631,620 - 16,097,745 305,857,158  4,050,850,954
- - - - - 507482958 507,482,958
- - - - - (154,193,301)  (154,193,301)
- - - - 25,374,148 (25,374,148) -
1,186,208,619  2,097,055812 445,631,620 - 41,471,893 633,772,667 4,404,140,611
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Juns:anuaa
&KSUUdugadun 31 surAu 2553 ua: 2552
(Kuo2e: un)

JUNNTRUTIU JUNNTRUEANIZAANNT

2553 2552 2553 2552
445,858,329 316,908,664 507,482,958 321,954,902
412,294,784 532,510,538 395623903 516,314,589
4,813,004 - 14,384,073 -
. - 13,650,058 -
(4,032,040) (2.786,947) (4,032,040) (2,786,941)
32,772,969 (4,227,742) 1 -
(4,640,790) 24134225  (14,886,757) 24,149,070
. (27,000) 1 (27,000)
- (42,442,327) - (42,442,327)
- (85,582,794) - (85,582,794)
- - - (973,117)
- - (34996250)  (34,996,250)
. (8,626,140) 1 (8,626,140)
10,945,716 30,961,377 9,947,120 29,936,785
898,011,972 760,821,860 887,173,065 716,920,777
(87.027,431)  1,021,586,501  (287,339,025) 1,187,257,942
58,560,001 (6,517,535) 234,485,505  (147,595,758)
(381.298,454)  1,678,001,579  (221,549,321)  1,718,454,636

(821,355,869)
65,726,350
47,151,073

430,306,959

362,253

296,179,699
(26,197,709)
(264,266,610)
609,110,584

3,765,120

(821,355,869)
60,327,652
432,334,910

(692,143)

296,179,699
(20,790,011)
542,519,516

5,712,325
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usun 3lu-lne 15USIe3) waud AauansAdu 91Ma (UKIBU) La:usEngay
Juns:uaibuaa (da)
& Ksulaugadun 31 SumAu 2553 tla: 2552

(Kuog: un)
JUNITRUTIN JUNgRUANIZRANIg

2553 2552 2553 2552
(456,068,946) (923,017,695) (418,549,370) (894,625,721)
(7,082,986) (13,247 ,428) (7,065,866) (13,247 ,428)
484,182,996 286,906,613 339,271,396 210,151,450
& (454,320,000) - (454,320,000)
1,452,339,473 (1,521,446,186) 1,446,998,435 (1,511,171,729)
(69,565,559) (110,571,498) (51,424,697) (101,714,032
(1,452,243) 195,882 : -
1,612,789,589 1,336,983,177 1,692,614,672 1,633,731,666
(10,062,576) (31,046,562) (9.947,120) (31,098,675)
(238,641,214) (278.896,333) (227,830,671) (270,544,8806)
1,364,085,799 1,027,040,282 1,354,836,881 1,232,088,105
(3.002) (30,694,131) (3.002) (30,694,131)
200,349,042 (200,349,042) 200,349,042 (200,349,042)
2,524,391 3,081,977 27,500,000 (223,000,000)
7 - . (4,999.600)
- (13,650,058) = (13,650,058)
7 (250,000) a (250,000)
(202,300,268) (143,439,462) (201,043,705) (126,420,965)
31,868,684 18,815,213 31,522,890 18,791,134
g - - 973,117
34,996,250 34,996,250 34,996,250 34,996,250
- 8,626,140 - 8,626,140
- 94,500 - 94,500
. 50,129,740 . 50,129,740
67,435,097 (272,638,873) 93,321,475 (485,752 ,915)
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Juns:uasuaa (cia)
&KSUUEugaIun 31 SurAu 2553 ua: 2552

(Ku29: un)

JUNFRUTIY JUNNTRUEANIZAANNT

2553 2552 2553 2552
9 (539,445,925) S (539,445,925)
(81,794,031) (96,883,496) (81,794,031) (96,883,496)
5 (200,000,000) = (200,000,000)
9 - o (16,000,000)
(154,193,301) - (154,193,301) -
(235,987,332) (836,329,421) (235,987,332) (852,329,421)
1,195,533,564 (81,928,012) 1,212,171,024 (105,994,231)
861,214,408 943,142,420 776,141,451 882,135,682
2,056,747 972 861,214,408 1,988,312,475 776,141,451
34,690,928 - 34,690,928 -
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&Ksulaugadun 31 SumAu 2553 lla: 2552
Tayaalyl
15 Alu-Ine BuUATES LOUA ABLARSATU 91179 vnay CLsEn ) Tulssmuvnruadnaua zigidunludszinalne
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Report and Consolidated Financial Statements

Sino-That Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
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Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and it’s subsidiaries
Report and consolidated financial statements
31 December 2010 and 2009

Report of Independent Auditor
To the Shareholders of Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited
| have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public

Company Limited and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2010, the related consolidated statements of income, changes in
shareholders” equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and the separate financial statfements of Sino-Thai
Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited for the same period. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the management of the Company and its subsidiaries as to their correctness and the completeness of the
presentation. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. The consolidated
financial statements of Sino-Thai Engineering and Constfruction Public Company Limited and ifs subsidiaries, and the
separafe financial statements of Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited for the year ended 31
December 2009, as presented herein for comparative purposes, were audited in accordance with generally accepted
audifing standards by another auditor of our firm who, under his report dated 19 February 2010, expressed an unqualified
opinion on those financial statements.

| conducted my audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that |
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. | believe that my audit provides a
reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries and of Sino-Thai Engineering
and Construction Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2010, the results of their operatfions, and cash flows for the

year then ended, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

G

Khitsada Lerdwana
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4958
Ernst & Young Office Limited
Bangkok: 15 February 2011
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Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and it’s subsidiaries

Assefts
Current assetfs
Cash and cash equivalents
Current investments
Trade accounts receivable
Unrelated parties - net
Related parties - net
Trade accounts receivable - net
Unbilled receivables
Retention receivables - net
Construction in progress
Short-term loans to other companies
Current portion of loans to related parties
Condominium units for sales
Ofther current assets
Advances to subcontractors - net
Withholding income tax
Others - net
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Restricted bank deposits
Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in associates
Ofther long-term investments - net
Loans to related parties - net of current
portion
Property, plant and equipment - net
Other non-current assetfs
Land awaiting for development
Ofthers - net
Total non-current assets

Total assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Balance sheets
As at 31 December 2010 and 2009

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated nancial statements Separate nancial statements

Note 2010 2009 2010 2009
6 2,056,747 972 861,214,408 1,988,312,475 776,141,451
- 200,349,042 - 200,349,042
7 966,970,916 870,724,448 942,396,153 660,596,157
7.8 2,348,357 60,908,358 38,782,832 278,081,341
9569.319,273 931,632,806 981,178,985 938,677,498
8 1.965,298,589 1.584,000,135 1.716,448,542 1.494,899,221
8 182,321,040 248,047,390 182,312,040 242,639,692
1,042,626,000 221,270,131 1,042,626,000 221,270,131
9 53,926,185 11,036,308 = -
8 722,828 3,538,598 37,500,000 27,500,000
16 525,188,426 572,339,499 = -
214,492,306 385,911,000 118,067,231 286,123,161
241,257,807 315,020,627 227,830,671 270,544,886
48,764,001 42,985,541 41,199,172 34,933,267
7.290,664,427 5,377,345,485 6,335,475,116 4,493,078,349
27 113,174,335 113,171,333 113,174,335 113,171,333
10 = - 445,089,605 445,089,605
12 108,271,740 176,218,623 2,799,700 16,449,758
13 10,802,004 10,052,004 1,000,000 1,000,000
8 6,606,389 6,315,010 158,000,000 195,500,000
14 2,624,113,954 3,046,306,187 2,5632,186,546 2,708,711,949
38,000,000 38,000,000 = -
16.499.607 16,861,860 17.316,005 16,623,862
2,917.468,029 3.406,925,017 3.269.566,191 3.496,546,507
10,208,132,456 8.784,270,502 9.,605,041,307 7.989,624,856
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Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and it’s subsidiaries
Balance sheets (continued)
As at 31 December 2010 and 2009

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial statements  Separate financial statements
Note 2010 2009 2010 2009

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities
Trade accounts payable

Unrelated parties 1,400,528,681 1.856,597.627 1,398,908,555 1,817,457 ,925

Related parties 8 991,817 8,074,803 1,009,684 8,075,552
Total trade accounts payable 1.401,520,498 1.864,672,430 1,399.918.241 1,825,5633,477
Unbilled payable 1,770,932,422 1.286,749,426 1,5625,274,521 1,186,003,125
Current portion of hire purchase creditors

and financial leases payable 15 77,134,686 76,500,365 77,134,686 76,500,365
Other current liabilities

Advances received from construction 8 2,104,582,090 652,242,617 2,006,452,358 559,453,923

confracts

Undue output tax 44,698,328 58,133,682 46,198,441 65,525,200

Others 134,088,587 192,557,721 122,893,811 164,991,749
Total current liabilities 5,632,956,611 4,130,856,241 5,177,872,058 3.868,007,839
Non-current liabilities
Hire purchase creditors and financial 15 23,028,638 70,766,063 23,028,638 70,766,063
leases payable net of current portion
Long-term loan and interest payable 16 68,139,709 67,256,569 - -
Other non-current liabilities 5,297,804 6,749,067 = -
Total non-current liabilities 96,466,151 144,771,699 23,028,638 70,766,063
Total liabilities 5,629,422,762 4,275,627,940 5,200,900,696 3,938,773,902

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and it’s subsidiaries
Balance sheets (continued)
As at 31 December 2010 and 2009

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Note 2010 2009 2010 2009
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital
Registered
1,186.208,619 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each 1,186,208.619 1,186,208,619 1,186,208.619 1,186,208,619
Issued and fully paid-up
1.186,208,619 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each 1,186,208,619 1,186,208,619 1,186,208,619 1,186,208,619
Share premium 2,097,055,812 2,097,055,812 2,097,055,812 2,097,055,812
Unrealised gain
Revaluation surplus 17
The Company’s revaluation surplus 445,631,620 445,631,620 445,631,620 445,631,620
Share of revaluation surplus of subsidiary - 175,738,998 - -
445,631,620 621,370,618 445,631,620 445,631,620
Revaluation deficit on changes in
value of avilable-for-sale securities (202,250) (809,000) = -
Translafion adjustment 83,779 261,444 = -
Retained eamings
Appropriated - statutory reserve 18 41,471,893 16,097,745 41,471,893 16,097,745
Unappropriated 711,515,856 447,323,148 633,772,667 305,857,158
Equity atfributable to
the company’s shareholders 4,481,765,329 4,367,508,386  4,404,140,611 4,050,850,954
Minority inferest - equity attributable to minority
shareholders of subsidiaries 96,944,365 141,134,176 = -
Total shareholders’ equity 4,578,709,694 4,508,642,562 4,404,140,611 4,050,850,954
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 10,208,132,456 8,784,270,502 9.,605,041,307 7.,989,624,856

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

L. Vellop
%74@,,, Y A
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Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and it’s subsidiaries
Income ststements
For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial statements  Separate financial statements
Note 2010 2009 2010 2009

Revenues
Construction income 9,192,694,019 11,914,139,041 9.029,815,164 11.,808,390,821
Sales and services income 97,935,356 66,803,853 = -
Other income

Interest income 15,826,427 11,990,740 22,762,582 14,968,498

Dividend income = 8,626,140 34,996,250 44,595,507

Gain on sales of other investments = 42,469,327 = 42,469,327

Others 54,579,681 64,364,434 49,715,981 53,977,440
Total revenues 9.361,035483  12,108,393,535 9,137.,289.977 — 11,964,401,593
Expenses
Cost of construction 8,350,874,987  11,358,620,534 8,192,001,621 11,261,693,445
Cost of sales and services 79,831,487 38,007,194 = -
Administrative expenses 402,985,995 335,431,008 394,587,278 322,531,461
Management benefit expenses 37,766,000 32,692,500 33,271,000 28,285,000
Total expenses 8.,871,458,469 11,764,751,236 8.,619,859,899 11,612,509,906
Income before share of income (loss) from

investments in associates, finance cost

and corporate income tax 489,577,014 343,642,299 517,430,078 351,891,687
Share of income (loss) from investment

in associates (32,772,969 4,227,742 - -
Income before finance cost and corporate

income tax 456,804,045 347,870,041 517,430,078 351,891,687
Finance cost (10,945,716) (30,961,377) (9.947,120) (29,936,785)
Income before corporate income tax 445,858,329 316,908,664 507,482,958 321,954,902
Corporate income tax 20 (2,508,501) (8.492,811) - -
Net income for the year 443,349,828 308,415,853 507,482,958 321,954,902
Net income attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 443,760,157 304,824,998 507,482,958 321,954,902
Minority interests of the subsidiaries (410,329) 3,590,855

443,349,828 308,415,853

Basic earnings per share 21
Net income attributable to equity holders

of the parent 0.37 0.26 0.43 0.27

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Balance as af 31 December 2008

Income and expenses recognised directly in equity:
Share of amortisafion of revaluation surplus
of subsidiary
Investment in available-for-sale securties
Gain recognised in shareholders” equity
Redlised gain due to disposals
Translation adjustments
Net income and expenses recognised directly
in equity
Net income for the year
Total income and expenses for the year
Unappropriated retained eamings fransfered
to statutory reserve
Deficit offset against statutory reserve

Deficit offset against share premium

Increase in minority interest of subsidiary

Balance s af 31 December 2009

The accompanying notes

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and it’s subsidiaries
Statement of changes in shareholders’equity
For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Equity attributable to the parent’s shareholders

Minority
Retained eamings interestequity
The Com- Share of surplus (dificit) - Totalequity attibutable
pany’s revaluation on changes in Appropriated- attibutable to to minority
Issued and 5 . Unappropri-
fully paicup Share revaluation surplus of value of Translationad- statutory afed the parent's  shareholders of
Note _share capital premium suplus subsidiory investments justrnent reserve. (deficit) shareholders subsidiories Total
1,186208619 3319552695 445,631,620 362,182,774 10079467 - 103038015 4,259,754,187 181274695 4441028882
(1,166,939,003)
17 - - - (186,443,776) - - - - (186,443,776) (44018,274) (230462/050)
- - - - 1.213500 - - - 1213500 286,500 1,500,000
- - - - (12,101.967) - - - (12,101.967) - (12,101.967)
- - - - - 261444 - - 261444 - 261444
- - - (186,443,776) (10,888.467) 261444 - - (197070799 (43,731.774) (240,802/573)
- - - - - - - 304,824,998 304824998 3,590,855 308415853
- - - (186,443,776) (10.888.467) 261444 - 304,824,998 107,754,199 (40,140919) 67,613,280
18 - - - - - - 16,097,745 (16,097,745 - - -
22 - - - - - - (103,038.015) 103038015 - - -
22 - - - - - - 1222496883 - - -
(1,222496,883)

- - - - - - - - 40 400
1,186,208.619 20097055812 445,631,620 175,738.998 (809.000) 261444 16,097,745 447,323,148 4,367 508,386 141,134,176 4508642562

are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Balance as at 31 December 2009
Income and expenses recognised directly in equity:
Share of amortisation of revaluation surplus

of subsidiary
Investment in available-for-sale security -

gain recognised in shareholders’ equity
Translation adjustment
Net income and expenses recognised directly
in equity

Net income for the year

Total income and expenses for the year

Dividend paid

Unappropriated retained earnings transferred
to statutory reserve

Decrease in minority interest of subsidiary

Balance as at 31 December 2010

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and it’s subsidiaries
Statement of changes in shareholders’equity (continued)
For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Equity attributable to the parent’s shareholders

Share of  Revalution deficit Total equity Minority interest -
Issued and The Company’s  revaluation on changes in Retained earnings attrioutable equity atfributableto
fully poid-up revaluation suplus of value of Translation Approprioted- fo the parent's  minortty sharehold-

Nofe _share capital ~ Share premium suplus subsicliory investments adjustment statutory reserve  Unappropriated shareholders ers of subsidiaries Total

1186208619 2097055812 ABE31620 175738998 (809.000) 261444 16097.745 44732348 4367508386 141,134,176 4508642562

17 - - - (175738998) - - - - (175,738.998) 43921752)  (219660,750)

- - - - 606,750 - - - 606,750 143250 750000

- - - - - (177 665) - - (177 665) - (177,665

- - - (175738998) 606,750 (177 665) - - (175309913) 43778502) (219088415

- - - - - - - 443,760,157 443760157 @10329) 443349828

- - - (175738998) 606,750 (177 665) - 443,760,157 268480244 (44,188831) 224261413

23 - - - - - - - (154,193,301) (154,193,301) - (154193301
18 - - - - - - 25374148 (25374,148) - -

1,186208619 2097055812 445631620 - (202,250) 83779 41471893 711515856 4481,765329 96944365 4578709694

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and it’s subsidiaries
Statement of changes in shareholders’equity (continued)
For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

Note

Balance as at 31 December 2008

Expenses recognised directly in equity:

Investment in available-for-sale security -
realised gain due fo disposals

Net expenses recognised directly in equity

Net income for the year

Total income and expenses for the year

Unappropriated retained earnings transferred

to statutory reserve 18
Decit offset against statutory reserve 222
Decit offset against share premium 222

Balance as af 31 December 2009

Balance as af 31 December 2009
Net income for the year
Dividend paid 23
Unappropriated retained earnings transferred

to statutory reserve 18
Balance as at 31 December 2010

(Unit : Baht)

Separate financial statements

Revaluation
surplus
Issued and The Company’s  on changes in Retained earnings
fully paid-up Share revaluation value of Appropriated- Unappropriated
share capital premium surplus investment statutory reserve (decit) Total
1,186,208,619 3,319,552,695 445,631,620 12,101,967 103,038,015 (1,325,534,897) 3,740,998,019
- - - (12,101,967) - - (12,101,967)
- - - (12,101,967) - - (12,101,967)
- - - - - 321,954,902 321,954,902
- - - (12,101,967) - 321,954,902 309,852,935
- - - - 16,097,745 (16,097,745) -
- - - - (103,038.015) 103,038,015 -
- (1,222,496,883) - - - 1,222,496,883 -
1,186,208,619 2,097,085,812 445,631,620 - 16,097,745 305,857,168  4,050,850,954
1,186,208,619 2,097,085,812 445,631,620 - 16,097,745 305,857,158  4,050,850,954
- - - - - 507,482,958 507,482,958
- - - - - (154,193,301) (154,193,301)
- - - - 25,374,148 (25,374,148) -
1,186,208,619 2,097,055,812 445,631,620 - 41,471,893 633,772,667 4,404,140,611

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and it’s subsidiaries
Cash flow statements
For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income before tax

Adjustments to reconcile net income before tax to

net cash provided by (paid from) operating activifies:

Depreciation
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Allowance for impaiment of investment in associate
Income from seftlement of doubtful debt
Shares of (income) loss from investments in associates
(Gain) loss from disposal and written-off of property,
plant and equipments
Gain from scles of markefable security
Gain on sales of other longterm investments
Decrease in provision for loss of projects
Income from investment - dividend received
from investment in subsidiory
Income from investment - dividend received
from investrent in associate
Income from investment - dividend received
from other long-term investment
Interest expenses
Income from operating activities before changes
in operating assets and liabilities
Operating assefs (increase) decreose
Trade accounts receivable
Trade accounts receivable - related parties
Unbiled receivables
Consfruction in progress
Retention receivables
Condominium unifs for scles
Other current assets

Other non-current assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
445,858,329 316,908,664 507,482,958 321,954,902
412,294,784 532,510,538 395,623,903 516,314,589
4,813,004 - 14,384,073 -
- - 13,650,058 -
(4,032,040) (2,786,941) (4,032,040) (2,786.,941)
32,772,969 (4,227,742) - -
(4,640,790) 24,134,225 (14,886,757) 24,149,070
- (27,000) - (27,000)
- (42,442,327) - (42,442,327)
- (85,582,794) = (85,682,794)
- - - (973,117)
- - (34,996,250) (34,996,250)
S (8,626,140) = (8,626,140)
10,945,716 30,961,377 9,947,120 29,936,785
898,011,972 760,821,860 887,173,065 716,920,777
(87,027.431) 1,021,586,501 (287.,339,025) 1,187,257 ,942
58,560,001 (6,517,535) 234,485,505 (147 ,595,758)

(381,298,454)
(821,355,869)
65,726,350
47,151,073
430,306,959
362,253

1.678,001,579
296,179,699
(26,197,709)
(264,266,610)
609,110,584
3,765,120

(221.,549.,321)
(821.,355.,869)
60,327,652
432,334,910
(692,143)

1.718.454,636
296,179,699
(20,790,011)
542,519,516
5,712,325



Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and it’s subsidiaries
Cash flow statements (continued)
For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

Operating liabilities increase (decrease)
Trade accounts payable
Trade accounts payable - related parties
Unbilled payable
Cash receipt under construction contract
Advances received from construction contfracts
Ofther current liabilities
Other non-current liabilities
Cash flows from operatfing activities
Cash paid for interest expenses
Cash paid for corporate income tax
Net cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Increase in restricted bank deposits
(Increase) decrease in current investments
(Increase) decrease in loans to related parties
Purchase of investment in subsidiary
Purchase of investment in associate
Purchase of other long-term investment
Aquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sales of assefs
Dividend received from investment in subsidiary
Dividend received from investment in associate
Dividend received from other long-ferm investment
Proceeds from sales of marketable security
Proceeds from sales of other long-term investments

Net cash from (used in) investing activities

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

2010 2009 2010 2009

(456,068,946) (923,017,695) (418,549,370) (894,625,721)

(7,082,986) (13,247 ,428) (7.065,866) (13,247 ,428)

484,182,996 286,906,613 339,271,396 210,151,450

= (454,320,000) . (454,320,000)

1.452,339.473  (1,521,446,186) 1.446,998,435  (1,511,171,729)

(69.565,559) (110,571,498) (51.424,697) (101,714,032)

(1,452,243) 195,882 - -

1.612,789,589 1.336,983,177 1.592,614,672 1.5633,731.,666

(10,062,576) (31,046,562) (9.947,120) (31,098,675)

(238,641.214) (278,896,333) (227.830,671) (270,544,886)

1,364,085,799 1,027.,040,282 1,354,836,881 1,232,088,105

(3.002) (30,694,131) (3.002) (30,694,131)

200,349,042 (200,349.,042) 200,349,042 (200,349,042)

2,624,391 3,081,977 27,500,000 (223,000,000)

- - - (4,999.600)

- (13.,650,058) 8 (13,650,058)

- (250,000) § (250,000)

(202,300,268) (143.439,462) (201,043,705) (126,420,965)

31,868,684 18,815,213 31,522,890 18,791,134

= - & 973,117

34,996,250 34,996,250 34,996,250 34,996,250

= 8,626,140 & 8,626,140

= 94,500 & 94,500

= 50,129,740 3 50,129,740

67.435,097 (272,638.873) 93.321.475 (485,752 ,915)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and it’s subsidiaries
Cash flow statements (continued)
For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

Cash flows from financing activities
Decrease in bank overdrafts and short-tferm loans
from financial institutions
Decrease in hire purchase and financial leases payable
Repayment of long-term loan
Decrease in loan from related party
Dividend paid
Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Supplementary cash flows information
Non-cash items
Increase of equipments from hire purchase

and financial lease agreements

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

2010 2009 2010 2009

= (539,445 ,925) = (539,445,925)

(81,794,031) (96.,883.496) (81,794,031) (96.,883.496)

- (200,000,000) = (200,000,000)

- - - (16,000,000)

(154,193,301) - (154,193,301) -

(235,987,332) (836,329,421 (235,987,332) (852,329,421)

1,195,5633,564 (81,928,012) 1.212,171,024 (105,994,231)

861,214,408 943,142,420 776,141,451 882,135,682

2,056,747 972 861,214,408 1,988,312,475 776,141,451

34,690,928 - 34,690,928 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and it’s subsidiaries
Note to consolidated financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009

General information
Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited (“the Company”) is a public company incorporated
and domiciled in Thailand. The Company is principally engaged in the provision of construction services. The

registered office of the Company is 32/59-32/60, Sino-Thai Tower, Sukhumvit 21 Road, Klongtoey-Nua, Wattana,

Bangkok.

2. Basis of preparation

2.1 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting standards enunciated under the
Accounting Profession Act B.E. 25647 and their presentation has been made in compliance with the stipulations of the
Notification of the Department of Business Development dated 30 January 2009, issued under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.
The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the Company. The financial
statements in English language have been franslated from the Thai language financial statements.
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise disclosed in the
accounting policies.

2.2 Basis of consolidation
a) The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company (“the Company”) and

the following subsidiaries and joint ventures which are all incorporated in Thailand:

Assets as a Revenues as a
percentage to the percentage to the
consolidated total consolidated total

Percentage of assets as at revenues for the year

Company’s nhame Nature of business shareholding 31 December ended 31 December
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent

Subsidiaries
HTR Corporation Limited Ofce building rental 80.90 80.90 4.56 8.48 1.09 0.54
Patumwan Real Estate Company Provision of document 80.90 80.90 0.05 0.04 0.04 0.03
Limited storage service

(Wholly owned by HTR Corporation

Limited)

Kijoracha Tanee Company Limited.  Real estate 80.90 80.90 3.06 3.52 0.01 -
(Wholly owned by HTR Corporation development
Limited)

Matter Supply Company Limited Manufacturing and 99.99 99.99 0.05 0.06 - -

distribution of mold

Joint Ventures

S.L. Joint Venture Construction 70.00 70.00 0.22 1.74 0.19 8.66
S.A. Joint Venture Construction 80.00 80.00 6.16 7.94 8128 5.24
Sino-Thai-A.S. Joint Venture Constfruction 58.00 58.00 0.03 1.25 - -

Annual Report 2010

I
=)
o
=)
)
]
&2
]
=)
(1]
3
(1]
=)
=




b)

©)

o))

e)

Subsidiaries and joint ventures are fully consolidated as from the date of acquisition, being the date on which

the Company obtains confrol, and continue to be consolidated unftil the date when that such control ceases.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries and joint ventures are prepared using the same significant

accounting policies as the Company.

Material balances and fransactions between the Company and ifs subsidiaries and joint venfures have been

eliminated from the consolidated financial statements.

Minority interests represent the portion of net income or loss and net assets of the subsidiaries that are not held

by the Company and are presented separately in the consolidated income statement and within equity in the

consolidated balance sheet.

2.3 Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method.

The financial statements of overseas associate are franslated into Thai Baht af the closing exchange rate as to assets

and liabilities, and at monthly average exchange rates as to revenues and expenses. The resultant differences are

shown under the caption of “Translation adjustment” in shareholders’ equity.

2.4 The separate financial statements, which present investments in subsidiaries, joint venfures and associates presented

under the cost method, have been prepared solely for the benefit of the public.

3. Adoption of new accounting standards

During the current year, the Federatfion of Accounting Professions issued a number of revised and new accountfing

sfandards as listed below.

a

Accounting standards that are effective for fiscal years beginning on or affer 1 January 2011 (except Framework for

the Preparation and Presentatfion of Financial Statements, which is immediately effective):

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements

(revised 2009)

TAS 1 (revised 2009)

TAS 2 (revised 2009)

TAS 7 (revised 2009)

TAS 8 (revised 2009)

TAS 10 (revised 2009)
TAS 11 (revised 2009)
TAS 16 (revised 2009)
TAS 17 (revised 2009)
TAS 18 (revised 2009)
TAS 19

TAS 23 (revised 2009)
TAS 24 (revised 2009)
TAS 26

TAS 27 (revised 2009)
TAS 28 (revised 2009)
TAS 29

TAS 31 (revised 2009)
TAS 33 (revised 2009)
TAS 34 (revised 2009)
TAS 36 (revised 2009)
TAS 37 (revised 2009)
TAS 38 (revised 2009)
TAS 40 (revised 2009)
TFRS 2

TFRS 3 (revised 2009)
TFRS 5 (revised 2009)
TFRS 6

TFRIC 15
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Presentation of Financial Statements

Inventories

Statement of Cash Flows

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
Events after the Reporting Period

Construction Contracts

Property, Plant and Equipment

Leases

Revenue

Employee Benefits

Borrowing Costs

Related Party Disclosures

Accounting and Reporting by Retfirement Benefit Plans
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
Investments in Associates

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
Interests in Joint Ventures

Earnings per Share

Interim Financial Reporting

Impairment of Assets

Provisions, Contfingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Intangible Assets

Investment Property

Share-Based Payment

Business Combinations

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources
Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate



b) Accounting standards that are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2013:

TAS 12 Income Taxes

TAS 20 (revised 2009) Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government
Assistance

TAS 21 (revised 2009) The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

The Company’s management believes that these accounting standards will not have any significant impact on
the financial statements for the year when they are inifially applied, except for the following accounting standards
which management expects the impact on the financial statements in the year when they are adopted.
TAS 16 (revised 2009) Property, Plant and Equipment
According fo this accounting standard, an entity which presents its property, plant and equipment (PPE) on a
revaluation basis is required tfo charge depreciation on the total revalued amount to its income statement. Currently,
as permifted by the relevant nofification of the Federation of Accounting Professions, only the depreciation
calculated on the original cost of PPE is charged to the income statement. The change in this accounting policy in
2011 will have no effect to the Company’s retained earnings.
TAS 19 Employee Benefits
This accounting standard requires employee benefits fo be recognised as expense in the period in which the service
is performed by the employee. In particular, an entity has to evaluate and make a provision for post-employment
benefits using actuarial techniques. Currently, the Company accounts for such employee benefits when they are
incurred.
At present, the management is evaluating the impact on the financial statements in the year when this standard is
adopted.
TAS 40 (revised 2009) Investment Property
This accounting standard requires an entity fo classify property held to earn rental or for capital appreciation as
investment property and allows to present it by using either a cost model or a fair value model. For the cost model,
the entity requires to disclose its fair value in notes to financial statements. For fair value model, the entity requires to
recognise the changes in value of the cost model and the fair value model in income statement.
At present, the management is evaluating the impact on the financial statements in the year when this standard is
adopted.
TAS 12 Income Taxes
This accounting standard requires an entity to identify temporary differences, which are differences between the
carrying amount of an asset or liability in the accounting records and its fax base, and fo recognize deferred tax
assets and liabilities under the stipulated guidelines.
At present, the management is evaluating the impact on the financial statements in the year when this standard is
adopted.
Significant accounting policies
Revenues and expenses recognition
a) Revenues
Revenues from construction
Revenues from construction are recognised on a percentage of completion basis based on the assessment of
the Company’s engineers. The recognised revenue which is not yet due per the contracts has been presented
under the caption of “Unbilled receivables” in the balance sheets.
Revenues from sales of condominium units
Revenue from sales of condominium units are recognised as revenue when the construction works are

completed and the ownership is transferred to the buyer after receiving payments in full.
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4.3

4.4

Rental and relating service income

Rental and relating service incomes are recognised over the period of the lease agreement.
Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis based on the effective rate method.
Dividends

Dividends are recognised when the right to receive the dividends is established.

b)  Expenses
Costs of construction
Costs of construction are recognised in accordance with the percentage of work completed based on total
estimated costs. Provision for anficipated losses on construction projects is made in the accounts in full when the
possibility of loss is ascertained. Differences between the estimated costs and the actual costs are recognised as
current assets or current liabilities in the balance sheets.

Cost of sales of condominium units

In determining the costs of condominium unifs sold, the anticipated fotal development costs (affer recognising
the costs incurred to date) are aftributed to unifs already sold on the basis of the salable area and then
recognised as costs in the income statement according to the recorded sales.

Development cost of condominium units for sales are stated at cost, consisting of the cost of land, construction
costs, land pledging expenses, interest and other related costs.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, cash at bank and all highly liquid investments with an original

maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions.

Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided for the

estimated losses that may be incurred in collection of receivables. The allowance is severally based on collection

experiences and analysis of debt aging.

Investments

a) Investments in unit frusts of open-ended fund are stated at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
carrying amounts of unit frusts are included in determining income.

b) Investments in available-for-sale securities are stated at fair value. Changes in the fair value of these securities
are recorded as a separate item in shareholders’ equity, and will be recorded as gains or losses in the income
statement when the securities are sold.

c) Investments in non-marketable equity securities, which the Company classifies as other investments, are stated
at cost net of allowance for loss on diminution in value (if any).

d) Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method.

e) Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are accounted for in the separate financial statements
using the cost method.

The fair value of marketable securities is based on the latest bid price of the last working day of the year as quoted

on the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The fair value of unit frusts is determined from their net asset value.

The weighted average method is used for computation of the cost of investments.

In the event the Company and its subsidiaries reclassify investments from one fype to another, such investments will

be readjusted to their fair value as at the reclassification date. The difference between the carrying amount of the

investments and the fair value on the date of reclassification are recorded as gains or losses in the income statement
or recorded as surplus (deficit) from changes in the value of investments in shareholders’ equity, depending on the
type of investment that is reclassified.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the investment is

recognised as income or expenses in the income statement.
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4.5

4.6

4.7

Property, plant and equipment/Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost or revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and

allowance for loss on impairment of assets (if any).

Property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost on the acquisition date. Land for rent, and land and

condominium for rent were however subsequently revalued by independent professional appraisers, to their fair

values using the market approach. Revaluations are to be made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying
amount of assets does not differ materially from their fair value at the balance sheet date.

Differences arising from the revaluation are dealt with in the financial statements as follows:

- When an asset’s carrying amount is increased as a result of the revaluation of the Company and its subsidiaries’
assets, the increase is credited directly to equity under the heading of “"Revaluation surplus on assets”. However,
a revaluation increase will be recognised as income to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the
same asset previously recognised as an expense.

- When an asset’s carrying amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation of the Company and its subsidiaries’
assets, the decrease is recognised as an expense in the income statement. However, a revaluation decrease is
to be charged directly against the related “Revaluation surplus of assets” to the extent that the decrease does
not exceed the amount held in the “Revaluation surplus of assets” in respect of those same assets. Any excess
amount is to be recognised as an expense in the income statement.

Depreciation of buildings and equipments is calculated by reference to the costs of assets or the revalued amounts

on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Rental condominium - 24 years
Buildings and building improvements - 20 vyears
Leasehold improvements - 10 years
Mock up room - 5 years
Machinery and equipment - 5-30 vyears
Furniture, xtures and ofce equipment - 5 years
Motor vehicles - 5-10 vyears

The depreciation is dealt with the financial statements as follows:

- Depreciation atfributed to the original cost portion is included in determining income.

- Depreciation attributed to the surplus portion is deducted against revaluation surplus in shareholders’ equity.

No depreciation is provided on land, land improvements and assets under construction.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arisihng on disposal of an asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when
the asset is derecognised.

Related party transactions

Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are confrolled by, the Company, whether directly
or indirectly, or which are under common confrol with the Company.

They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly own a voting inferest in the
Company that gives them significant influence over the Company or ifs subsidiaries, key management personnel,
directors, and officers with authority in the planning and direction of the Company s’ operations.

Long-term leases

Leases of equipment which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The oufstanding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other long-term

payables, while the interest element is charged to the income statements over the lease period. The assets acquired
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4.8

4.9

under finance leases are depreciated over the useful life of the asset.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income statement on a straight line basis over the
lease term.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the fransaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling
at the balance sheet date.

Gains and losses on exchange are included in defermining income.

Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, the Company performs impairment reviews in respect of the property, plant and equipment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset may be annual impaired. An impairment loss is
recognised when the recoverable amount of an asset, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use, is less than the carrying amount. In determining value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation
model is used. These calculations are corroborated by a valuation model that, based on information available,
reflects the amount that the Company could obtain from the disposal of the asset in an arm’s length fransaction
between knowledgeable, wiling parties, affer deducting the costs of disposal.

An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement. However in cases where land for rent, and land and
condominium for rent were previously revalued and the revaluation was taken to equity, a part of such impairment is
recognised in equity up to the amount of the previous revaluation.

In the assessment of asset impairment if there is any indicatfion that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognised. The increased carrying amount of the asset atfributable to a reversal of an
impairment loss shall not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the income statement unless the asset is carried af a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal, which exceeds the carrying amount that would have been determined, is

freated as a revaluation increase.

4.10 Employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund and provident fund are recognised as expenses

when incurred.

4.11 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company and its subsidiaries have a present obligafion as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the

obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

4,12 Income tax

Income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation authorities, based on the
taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislatfion.

Income tax of a subsidiary is provided in the accounts based on the taxable profits determined in accordance with
tax legislation while the subsidiary has been electing to compute its revenues and costs of sales of condominium units
when installments come due.

Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles at times requires
management to make subjective judgments and estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain. These
judgments and estimates affect reporfed amounts and disclosures; and actual results could differ from these
estimates. Significant judgments and estimates are as follows:

Estimated construction project costs
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The Company estimates costs of construction projects based on details of the construction work, taking info account

the volume and value of construction materials to be used in the project, labour costs and other miscellaneous costs
to be incurred to completion of service, taking into account the direction of the movement in these costs. Estimates
are reviewed regularly or whenever actual costs differ significantly from the figures used in the original estimates.
Provision for losses on construction projects

Management applied judgement in estimating the loss they expect to be realised on each construction project,
based on estimates of anticipated costs that take into account the progress of the project and actual costs incurred
to date, together with fluctuations in costs of construction materials, labour and the current situation.

Leases

In determining whether a lease is to be classified as an operating lease or finance lease, the management is
required to use judgment regarding whether significant risk and rewards of ownership of the leased asset has been
transferred, taking info consideration terms and conditions of the arrangement.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

In defermining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management needs fo make judgment and estimates based
upon, among other things, past collection history, aging profile of outstanding debts and the prevailing economic
condition.

Impairment of equity investments

The Company freats available-for-sale investments and other investments as impaired when the management judges
that there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below their cost or where other objective
evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgment.

Property plant and equipment/Depreciation

In determining depreciatfion of plant and equipment, the management is required to make estimates of the useful
lives and salvage values of the Company’s plant and equipment and to review estimate useful lives and salvage
values when there are any changes.

The Company and its subsidiaries measure land for rent and land and condominium for rent at revalued amounts.
Such amounts are defermined by the independent valuer using the market approach. The valuation involves certain
assumptions and estimates.

In addition, the management is required to review property, plant and equipment for impairment on a periodical
basis and record impairment losses in the period when it is determined that their recoverable amount is lower than
the carrying cost. This requires judgments regarding forecast of future revenues and expenses relating to the assets
subject to the review.

Litigation

The Company and its subsidiaries have contingent liabilities as a result of litigation. The Company’s management has
used judgment to assess of the results of the litigation and believes that no loss will result. Therefore no contfingent
liabilities are recorded as at the balance sheet date.

Cash and cash equivalents

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
Cash and bank deposits 156,295,507 11,583,726 138,312,475 6,011,451
Unit tfrusts 1.450,452,465 849,630,682 1,400,000,000 770,130,000
Bills of exchange 450,000,000 - 450,000,000 -
Total 2,056,747 972 861,214,408 1.988,312,475 776,141,451

The above unit trusts are unit frusts in open-ended, fixed-income fund which is highly liquid and are stated at fair value.
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Trade accounts receivable

The balances of frade accounts receivable as at 31 December 2010 and 2009, aged on the basis of due dates, are

summarised below.

Age of receivables
Unrelated parties
Not yet due
Past due
Less than 4 months
5 - 12 months
Over 12 months
Total

Less: Allowance for doubtful account

Related parties

Not yet due

Past due
Less than 4 months
5 - 12 months
Over 12 months

Total

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

Trade accounts receivable - net

Related party transactions

During the years, the Company and its subsidiaries had significant business fransactions with related parties, which have

been concluded af contract price which can be comparable to the price for unrelated parties. Below is a summary of

those fransactions.

Transactions with related companies
Construction income
Other income
Cost of consfruction
Purchase of investment

Transactions with associated company
Other income

Transactions with subsidiary companies

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009

877,351,466 677,312,466 863,262,562 467,627,642
33,403,507 142,092,338 32,925,139 141,650,369
2,250,251 4,914,588 2,242,760 4,913,090
120,173,471 121,479,678 120,173,471 121,479,678
1,033,178.695 945,799,070 1.018,603.932 735,670,779

(76,207,779 (75.074,622) (76,207,779 (75.074,622)
956,970,916 870,724,448 942,396,153 660,596,157
1,218,154 20,332,973 2,728,434 147,311,510
179,029 - 14,627,978 772,057
417,215 40,445,111 2,709.488 104,795,910
29,736,786 29,333,101 57,490,829 54,404,691
31,551,184 90,111,185 77 556,729 307,284,168

(29.202,827) (29.202,827) (38.773.897) (29.202,827)
2,348,357 60,908,358 38,782,832 278,081,341
959.319.273 931,632,806 981,178,985 938,677,498

(eliminated from the consolidated financial statements)

Constfruction income
Inferest income
Rental expenses
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Consolidated

financial statements

(Unit: Milion Baht)

Separate

financial statements

2010 2009 2010 2009
838 3,464 838 3,464
4 5 4 5
13 43 13 43
= 14 = 14
1 6 1 6
= - 157 1,578
= - 10 9
= - 9 8



As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the balance of the accounts between the Company and those related

companies are as follows:

Relationship

Assets
Trade accounts receivable - related parties

STP&I PLc. Commondirector
S.L. Joint Venture Subsidiary

S.A. Joint Venture Subsidiary
Sino-Thai-A.S. Joint Venture Joint venture

Philipp Holzmann (Thai) /
U.T.M. Engineering / Sino-Thai Joint Joint venture
Venture

DKK Sino-Thai Engineering Company Associate
Limited

Others related companies

Total

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

Net

Unbilled receivabies

S.A. Joint Venture Subsidiary

STP&I Plc. Common director
Total

Retention receivables

S.A. Joint Venture Subsidiary
Sino-Thai-A.S. Joint Venture Joint venture
Total

Loans to related parties

HTR Corporation Limited Subsidiary
Sino-Thai Tower Condominium Juristic Person  Related party
Total

Liabilities

Trade accounts payable - related parties

HTR Corporation Limited Subsidiary

STIT Co., Ltd. Common director
Total

Advances received from construction contracts

S.A. Joint Venture Subsidiary
STP&I Plc. Common director
Total

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
2010 2009 2010 2009

- 20,041,095 - 20,041,095

- - 28,494,412 150,866,430

- - 13,425,266 10,454,280

403,685 40,445,111 4,492,422 96,297,883
10,224,752 10,224,752 10,224,752 10,224,752
1,061,727 - 1,061,727 -
19,861,020 19,400,227 19,858,150 19,399.728
31,551,184 90,111,185 77,556,729 307,284,168
(29.202,827)  (29.202,827) (38,773,897)  (29.,202,827)
2,348,357 60,908,358 38,782,832 278,081,341
- - 264,554,217 500,071,587

- 71,711,104 - 71,711,104

- 71,711,104 264,554,217 571,782,691

- - 891,000 -

= 3,953,902 - 9,414,053

- 3,953,902 891,000 9,414,053

- - 195,500,000 223,000,000
7.329.217 9,853,608 - -
7.329.217 9,853,608 195,500,000 223,000,000
- - 17,869 749
991,817 8,074,803 991,817 8,074,803
991.817 8,074,803 1,009,686 8,075,552

- - 72,336,015 115,148,010

- 105,236,663 - 105,236,663

- 105,236,663 72,336,015 220,384,673

Annual Report 2010

-_r_l
=)
V)
=]
O,
o
&2
Q
=3
(1]
3
(1)
=)
=3




188

During 2010, movements of loans o related parties were as follow:

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements
Balance as af During the year Balance os at
Relationship 1 January 2010 Increase Decrease 31 December 2010
Loan tfo related parties
Sino-Thai Tower
Condominium Juristic Person Related party 9,853,608 - (2,524,391) 7,329,217
Inter-IMC Pte Limited Associate - 6,366,400 (6,366,400) -
9,853,608 6,366,400 (8.890,791) 7,329,217
(Unit: Baht)
Separate financial statements
Balance as af During the year Balonce as af 31
Relationship 1 January 2010 Increase Decrease December 2010
Loan to related parties
HTR Corporation Limited Subsidiary 223,000,000 - (27,500,000) 195,500,000
Inter-IMC Pte Limited Associate - 6,366,400 (6,366.400) -
223,000,000 6,366,400 (33,866,400) 195,500,000

Loan to Inter-IMC Pte Limited

The loan to Inter-IMC Pte Limited, amounting to SGD 271,400, is due for repayment at call and carries interest at the
MOR per annum. In November 2010, the Company received repayment of such loans in full.

Loan to Sino-Thai Tower Condominium Juristic Person

HTR Corporation Limited (HTR) granted a loan of Baht 19 million to Sino-Thai Tower Condominium Juristic Person (Sino-
Thai Tower). The loan carries flat interest rate at 8 percent per annum for the whole contract period. The loan and
relating inferest are repayable in 72 installments of which Baht 0.39 million is monthly due. The first installment started
in July 2006.

Later, on 20 September 2010, HTR and Sino-Thai Tower entered info an amendment agreement to loan agreement
No.1, extending the repayment period from 72 installments to 134 installments, and changing the repayments from
Baht 0.39 million to Baht 0.14 million, from the 51st installment in September 2010 onwards.

Loan to HTR Corporation Limited

The loan to HIR Corporation Limited, amounting to Baht 238 million, is repayable in 20 quarterly installments,
comprising both principal and interest. The loan carries inferest at MLR-1 percent per annum, and the first installment
is due in July 2009.

Directors and management’s remuneration

In 2010 the Company and its subsidiaries had salaries, bonus, meeting allowances and gratuities of their directors and
management recognised as expenses tofaling Baht 37.8 million (Separate financial statements: Baht 33.3 million)
(2009: Baht 32.7 million, Separate financial statements: Baht 28.3 million).

Short-term loans to other companies

Short-term loans to other companies of a subsidiary represent factoring receivables of the companies due for
repayment as stipulated in the agreements and carry interest rate of 9.50 -15.00 percent per annum (2009: 14.75 -

15.00 percent per annum).
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10.

Investments in subsidiaries

Details of investments in subsidiaries as presented in separate financial statements are as follows:

11.

(Unit: Baht)
Shareholding
Company’s hame Paid-up capital percentage Cost
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
(Million Baht)  (Million Baht) (%) (%)
HTR Corporation Limited 500 500 80.90 80.90 440,090,005 440,090,005
Matter Supply Company Limited 5 5 99.99 99.99 4,999,600 4,999,600
Total 445,089,605 445,089,605

Investments in joint ventures
Summarised financial information of the operated joint venture.

Sino-Thai A.S. Joint Venture

The proportionate shares of the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses that are included in the consolidated

financial statements in proportion to the investment in the joint venture are as follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

As at 31 December

Current assets
Non-current assets

Current liabilities

2010 2009
3 109
4

3 113

(@) ai13)
2 -

(Unit: Million Baht)

For the year ended 31 December

2010 2009

Revenue

1 1

Net income

1 1

Financial statements of joint ventures as included in the consolidated financial statements were prepared by their

managements and neither audited nor reviewed by their auditors. The Company believes that the financial

statements of joint ventures would not significantly differ if they had been audited or reviewed by auditors.
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Investments in associates

12.

12.1 Details of associates:

(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Country of Shareholding Carrying amounts based
Company’s name Nature of business incorporation percentage Cost on equity method
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
(%) (%)
DKK Sino-Thai Telecommunication Thailand 35 35 2,799,700 2,799,700 108,271,740 166,646,120
Engineering and fransmission
Company Limited lines installation
Inter-IMC Pte Limited  Construction Singapore 46 46 13,650,058 13,650,058 - 9,672,503
STF M Company Produce of cable lines Thailand 50 50 5,000,000 5,000,000 8,985,577 8,985,577
Limited but has ceased
operation
Less: Allowance for (8,985,577) (8,985,577)
impairment of
investment
Total 21,449,758 21,449,758 108,271,740 176,218,623
(Unit: Baht)
Separate financial statements
Country of Shareholding Allowance for impairment of Carrying amounts based
Company's name Nature of business incorporation percentage Cost investments on _cost method - net
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
(%) (%)
DKK Sino-Thai Telecommunication Thailand 35 35 2,799,700 2,799.700 2,799.700 2,799.700
Engineering and fransmission
Company Limited lines installation
Infer-IMC Pte Limited ~ Consfruction Singapore 46 46 13,650,058 13,650,058 (13,650,058) 13,650,058
STF M Company Produce of cable Thailand 50 50 5,000,000 5,000,000 (5,000,000) (5,000,000)
Limited lines but has
ceased operation
Total 21449758 21449.758 (18,650,058) (5000000 2,799.700 16,449,758

12.2 Share of income/loss and dividend received

During the year, the Company has recognised its share of net income/loss from investments in associate companies

in the consolidated financial statements and dividend income in the separate financial statements as follows:

Company’s name

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Share of income (loss) from

investments in associates during the year

Dividend received during the year

DKK Sino-Thai Engineering Company Limited'

Inter-IMC Pte Limited'

Total
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2010 2009 2010 2009
(23,378,131) 8,566,741 34,996,250 34,996,250
(9.394,838) (4,338,999) = -
(32,772,969 4,227,742 34,996,250 34,996,250




12.3 Summarised financial information of associates

Company’s name

Paid-up capital
as at

31 December

Total assets
as at

31 December

Total liabilities
as at

31 December

(Unit: Million Baht)

Total
revenues for
the vyear
ended

31 December

Net income
(loss) for the
year ended

31 December

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
DKK Sino-Thai Engineering
Company Limited' 8 8 346 486 36 10 110 484 (67) 21
o 1
Infer-IMC Pfe Limited 0.5* 0.5* 21 38 16 15 54 153 (19 )
S TF M Company Limited' 10 10 4 4 14 14 B . . .

*Million Singapore Dollar

12.4 The Company recognised share of losses from investment in an associate, as listed below, until the value of the investments
approached zero. Subsequent losses incurred by that associate has not been recognised in the Company’s accounts since
the Company has no obligations, whether legal or constructive, to make any payments on behalf of that associate. The

amount of such unrecognised share of losses is set out below.

(Unit: Million Baht)

Unrecognised share of losses

Share of losses for the Cumulative share of
year ended 31

December 2010

losses up to
Company’s hame 31 December 2010

STF M Company Limited'

@ ©)

Financial information and share of income or loss were determined based on the financial statements prepared by its
managements and neither audited nor reviewed by its auditors. The Company believes that the value of the investments

would not significantly differ if the financial statements had been audited or reviewed by auditors.
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13. Other long-term investments

2010 (Baht 390.3 million included in cost, and the balance in administrative expenses)

Net book value (if the assets carried at cost)

31 December 2009
31 December 2010

Annual Report 2010

99.135944
99.195.944

57,804,588
43,935,500

(Unit: Baht)
Shareholding
percent Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
% % Cost Fair value Cost Fair value Cost Fair value Cost Fair value
Investments in_available-for-
sale securities
Bangkok Commercial
Property Fund - - 10,000,000 9,750,000 10,000,000 9,000,000 - 1
Revaluation deficit on
changes in value
available for sale security (250,000) (1,000,000) -
9,750,000 9,000,000 -
Other investments
Abico Land Company Limited 15 15 30,000,000 30,000,000 30,000,000 30,000,000
Thai Maintenance
Contracting Company
Limited 19 19 7,611,406 7,611,406 7,611,406 7,611,406
Thai Contractors Asset Co., Ud. - g2 02 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Others 86,193,576 86,193,576 86,141,572 86,141,572
124,804,982 124,804,982 124,752,978 124,752,978
Less: Allowance for
impairment of
investments (123,752,978) (123,752,978) (123,752,978) (123,752,978)
1,052,004 1,052,004 1,000,000 1,000,000
Other long-term
investments-net 10,802,004 10,052,004 1,000,000 1,000,000
14. Property, plant and equipment
(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements
Revaluation basis Cost basis
Land and Furniture,
land Land and Land and Buildings Machinery fixtures and
improvements  condominium land and building Leasehold and office Motor Assets under
for rent for rent improvements improvements improvements  equipment equipment vehicles construction Total
Cost/Revalued amount:
31 December 2009 544767564 1,164,137.363 460,150,080 181,674,958 47965984 3251870876  216011,050 359722445 81338675  6,307.639.095
Additions 2903953 50947,286 39,681,927 4390356 139067674 236991,19
Disposals (525433) (208,260,545) (7852878)  (29.186319) (245,825,175)
Transfers 60000 1040650 53,055,383 459455 15,243,197 6260919 706655  (76,826.259)
31 December 2010 544827564 1,164,137,363 461,190,730 237,108,861 48425439 3109800814 254,101,118  335633,137 143580090  6,298,805,116
Accumulated depreciation:
31 December 2009 844678992 114520483 39489397 1776133346 176692638 309,818,052 3261,332.908
Depreciation 13,869,088 9,701,116 2677914 341570499 21,895,703 22,580,464 412,294,784
Amortisation of surplus 229,956,696 229.956,696
Disposals (282,460) (194/570,640) (7.335504)  (26,704622) (228,893.226)
Transfers (2.345) 2,345
31 December 2010 1,088.504.776 123939.139 42164966 1923135550 191252837 305693894 3674691,162
Net book value
31 December 2009 544,767.564 319.458,371 460,150,080 67,154,475 8476587 1475737530 39318512 49904393 81338475 3046306187
31 December 2010 544,807564 75,632,587 461,190,730 113,169,722 6200473 1,186665264 62,848,281 29939243 143580090 _ 2624,113954
Depreciation for the year
2009 (Baht 507.8 million included in cost, and the balance in administrative expenses) 582510538

412,294,784



Cost/Revalued amount
31-Dec-09

Additions

Disposals

Transfers

31-Dec-10
Accumulated depreciation
31-Dec-09
Depreciation

Disposals

Transfers

31-Dec-10

Net book value
31-Dec-09

31-Dec-10

Depreciation for the year

Separate financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Revaluation basis

Cost basis

Furniture,
Land and land Buildings and fixtures and
improvements Land and land building Leasehold Machinery and office Motor Assets under
for rent improvements _improvements _improvements equipment equiment vehicles construction Total

544,767,564 460,150,080 169,647,558 47,965,984 3,251,870,875 181,070,555 353,090,276 81,338,676 5,089.901,568
- 2,903,954 50,947,286 40,094,628 4,390,356 137,398/409 235,734,633
- (525,433) (208,260,545) (7.852,878)  (28,556,790) - (245,195,646)

60,000 1,040,650 53,055,383 459,455 15,243,197 4,591,654 706,655  (75,156,994)
544,827 564 461,190,730 225,081,462 48,425,439 3,109,800,813 217,903,959 329,630,497 143,580,091 5,080,440,555
- 114,057,510 39.489.397 1,776.133,346 144,301,262 307,208,104 - 2.381,189.619
- 9.099.746 2,677.914 341,570,499 20,832,645 21,443,099 - 395,623.903
= -282,460 (194,570,640) (7.335,504)  (26,370,909) - (228,559.513)
- - (2,345) 2,345 - - -
- 122,874,796 42,164,966 1,923,135,550 157,798,403 302,280,294 - 2,548,254,009
544,767 564 460,150,080 55,590,048 8,476,587 1,475,737 529 36,769,293 45,882,172 81,338,676 2,708,711,949
544,827 564 461,190,730 102,206,666 6,260,473 1,186,665,263 60,105,556 27,350,203 143,580,091 2,5632,186,546

2009 (Baht 493.8 milion included in cost, and the balance in administrative expenses)

2010 (Baht 376.2 milion included in cost, and the balance in administrative expenses)

Net book value (if the assefs caried at cost)

31 December 2009

31 December 2010

99.135,944
99,195,944

516,314,589

395,623,903

A breakdown of property, plant and equipment carmed on the revaluation basis and their accumulated depreciation is as follows:

Original cost

Surplus from revaluation

Revalued amount

Accumulated depreciation on original cost

Accumulated depreciation on revaluation surplus

Accumulated depreciation on revalued amount

(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

2010

2009

Land and land

Land and

Land and land Land and

improvements condominium  improvements  condominium
for rent for rent for rent for rent

99,195,944 362,164,193 99,135,944 362,164,193
445,631,620 801,973,170 445,631,620 801,973,170
544,827 564 1,164,137,363 544,767 564 1,164,137,363

= 318,228,693 - 304,359,605

= 770,276,083 - 540,319,387

= 1,088,504,776 - 844,678,992
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(Unit: Baht)
Separate financial statements

Land and improvements for rents

2010 2009
Original cost 99,195,944 99,135,944
Surplus from revaluation 445,631,620 445,631,620
Revalued amount 544,827 564 544,767 564

In October 2006, the Federation of Accounting Professions issued Nofification No. 25/2006 allowing entities which carry
their property, plant and equipment at revalued amounts to calculate depreciation to be charged to the income
statements based on the historical costs of the assefs instead of on the revalued amounts. The subsidiary has
decided to follow the nofification. However, had the depreciation charge been calculated based on the revalued

amounts, net income and earnings per share of equity holders of parent would have been presented as following:

Consolidated financial statements

2010 2009

Net income (Million Baht) 268 18
Earnings per share (Baht per share)

0.23 0.10

As at 31 December 2010, certain plant and equipment items have been fully depreciated but are sfill in use.

The gross carrying amount (before deducting accumulated depreciation of those assets) amounted to approximately
Baht 1,222.7 milion (2009: Baht 733.7 million) (Separate financial statements: Baht 1,191.2 million, 2009: Baht 704.4 million).
As at 31 December 2010, the Company had equipment and vehicles acquired under hire purchase agreement and

financial lease agreements, with net book value amounting fo approximately Baht 180.6 million (2009: Baht 181.3 million).

15. Liabilities under hire purchase and finance lease agreements

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements/

Separate financial statements

2010 2009
Liabilities under hire purchase and nance lease agreements 105,864,192 168,605,024
Less: Deferred interest expenses (56,700.,868) (11,338.,596)
Total 100,163,324 147,266,428
Less: Portion due within one year (77.134,686) (76,500,365)
Liobiities under hire purchase and nancial lease agreements - net of curent portion 23,028,638 70,766,063

The Company has entered into the hire purchase and finance lease agreements with leasing companies for rental of
equipment and motor vehicles for use in its operation, whereby it is committed to pay rental on a monthly basis. The
terms of the agreements are generally between 3 and 4 years. Such agreements are non-cancelable.

As at 31 December 2010, future minimum lease payments required under the hire purchase and finance lease
agreements were as follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

Less than 1 year 1-4 years Total

Future minimum lease payments 81 o5 106
Deferred inferest expenses

P @ @ ©

Present value of future minimum lease payments 77 23 100
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16.

17.

18.

Long-term loan and interest payable

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements
2010 2009
Other long-term loan 68,139,709 67,256,569
During the year, movements of long-term loans were as follow:
(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements
Balance as at During the year Balance as at
1 January 2010 Increase Decrease 31 December 2010
Ofther long-term loan 67,256,569 883,140 - 68,139,709

Other long-term loan

Other long-term loan from other person of subsidiary is promissory notes repayable at call. The subsidiary expects the
lenders not to call for repayment in the near future. In addition, the lender issued representation letters confirming
that is not to call for repayment within 1 year starting from the balance sheets dates. Therefore, the loan and interest
payable are presented as non-current liabilities in the balance sheets.

The subsidiary has mortgaged its ownership of condominium units for sales amount of Baht 308.7 million as collaterals
for the loan from other person. This loan is carrying interest rate at 2.5 percent per annum.

Revaluation surplus

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
Balance - beginning of year 621,370,618 807,814,394 445,631,620 445,631,620
Amortisation of revaluation surplus of a
subsidiary (proportionate to the Company’s
investment) (175,738.998) (186,443,776) - -
Balance - end of year 445,631,620 621,370,618 445,631,620 445,631,620

The revaluation surplus can neither be offset against retained deficit nor used for dividend payment.

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required fo set aside to a
statutory reserve at least 5 percent of its net income after deducting accumulated deficit brought forward (if any),
until the reserve reaches 10 percent of the registered capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend

distribution.
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19.

20.

21.

22,

22.

—_

Expenses by nature

Significant expenses by nature are as follow:

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2010 2009 2010 2009
Salary and wages and otheremployee benefits 1,935,637,103 2,454,296,501 1,925,431,031 2,444,334,928
Depreciation 412,294,784 532,510,538 395,623,903 516,314,589
Rental expenses from operating lease agreements 316,502,117 338,863,445 316,502,117 338,863,445
Construction materials and subcontractors 5,453,692,463 7.780,774,493 5,300,572,414 7.689.,483.415

Corporate income tax

The Company is not liable to corporate income tax for the year due to tax loss brought forward.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income for the year by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Share capital / Share premium

On 22 April 2009, the Annual General Shareholders” Meeting of the Company approved the following significant resolutions:
Reduce share capital by canceling 164,041,381 ordinary shares with a par value of Baht 1 each reserved for the
exercise of warrants, because no warrant holders have exercised their rights and the warrants have now expired.
Therefore, the Company’s registered capital is reduced to Baht 1,186,208,619 (1,186,208,619 ordinary shares with a par

value of Baht 1 each) and the Company registered such reduction of shares with the Ministry of Commerce.

22.2 Transfer Baht 103.0 million from the statutory reserve and Baht 1,222.5 million from share premium to offset the

23.

24,

25.

26.

Company’s deficit.

Dividend paid

On 23 April 2010, the Annual General Meeting of the Company’s shareholders passed a resolution approving the p
ayment of a dividend of Baht 0.13 per share to the Company’s shareholders from the Company’s income for the
year 2009, a total of Baht 154.2 million. The dividend was paid in May 2010.

Contracts in progress

As at 31 December 2010, the Company had aggregate amount of construction cost incurred and recognised profits
or losses to date for contracts in progress was approximately Baht 35,836 million (2009: Baht 39,707 million) and had
gross amounts due from customers for contracts in progress was approximately baht 2,759 milion (2009: Baht 1,716 million).
Segment information

The operations of the Company and ifs subsidiaries principally involve construction contracting, office building rental and
property development, and are mostly carried on in the single geographic area of Thailand. During the years 2010 and
2009, there were no material activities pertaining to the office building rental and property development segments. For this
reason, financial information has not been presented by industry segment.

Provident fund

The Company, its subsidiaries and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance with the
Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. Employees, the Company and its subsidiaries contributed to the fund monthly at the
rate of 3-5 percent of basic salaries. The fund, which is managed by BOA Asset Management Company Limited, will
be paid to employees upon ftermination in accordance with the fund rules. During the year 2010, the Company and

its subsidiaries contributed Baht 15.6 million (2009: Baht 14.6 million) fo the fund.
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27.

28.
28.1

Credit facilities

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the credit facilities of the Company and subsidiaries granted by financial
institutions were secured by the guarantees and mortgages/pledges of the assets listed below.

1. Fixed deposits totaling Baht 113.2 million (2009: Baht 113.2 million).

2. 9.3 million shares of HTR Corporation Limited (2009: 9.3 million shares).

3. Pledge of the Company’s land with net book value of Baht 717 million (2009: Baht 717 million).

4. The transfer of the right of the claim of collections from construction contracts to a bank. The Company can
normally withdraw from the transfer. As at 31 December 2010, the balance of the accounts receivable under the
right transfer agreement was Baht 142 million (2009: Baht 416 million).

Commitments and contingent liabilities

Operating lease commitments

The Company has enfered info lease agreement in respect of the lease of motor vehicles. The ferm of the
agreement is 5 years.

As at 31 December 2010, future minimum lease payments required under these non-cancellable operating leases

confracts were as follows.

Million Baht
Payable within:
2011 2.6
2012 2.6
2013 to 2015 5.7

28.2 Guarantees

As at 31 December 2010, there were outstanding bank guarantees of approximately Baht 14,260 million issued by
banks on behalf of the Company, subsidiaries and joint ventures in respect of certain performance bonds as required

in the normal course of business as detail below.

Million Baht
Performance bonds 3.817
Advance and retention bonds 4,175
Others 6,268
14,260

28.3 Litigation

The Company has been sued for compensation totaling approximately Baht 109 million. In most of such cases the
Company is accused of breaches of hire of work contracts. The cases are sfill being considered by the Court. The
Company’s management and the Company’s legal advisors believe that the outcome of these cases will be
favorable to the Company and therefore no provision for liability has been set aside in the accounts.

A subsidiary was sued as jointly responsible for a company’s breach of confract, with a total of approximately Baht
33 million being claimed. The case is being considered by the court. However, the management and legal advisor of
the subsidiary believe that the subsidiary will not suffer any loss as a result of the lawsuit and therefore no provision for

liability has been set aside in the accounts.

-_r_l
=)
(V)
=]
O,
o
&2
Q
=3
(1]
3
(1)
=)
=3

Annual Report 2010 197



29. Financial instruments

29.1 Financial risk management

The Company’s financial instruments, as defined under Thai Accountfing Standard No. 107 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure

and Presentations”, principally comprise as follow.

Financial assets Financial liabilities
- Cash and cash equivalents - Trade accounts payable
- Trade accounts receivable - Unbilled payable
- Unbilled receivables - Hire purchase creditors and nancial leases payable

- Retention receivable Long-term loans

- Loans

The financial risks associated with these financial instruments and how they are managed is described below.

Credit risk

The Company and its subsidiaries are exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to construction receivables and
loans. However, due to their prudent credit policy, most of their customers being government agencies, and their
close follow up of debt, analysing financial position on an ongoing basis, the Company and subsidiaries do not

anficipate material losses from their debt collection in excess of those for which provision has already been set aside.

Interest rate risk

The Company and its subsidiaries’ exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its cash at banks, loans to, long-
term loans, hire purchase creditor and financial lease payable which are subject to interest. However, since most of
the Company and its subsidiaries’ financial assets and liabilities bear floating interest rates which fluctuate in line with
market interest rates or fixed interest rates which will be due within a short period, the interest rate risk is expected to
be minimal.

Significant financial assets and liabilities as af 31 December 2010 classified by type of interest rate are summarised in
the table below, with those financial assets and liabilities that carry fixed interest rates further classified based on

maturity, or the repricing date, if this occures before the maturity date.

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Million)
Fixed interest rates
Floating Non-
Interest Within Over interest interest
rate 1 year 1 year rate bearing Total
(% p.a)
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 0.25-2.00 450 - 1,595 12 2,057
Trade accounts receivable - - - - 959 959
Unbilled receivables - - - - 1.965 1,965
Retention receivables - - - - 182 182
Short-term loans to other companies Note 9 53 - - - 53
Loan to related party Note 8 1 6 - - 7
504 6 1,595 3,118 5,223
Financial Liabilities
Trade accounts payable - - - - 1,402 1.402
Unbilled payable - - - - 1,771 1,771
Hire purchase creditors and financial
leases payable 4.80-7.69 77 23 - - 100
Long-term loans 2.50 - 68 - - 68
77 91 - 3,173 3,341
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Separate financial statements

(Unit: Million)
Fixed interest rates
Floating Non-
Within Over interest interest
Inferest rate 1 year 1 year rate bearing Total
(% p.a.)
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 0.25-2.00 450 - 1,626 12 1,988
Trade accounts receivable - - - - 981 981
Unbilled receivables - - - - 1,716 1,716
Retention receivables - - - - 182 182
Loan to related party Note 8 - - 196 - 196
450 - 1,722 2,891 5,063
Financial Liabilities
Trade accounts payable - - - - 1,400 1,400
Unbilled payable - - - - 1,625 1,525
Hire purchase creditors and financial
leases payable 4.80-7.69 77 23 - - 100
77 23 - 2,925 3,025

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign

exchange rates.
The Company and ifs subsidiaries’ exposure to foreign currency risk is limited since the majority of business

transactions are denominated in Thai Baht.

29.2 Fair value of financial instruments

30.

31.

Since the majority of the Company and ifs subsidiaries” financial instruments are short-term in nature. Loans given fo
and loans from others mostly bear floating interest rates. Majority of loans bear fixed interest rate are going to due
within 2 years. Fair value is not expected to be materially different from the amounts presented in the balance
sheets.

A fair value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged or a liability setfled between knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arm’s length fransaction. The fair value is determined by reference to the market price of the financial
instrument or by using an appropriate valuation tfechnique, depending on the nature of the instrument.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it has an appropriate financing
structure and preserves the ability fo continue ifs business as a going concern.

According to the balance sheet as at 31 December 2010, the Group’s debt-to-equity ratio was 1.23:1 (2009: 0.95:1)
and the Company’s was 1.18:1 (2009: 0.98:1).

Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s authorised directors on 15 February 2011.
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Company
Nature of Business
Registration Number

Address

Registered Capital
Issued and
Paid-up Capital

Listed Securities

Jayanilu

W Flulne Budileds weud euandady S1ve @
Fuwnnaaing

0107536001001 (lAuIAAT 1A, 174)

32/59-60 4u 29-30 1AnsFlulng Manes

auualAn uuARRLAEWa WATAILY NTAMW 10110
NIANT (+66) 0 2260-1321 9813 (+66) O 2260-1339
www.stecon.co.th

1,350,250,000 LN

1,186,208,619 U (2 31 SUINAN W.A. 2553)
Viuanilty (STEC) 1,186,208.619 YU

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Construction

0107536001001 (Bor Mor Jor 174)

32/59-60, 29th-30th Floor, Sino-Thai Tower, Asoke Road,
Klongtoey-Nua, Wattana, Bangkok 10110

Tel: (+66) 0 2260-1321 Fax: (+66) 0 2260-1339
www.stecon.co.th

1,350,250,000 Baht

1,186,208,619 U (as at December 31, 2010)

Common Share (STEC) 1,186,208,619 shares




usdn 8lu-tne 15udides) ueua pauaadadu $1fia (UKIBu)
Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited

32/59-60, 29"-30" Floor, Sino-Thai Tower,
Sukhumvit 21, Asoke Road, Klongtoey-Nua, Wattana, Bangkok 10110
Tel: +66 (0) 2610-4900 FaK: +66 (0) 2260-1339
wwuw.stecon.co.th
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